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BOARDS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Fourth Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company together with the audited Financial Statements, Management Report and
the Auditors’ Report thereon for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

Highlights of the financial results of your Company for the year ended 315t March 2024 are
summarized below:-

(Rs in ‘000’s)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
31-March-24 31-March-23
Sum Assured 1,282,654,578 1,031,004,264
Premium Income 13,468,592 13,174,529
Surplus/(Deficit) in the Revenue Account before
transfer from Shareholders Fund:
(a) Linked Life Par 498 7,481
(b) Linked Pension Par 6,854 (6,694)
(c) Linked Life Non Par (1,105,340) (311,515)
(d) Linked Pension Non Par 32,436 25,124
(e) Linked Group 6,066 (11,283)
(H Non Linked Life Par 3,182 11,447
(g) Non Linked Pension Par 714 (48)
(h) Non Linked Life Non Par 1,570,778 (942,807)
(i) Non Linked Pension Non Par 68,740 55,546
(i) Non linked Group Life Non Par 73,907 (135,551)
(k) Non Linked Group Pension Non Par (305) 2,563
() Non Linked Annuity (5,142) 67,830
(m) Non Linked Group- Variable (994) (5,535)
(n) Non Linked Health Non Par 5,901 (109,557)
Total 657,295 (1,352,999)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 896,617 (1,184,357)

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

For FY 23-24, the Company grew the Individual new business volumes on an Annual Premium
Equivalent basis by ~1% (Rs 231 crore in FY 22-23). On overall APE, Company grew by 4% over
PY. The Company also over achieved the Q4 targets in Agency. Company is focusing on building
own distribution for scale up, as cost of acquisition across institutional channels is expected o go
up post the new commission guidelines.

The Company also continues to focus on enhancing policyholders experience whilst assessing
opportunities for operational efficiency and cost optimization to help reduce operating expense.
Company is focused for enhanced customer experience through afresh digital journey. Assets under
Management increased to Rs 13,851 Crore (FY22-23: Rs 12,329 Crore) arising from higher new
business during the year.

in FY 23-24, the Company reported a profit of Rs. 90 Crore (FY22-23: Loss of Rs. 118 Crore) on
account of release in profit from back book which was more than to offset the new business strain.
Total Gross Premium of Rs 1,347 Crore (FY 22-23 Rs 1,317 Crore) was received during the period
was reported.
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Furthermore, in line with demonstrating our customer led focus, the Company achieved the Claim
settlement ratio of 98.98% in Individual business (FY22-23: 98.75%) and 99.16% in Group business
(FY22-23: 99.41%) during the period, testament to the support for customers during year. This is an
area of constant focus for us and support our customers to our best ability in their times of need.

There have been no material changes in the controls or processes followed in the financial statement
closing process of the Company.

The Company has also assessed its solvency position as at the Balance sheet date and is at 183%
(FY22-23: 184%). The solvency is above the prescribed regulatory limit of 150%. Further, based on
the Company’s current assessment of the business operations over next one year, it expects the
solvency ratio to continue to remain strong and above the minimum limit prescribed by the insurance
regulator. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.

The Company is embarking on a focused and disciplined strategy, focused on improvements in its
distribution channels and to enhance operational efficiency. The Company continues to look for
opportunities to expand its Bancassurance distribution while retaining its current partner. Company
is also focusing on strengthening the own distribution channels Aviva Direct and Agency which will
reduce dependency on institutional channels going forward.

There is no change in state of affairs of Company during the financial year under review.
CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

As on March 31, 2024, the authorized share capital of your Company stood at INR 25,00,00,00,000
(Rupees Two Thousand Five Hundred Crore Only) divided into 2,50,00,00,000 (Two Hundred and
Fifty Crore) equity shares of INR 10/- each and paid-up share capital stood at INR 2189,90,00,000
(Rupees Two Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-Nine Crore Ninety Lakh Only). Dabur Invest Corp
(DIC) holds 26% and Aviva International Holdings Limited (AIH) holds 74% of Equity Shares of the
Company.

BONUS TO WITH PROFIT POLICYHOLDERS

In accordance with the product feature of Life Unitized with Profit Fund (UWP) and Pension Unitized
with Profit Fund (PUWP), the Company is proposing the following bonus rates for various lines of
participating products:

A. Unitized With Profits (UWP) Business

A.1 Regular Bonus Rates under UWP (Life and Pension)

Time Period Unitized with Unitized with
Profits Profits Products —
Products — Life Pension

Declared Regular Bonus 11.50% 10.50%

(1-Oct-23 to 30-Sep-24)

Proposed Regular Bonus
(1-Oct-24 to 30-Sep-25) 11.50% 10.50%

A.2 Special Reversionary Bonus (SRB)

The Company has been declaring an SRB under this line of business (Unitized With Profits
Fund) for the last 7 financial years owing to the significant amount of surplus assets, known as
Fund for Future Appropriation (FFA). The Company has proposed an additional Special
Reversionary Bonus (SRB) of 10% p.a. under both UWP (Life & Pension) lines of business.



A.3 Terminal Bonus Rates

Calendar UWP Life UWP Pension

Z?:;us:)fn of | Declared Rate | Proposed Rate | Declared Rate Proposed Rate

units (1-Oct-23 to (1-Oct-24 to 30- | (1-Oct-23 to 30- | (1-Oct-24 to 30-

30-Sep-24) Sep-25) Sep-24) Sep-25)

2002 113% 113% NA NA
2003 83% 83% 72% 72%
2004 73% 73% 63% 63%
2005 62% 62% 53% 53%
2006 56% 56% 47% 47%
2007 48% 48% 40% 40%
2008 43% 43% 36% 36%
2009 36% 36% 30% 30%
2010 32% 32% 27% 27%
2011 27% 27% 23% 23%
2012 20% 20% 17% 17%
2013 11% 11% 14% 14%
2014 9% 9% 7% 7%
2015 5% 5% 5% 5%
2016 2% 2% 2% 2%
2017 1% 1% 1% 1%
2018 0% 0% 0% 0%
2019 0% 0% 0% 0%
2020 0% 0% 0% 0%
2021 0% 0% 0% 0%
2022 0% 0% 0% 0%
2023 NA 0% NA 0%

B. Traditional With Profits Business:

B.1_Regular Bonus Rates

AVIVA
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Product Declared Regular Bonus Rate Proposed Regular Bonus Rates
FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25
é}g\r/]a Money Back 45 per 1000 Sum Assured 45 per 1000 Sum Assured
e Pl ¢ | 35 per 1000 Sum Assured 35 per 1000 Sum Assured
Policy Term Regular :
Bonus Rate Policy Regular
(per 1000 Term Bonus Rate
Sum (per 1000
Aviva Dhan Nirman Assured) Sum
18 Years 42.5 Assured)
21 Years 45.0 18 Years 42.5
25 Years 45.0 21 Years 47.5
30 Years 47 5 25 Years 525
30 Years 55.0




Declared Regular Bonus Rate

Proposed Regular Bonus Rates

Product FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25
|

Premium TEeET R Premium Regular Bonus

Payment Rate ) t Rat

Term (per 1000 Sum | ngrrr?en (pe;re 1000 Sum
Aviva Dhan Vriddhi Assured) Assured)
Pius 5 Years 33.0

5 Years 33.0 7 Years 37.0

7 Years 37.0 11 Years 415

11 Years 41.5

B.2 Terminal Bonus Rates

Product

Declared Terminal Bonus Rate

Proposed Terminal Bonus Rates

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25
Policy Terminal Bonus Rate - -
Policy Terminal Bonus Rate
E;?r s, 22T TR T Sl Year of | (per 1000 Sum Assured)
Exit
6 170 6 170
7 185 7 185
Aviva M 8 200 8 200
viva Money 5 215 9 215
Back Plan* 10 230 10 230
11 245 i 245
12 260
12
e ) 13 275
= 14 290
14 290 15 305
15 305 16 320
16 320 17 335
- : Policy Terminal Bonus Rate
(F;? E%Year '(I';;n ;SSIOBQS;S Rte Year of (per 1000 Sum Assured)
Assured) Exit = =5
s 2 :
8 140 8 140
Aviva Secure 9 140 9 140
10 160 il 60
Pension Plan P 160 14 160
o 180 12 180
13 180 13 180
14 500 14 200
15 200 15 200
16 220
16 220 17 220
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Product Declared Terminal Bonus Rate Proposed Terminal Bonus Rates
FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25
: : Policy Terminal Bonus Rate
Policy Year | Terminal Bonus Rate
B (per 1000 Sum \E(sz:r of (per 1000 Sum Assured)
Assured) '
Aviva Dhan 6 50 6 60
7 70
. 7 50
Nirman** 8 80
8 50
9 90
9 50
10 100
10 50
17 50 11 110
12 120
Policy Year Terminal Bonus Rate ;0 E%Year 2:;“ .IlggIOBSOSnliS Rate
. of Exit (per 1000 Sum | A d
Aviva Dhan Assured) : SE0IE )60
Vriddhi Plus 6 60 7 60
7 60
8 60
8 60
) 50 9 60
10 60

* A special terminal bonus of Rs 25 per 1000 sum assured is proposed for all Aviva Money
Back policies exiting during the FY 2024-25.

**A special terminal bonus of Rs 50 per 1000 sum assured is proposed for all Aviva Dhan
Nirman policies exiting during the FY 2024-25.

RENEWAL OF REGISTRATION

The Company has paid the annual renewal registration fees to the IRDAI for the financial year 2023-
24.

SOLVENCY

The Company has maintained the required solvency margin as per the IRDAI Guidelines. As on
31st March 2024, the Company has a solvency ratio of 183% which is higher than the control level
of solvency (150%) prescribed by the regulator.

RURAL AND SOCIAL SECTOR OBLIGATIONS
The Company has complied with the rural and social sector obligations prescribed by IRDAI.

During the year under review, the Company has over achieved its regulatory target by selling
21.02% policies in rural sector as against the target of 20%.

In case of social sector, the Company has covered 17.17% lives during the year under review
against a regulatory target of 5%. This has been achieved through a focused distribution and
marketing plan to service micro financial institutions, regional rural banks and other players in this
segment.

The Company has continued to focus on the rural and social sector business through deeper areas of
intensity and through establishing new partnerships and the Company looks forward to enhanced
engagement, enhanced relevant products, technological innovations and brand awareness in this space.
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INVESTMENTS

The Company’s total Assets Under Management (AUM’) as on 318t March 2024 was Rs.13,851.39
Crore. The Company has made investments as per the IRDAI (investment) Regulations (as
amended from time to time) in Government Securities, Corporate bonds, Money Market instruments,
Mutual Funds and Equity Shares. During FY 23-24, the Company has made no investment in real
estate or loans. A summary of the investment performance during the period and the investment
portfolio as on 31st March 2024 is given below:

Shareholders Policyholders Fund
Fund Non Unit Linked Unit Linked
FY 2023-2024 Return* 6.9% 7.9% 24.0%
Rs in Crore
Shareholders Policyholders Fund
Fund Non Unit Linked Unit Linked
Equity/Preference Shares 18.72 25.25 2565.73
Government Securities including 494 45 7384.43 877.10
Treasury Bills
Corporate Bonds
AAA 110.50 1,639.39 216.28
AA or better 0.70 2.31 46.50
Below AA** - 421 68.22
Mutual Funds - ETFs - - 146.73
Money Market Instruments and 3.17 12414 123.57
Net current Assets (for ULIP)
Assets Under Management 627.54 9,179.73 4,044.12

*Return is calculated on Mod-Dietz method
**Exposures to “Below AA” rated securities are due to downgrades of bonds subsequent to our purchases.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has put in place a robust corporate governance framework with an emphasis on
overall risk management across the organization. The Company remains committed to ensure
transparency and accountability in relation to all its stakeholders. The Corporate Governance Report
is attached as ‘Annexure A’ in detail.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of the annual return of the Company as on the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024
in Form MGT-7 is available on the website of the Company at https://www.avivaindia.com.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Six meetings of the Board were held during the year under review. For details of the meetings of
the Board, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report attached as ‘Annexure A’.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the requirements of Section 134(3)(c) and 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, confirm that:

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the Company for that period;

ii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of
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the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declaration from Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she continues to meet with the
criteria of independence and are Independent of Management as prescribed under Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and have duly complied with the provisions of sub rule (1) & (2) of Rule 6 of
the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 i.e. inclusion of name in the
databank for independent directors

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s code of
conduct.

In the opinion of Board, all Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the criteria with regard to
integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) of the independent directors as defined
under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Company’s Policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Persons

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under section
178(3) of the Act are available on the website of the Company at hitps://www.avivaindia.com as
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached as ‘Annexure B’ to this report.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

There are no adverse remarks/qualifications/reservations or disclaimers in the auditor's report as per
applicable provision of the Act and Corporate Governance Guidelines, 2016 issued by IRDAL.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed
M/s Chandrasekaran Associates, Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company to
undertake its Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2023-24.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the secretarial auditor's
report as per applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, other applicable laws and Corporate
Governance Guidelines, 2016 issued by IRDAI.

During the year under review, the Secretarial Auditor have not reported any matter of frauds under
Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore no disclosure is required under Section 134(3)
(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The secretarial audit report is attached as ‘Annexure C'.

During their meeting held on 10th May 2024, the Board of Directors had approved the appointment of
M/s MMJB & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company to
undertake its Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2024-25.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company being a life insurance company is out of the purview of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

The information on transaction with related parties pursuant to Section 134(h) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as per Form AOC 2 is as under:
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1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis -- NONE
a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship -- NONE
b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions -N.A.
c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions - N.A.
d. Material terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any - N.A.
e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions - N.A.
f. date(s) of approval by the Board - N.A.
g. any advance paid or received for the contract and arrangement, if any: - N.A.

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188 - N.A.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Aviva Central Services UK
Limited. Group Company.

b. Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions -- As part of Project Pinnacle, Aviva
India has identified various obsolete technologies including hardware / software / workflow
etc. which need to be upgraded. For the purpose, multiple suppliers / service providers /
resources have been engaged. The expenses were incurred by Aviva India and recharged
to Aviva Central Services UK Limited on actual basis.

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions — Fifty Months (March 2022 to
April 2026).

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any: -- The areas of technology obsolescence and upgrades had been identified and a
strategy was formulated for transformation. In order to execute the transformation, Aviva
India has engaged Wipro as a strategic partner and multiple other suppliers / service
providers / resources based on specific project requirements. The progress and milestones
have been reviewed by Pinnacle Steerco committee which comprises of representation from
Aviva Group and senior management of Aviva India.

The cost incurred on these suppliers / service providers / resources has been recharged to
Aviva Group on actual basis without any mark up. Till 31st March 2024 Rs. 81,30,57,503/-
& for the Financial Year 2023-24, Rs. 64,42,91,963/- was recharged to the Group by Aviva
India.

e. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: -- The Group recharge of Rs. 29.50 crore, Rs.
36.50 crore and Rs. 55.40 crore were approved in Board meeting held on 16" March 2022,
15t November 2022 and 08" August 2023 respectively.

f. Amount paid as advances, if any: -- No advance was paid by the Group to Aviva India for
Project Pinnacle.

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Directors do not recommend any dividend on equity shares and do not propose to transfer any
amount to reserves for the period ended 31st March 2024.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

In its endeavor to achieve the global objectives of reducing our overall Carbon footprint, the
Company remains committed towards its obligations to conserve and protect the environment. Over
the last couple of years, we have conscientiously reduced our power consumption by controlling
wastages and optimizing resources. Our offices have been scaled down to achieve a two-fold
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advantage of size and power optimization.

Relocating our Head Office fo a smalier, more efficient, LEED Certified building that fuifils most
criteria of energy efficiency as laid down in the revised NBCC norms has also greatly reduced our
total CO2 emissions (tCO2e).

The Group has purchased energy certificates (RECs) to match our electricity consumption to
renewable sources in India. This has enabled Aviva to achieve its public RE100 goal two-years
early.

From a Net Zero Operations perspective, this removes ali our scope 2 emissions (around 1,108
tCO2e this year) and leaves Aviva India with a small volume of scope 1 from oil, ¢.140 {CO2e. That's
a 94% reduction from the 2019 baseline.

The company intends to maintain similar traction in the year ahead.
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

During FY 2023-24, Aviva India IT has made significant progress across the Information Technology
platforms, ensuring reliability, security and robustness. In some areas we have selectively invested
in Saa$S based digital solutions and will continue to explore managed services and hosting solutions
that are sustainable and simpler to maintain. In order to ensure that appropriate checks and
balances are built for producing data with integrity, the implemented framework combining
Technology, Governance & Process is undergoing continuous improvements to make systems more
robust.

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development -

in FY’23-24, Aviva India spent a total of Rs 1.91 Cr on initiatives focused on:
Enhancing Digital Customer Onboarding

Digital Health & Wellness Platform for Customer Engagement and Servicing

Enabling seamless quotation across multi-platform
Pre issuance verification via Video call

Digital adoption — Continued our efforts in strengthening the Digital adoption for our internal and
external stakeholders. We are consistent in our efforts towards building a digital ecosystem that
enable seamless journeys, better user and customer experience.

Security Focus — Our security and overall GRC (Governance, Risk & Control) posture has
strengthened by means of various technology upgrades/changes/new implementations, fully
supported by employees training and awareness programs

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars Current year Previous Year
(31st March 2024) (31t March 2023)

Earnings 48,451 72,642

(Rupees in thousands)

Outgo 36,445 35,018

(Rupees in thousands)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has defined a comprehensive framework for both the ongoing assessment and
management of risks. The Company’s approach to Corporate Governance consists of three principal
elements:

s A pervasive culture and management approach which underpins the overall operation of the
Company and ensures that its business is conducted in a fit and proper manner.

» A Company-wide governance framework which prescribes constraints in the form of policies,
processes, organization and responsibilities within which management operates; and

e The execution of the governance framework through the fulfiliment and observance of its
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rules, processes and roles.

The overall risk profile of the Company is driven by the Company’s Risk Management Framework
supported with risk appetite and related Board approved policies with clearly defined risk
management practices that are reviewed on ongoing basis to address with agility the challenges of
a rapidly changing environment as well as day to day business needs and enable timely risk based
informed decision.

The business’s risk management goals are to:
+ Embed comprehensive risk management throughout the business, based on setting clear
risk preferences, appetites, tolerances and limits and staying within these;
* Ensure that capital is allocated where it will make the highest returns on a risk-weighted
basis; and
* Meet the expectations of our customers, investors and regulators that we will maintain capital
surpluses to ensure we can meet our liabilities, even if a number of extreme risks materialize.

The business maintains a Risk Taxonomy, being a comprehensive list of risks that the organisation
is exposed to. Its purpose is to provide a consistent basis for assessing risk, enabling comparisons
to identify themes, trends and best practice and to support the summarisation, aggregation and
reporting of risk, capital and control information.

The Operational Risk & Control Management (ORCM) framework is embedded into the business
that enables our business leaders to assess operational risks against set tolerance levels, quantify
exposures and prioritise mitigating action where required.

Further, the level of tolerance or appetite in relation to each of the risks is defined in these policies
as well as the minimum standards of control the business is expected to maintain.

The Company’s control and governance framework has identified three lines of defense:

* Firstline of defense: Primary responsibility for risk identification, measurement, management,
monitoring and reporting lies with management. The first-line management is responsible for
the implementation and practice of risk management. Consistent with this, CEO is
responsible for the majority of the underlying Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)
processes.

¢ Second line of defense: This comprises the Risk Management and Compliance key control
functions. Together they are responsible for the design and implementation of the risk
management system and reporting to the Board and Management on material risks identified
and the effectiveness of the operation of the risk management system. It also provides
independent oversight of first line risk taking. All key decisions must have the support of the
Risk Management Function before proceeding.

e Third line of defense: This comprises the Internal Audit key control function. Independent of
the second and third lines of defense, it evaiuates the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system and system of governance, reporting its findings and
recommendations to the Audit Committee of the Board and Management.

The Company also has Management Level committees that drive Governance and appropriate risk
culture through ample oversight of internal controls, issues, risk status to ensure effective outcomes.

During the year under review, a detailed action and mitigation plan is in place for all the identified
material risks along with a robust monitoring mechanism in place through ORCM framework and
reporting via Management and Board level Committees.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to the Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Board of Directors. The composition of the CSR Committee is provided in the
Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of this Report. The CSR Policy as recommended
by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in pursuance of the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 is uploaded on website at htips://www.avivaindia.com/. The CSR Committee
of the Company helps the Company to frame, monitor and execute the CSR activities of the
Company. The Committee defines the parameters and observes them for effective discharge of the

10




G

social responsibility of your Company. The CSR Policy of your Company outlines the Company’s
philosophy & the mechanism for undertaking socially useful programmes for welfare & sustainable
development of the community at large as part of its duties as a responsible corporate citizen. The
Company’s policy on Corporate Social Responsibility is available on the website of the Company.
CSR budget of the Company for FY 2023-24 i.e., 2% of average profits of last 3 years is NIL.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities for Financial Year 2023-24 is attached as ‘Annexure D’.
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, its Board Committees and
individual directors during the year pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors
on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board
processes, information and functioning etc. Similar criteria was also used to undertake the
performance evaluation of all the statutory Committees constituted under Companies Act, 2013 i.e.
Audit Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as well as other Committees i.e. Investment Committee, Policyholders’ Protection
Committee, Risk Management Committee and With Profits Committee was taken by all the
respective members on criteria like composition of the committee, effectiveness of its meeting etc.,
which was then considered by the Board as well.

The Directors of the Company reviewed the performance of the other individual directors on the
basis of the criteria such as their contribution to the Board and its Committee meetings of which they
were members like preparedness on the issues fo be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. The consolidated responses of the above evaluations were
reviewed by the Board.

DISCLOSURES

i. The Company did not have any subsidiary, associate entity or any joint venture company
during the year under review.

ii. There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.

iii. There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate and the date of this report.

iv. There were no significant and material order passed by any Regulatory Authority, Courts or
Tribunals which is impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

v. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

vi. The Company has not filed any application for settlement nor are any such proceedings
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, against the Company, as at March
31, 2024.

vii. The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof - Not applicable

viii. The Company has not obtained any Credit Rating of securities, during the year under review.

iX. During the financial year under review, the Company has not borrowed any amount(s) from
its Directors.

x.  During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential rights
and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4)
of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

xi. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during
the year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the
Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is
furnished.

xii. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares under
Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year under review and hence no information as
per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

xili. During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in
respect of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3)
of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is
furnished.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company has also received declarations from all its Directors as per Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013, confirming they are not disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the
Company.

Except following there were no changes in Directors during the year:

e Mr. Amit Agarwal was appointed as Additional Director in the category of Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company with effect from 26th August 2023. Further, the
Directors of the Company recommended appointment of Mr. Amit Agarwal as Director of
the Company to the Shareholders in the Exira-Ordinary General Meeting and same was
approved by the Shareholders.

There were no changes in Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year.

As on date of this report, the Directors and KMPs of the Company are as follows:

Sr. No| Name Designation

1. Lee Patrick Callaghan Director

2. Pritam Das Narang Nominee Director

3. Mohit Burman Nominee Director

4. Randy Lianggara Director

5. Asit Rath Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director
6. Sumithasri Eranti Venkataramagupta | Independent Director
7. Suresh Mahalingam Independent Director
8. Andrew Maitland Dinwiddie Director

9. Amit Agarwal Independent Director
11. Sonali Athalye Chief Financial Officer
12. Komal Jolly Company Secretary

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC

During the year under review, the Company has not invited or accepted any deposits from public/
members pursuant to the provisions of Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as such, no amount on account of
principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY

According to clause (€) of sub section 5 of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, the term Internal
Financial Control (IFC) has been defined as the policies and procedures adopted by the Company
to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The relevant part of IFC requirements applicable to the Company as a public unlisted company is
the requirement of having Internal Controls on Financial Reporting ('ICoFR’). The Company has had
its Financial Reporting Controls Framework (‘FRCF’) in existence since 2011, which is aligned to
ICoFR. A comprehensive Operational Risk and Control Management Framework that includes the
controls relating to financial reporting is in place with periodic testing and attestation.

In addition to the self-assessment that the control owners do periodicaily, with most of these being
semi-annual, the Company also engaged the services of an external reviewer, to help the
management test the controls and for the management to form an independent opinion.

Based on the testing and further analysis of the outcome, the management believes the controls
having impact on Financial Reporting are operating effectively.

Further, pursuant to the Guidance note on the audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on 14th September 2015 and as
mandated under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, the testing of such controls has also
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been carried out independently by the Statutory Auditors during the Financial Year 2023-24

No material process deficiencies were identified during the testing with the assessment concluding
that the existing internal control framework is adequate and commensurate with the size and nature
of the business of the Company.

RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS

1.

For Brand Trust Award-

Aviva Life Insurance India is recognized as India’s Most Trusted Private Life Insurance brand for
the sixth consecutive time by Trust Research Advisory (TRA) in India. The Brand Trust Report
2024, compiled by TRA, a leading consumer insights and brand analytics company, is the
culmination of 13 years of syndicated research conducted with 2,500 consumer-influencers
across 16 cities.

The fact that our brand has won this award 6 times in a row is a testament that our customers
are at the heart of everything that we do and our relentiess efforts to prioritize their needs along
with our forward -looking approach has been the instrumental in this continued success. Our
organization shall continue with the commitment to deliver products that empower, secure and
protect our customers.

. For Women in Insurance Leadership Award-

Aviva India has been recognized by the Indian Chamber of Commerce at the 4th Emerging Asia
Insurance Awards, 2023 for its Diversity & Inclusion efforts and felicitated with the Women in
Insurance Leadership Award.

. For Findability Sciences Award 2024-

Aviva Life Insurance India has been awarded with the Findability Science Award 2024 for Best
Al Project India — ALISHA.

ALISHA (AVIVA LIFE INSURANCE SELF HELP ASSISTANT) is among India’s first few Natural
Language Processor (NLP)-powered Conversational Computing Solutions. This chat bot
provides exceptional support & virtual assistance by streamlining the process the of accessing
information about our plans and resolving services related queries 24x7.

Findability Sciences is a Global Al solutions company that specializes in providing Al -powered
products & solutions to clients.

This remarkable achievement is a testimony of our forward-thinking initiatives and excellence in
the field of Al, its utilization, muitifaceted impacts, team’s innovative approach, return on
investments and outstanding leadership which has set in a benchmark in the industry.

We remain dedicated to pushing the boundaries of innovation and delivering exceptional resulis.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

The Company recognizes that a differentiated customer experience for life insurance business is
the key to success. The key initiatives taken by the Company on this are highlighted below:

a.

Processes and systems have been aligned to help deliver one of the best turnaround times for
processing of new business issuance, customers service requests, complaints resolution and
claims settiement.

The customers can visit customer portal, touch base with our Call centre, write to our customer
services mail id, walk in our Branch offices or can get in touch with HO team directly for their
servicing requests. All our front offices team members are well versed with policy servicing
process and customer handling.

The Company is committed to ensure qualitative sourcing and has taken measures to protect
policyholders. Proposal stage verification prior to policy issuance is carried out in high-risk
cases to ensure complete transparency to the client on the products bought by them.
Enhanced due diligence at the proposal stage on risky profiles basis death claims experience
has facilitated improvement in the Mortality Risk.
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e. The Company achieved highest ever claims settlement ratio of 98.98% in FY 2023-24 in
Individual Death Claims against 98.39% in FY 2022-23. The Company believes that claims are
the moment of truth in our quest to provide peace and prosperity to our customers. The
Company has set up best in class claim settlement process wherein the Company assists its
customer in submission of claim documents towards a speedy claim settlement. Further, the
Company strives to better its claims experience by continuously monitoring and analyzing
claims trends in terms of product, location and customer profile. This is demonstrated by the
fact that the Company has settled all claims received in the financial year and has ended FY
with NIL pending claims.

f. The Company continues to accord highest priority to complaints redressal. It has been
embedded as the key responsibility area of every employee of customer touch points. Proactive
management of complaints based on root cause analysis enables to prevent recurrence
resulting in 14% reduction in complaints with 34% reduction in Non-Sales and 8% in Sales
Complaints. Company also has NIL outstanding complaints as on 31st March 2024.

g. Company achieved renewal collection of Rs 989 crore for the FY 2023-24 against Rs 974 crore
in FY 2022-23.

h. The 13M Persistency as of March'24 end is 70.1%. The 13M ULIP persistency is at 76.7%.

i. Company has shown improvement in Compliance with respect to renewal Cheque pick up &
deposited within 24 hours, reflected by 100% compliance to 64VB in FY 2023-24.

JOINT STATUTORY AUDITORS

The shareholders vide the resolution dated 12th August 2022 appointed J. C. Bhalla & Co. (JCB)
and Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co. Chartered Accountants (TVA) as joint statutory auditors of the
Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 22nd AGM till the conclusion of the 27th AGM to
be held in year 2027.

REPORTING UNDER SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) Act, 2013

The Company has a robust and Internal Committee (IC) in accordance with the provisions of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The
Committee has representation from all four regions and at any time, more than 50% of its members
are female employees. Senior female members have been assigned the responsibility of acting as
presiding officers in accordance with the law and are required to be present in the inquiry of
complaints at all times. The IC also has the representation from an external party who is an expert
in dealing with matters related to sexual harassment and is associated with a Non- Governmental
Organization dedicated to cause of women.

The role of IC broadly includes investigation of complaints arising out of violation of POSH
(prevention of sexual harassment) policy, preparation of annual report, providing inputs for employee
awareness sessions, and communication to all employee groups via emails, posters, messages and
the overall administration of the POSH policy.

During the year, following key activities were undertaken:

e Poster communication was ensured in all branches and Corporate Office to increase
awareness and encourage employees to come forward.

s Timely updation of IC members list and ensuring that the list is displayed prominently in all
branches and Corporate Office.

« Online training on Prevention of sexual harassment for all employees was conducted during
the year.

e POSH was made part of annual Business Ethics training and declaration got signed from all
employees (1301)
POSH was made part of training module for all the new joiners
Roil out of online posters on POSH to all India mail users fortnightly to increase awareness.

The Company is completely committed to provide its diverse workforce with a safe and secure
work environment.
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Details of the cases received during the year are as follows:

Sl L

Number of Number of Number of workshops Nature of action
complaints complaints | Number of or awareness program | taken by the
of sexual disposed | cases against sexual employer or
State harassment | of during | pendingfor harassment District Officer
received in | the year more than carried out
the year (2023-24) ninety days
Delhi 1 1 NIL Fortnightly —awareness | Action taken on
communication to all | 1 complaint:
employees Separation from
POSH was made part | services and the
of training module for | Respondent put
all the new joiners on a do-not
POSH was made part of | rehire list.

annual Business Ethics
training and declaration
got signed from all active
employees

(1301)

STRATEGY OF IMPLEMENTATION OF INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The IRDAI vide its circular dated 15th September 2023 has communicated about the phased
implementation of Ind AS in insurance sector with the first set of companies expected to adopt
Ind AS from FY25-26 and the remaining two sets of companies in the two subsequent years
(FY26-27, FY27-28). Aviva is listed in the second phase of implementation. A phased approach
is adopted by the regulator for ensuring orderly availability of resources including consulting and
technical resources.

The Company has started evaluating consultants and systems for getting a gap analysis done
and depending on the timelines that will be notified by the IRDAI for submission of gap analysis
by the companies in the second phase, we will comply accordingly. It may be noted that the Ind

AS 17 Insurance contracts is yet to be notified by the MCA.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of

Directors and on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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Annexure A
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Good corporate governance has always been at the core of the Company’s philosophy. Our
corporate governance is a reflection of our value system encompassing our culture, policies and
relationship with our stakeholders. The Company is committed to the best practices in the area of
Corporate Governance, in letter and in spirit. The imperative need to have good governance
surfaced to demarcate the division between its ownership and its management. Concept of
corporate governance rests on the fulcrum of transparency behind all decisions taken, accountability
for the said decisions and safeguarding the interests of stakeholders

We remain committed to the best corporate governance practices aimed at ensuring transparency
and accountability in relation to all our stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors ensure that strategies and policies are implemented in a manner that would
sustain growth and protect the interests of all the stakeholders of the Company and policyholders in
particular. The Board of Directors comprise of persons of eminence having expertise in their
respective areas. As on 315t March 2024, the Board comprised of nine directors with one Executive
Director and eight Non-Executive Directors of which three are Independent Directors. The mix of
Independent and Non-Executive Directors enhances the quality of business judgment.

BOARD PROCEDURE

The Board meetings are scheduled well in advance before the beginning of each calendar year. The
Company holds at least four meetings of the board every year and not more than 4 months intervene
between two consecutive meetings. Further additional meetings are also convened from time to time
as and when required. The management operates within the defined terms of reference and
delegation of authority matrix.

There is a transparent flow of information to the Board from the senior management through well
documented agenda notes. Independent Directors of the Company are provided training on the key
aspects of the life insurance business after their appointment. Detailed presentations are made at
the meeting of the Board of Directors on the business plans and actual business performance is
reviewed by the Board on a quarterly basis. Transactions exceeding the prescribed limit as defined
in Board's Terms of Reference are reported to the Board periodically and transactions exceeding
the delegated limit is placed before the Board for its prior approval. Related party transactions, in
which any director or joint venture partner is interested, is placed before the Board for approval.
Deliberations of the meetings of the Committees are submitted to the Board on a quarterly basis.

During the financial year 2023-24, five meetings of the Board were held on 16" May 2023, 31st May
2023, 08t August 2023, 08" November 2023 and 20t February 2024.

The composition of the Board of Directors, number of directorships held by them in other Companies
and the attendance of the Board Members are given in the table below:

Member Nature of Educational Qualifications and Number of Number of
Directorship Field of Specialization Directorships Meetings
held in other Attended*
Companies#
Ms Sumithasri Eranti Chairwoman, BE, MS 1 5
Venkataramagupta Non - Field of Specialization:
Executive Information Technology
Independent Business Management
Director Business Consulting
Banking
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Member Nature of Educational Qualifications and Number of Number of
Directorship Field of Specialization Directorships Meetings
held in other Attended*
Companies#
Mr. Asit Rath Chief Executive | Post Graduate Nil 5
Officer and
Managing
Director (CEO
& MD)
Mr. Andrew Maitland Non —-Executive | FCA Nil 5
Dinwiddie Director
Mr. Lee Patrick Callaghan | Non—Executive | Bachelor's degree in law, LLM in Nil 5
Director Corporate and Commercial Law,

Post Graduate diplomas in
Specialist law fields (EU law and
Competition)

Field of Specialization: Legal

Mr. Mohit Burman Non —Executive | Bachelor of Arts, Business 19 5
Director Administration and Economics
from Richmond College London
and MBA (Finance)

Field of Specialization: Finance

Mr. Pritam Das Narang Non —Executive | B. Com, FCA, FCS, AICWA and 9 4
Director MIIA
Field of Specialization: Finance
Mr. Randy Lianggara Non —Executive | Post Graduate/Master/Equivalent Nil 5
Director
Mr. Suresh Non-Executive PGPIM 2 5
Mahalingam Independent
Director
Mr. Amit Agarwal’ Non - FCA Nil 2
Executive
Independent
Director Field of Specialization:
Finance

* Attendance includes attendance through video conferencing.
# Includes Directorships in other private and public companies and excludes foreign companies
1. Appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f. 26th August 2023.

COMMITTEES

The Company has in place all the mandatory Committees namely, Audit Committee, Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee, Investment Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Risk Management Committee, Policyholders Protection Committee and With Profits
Committee. The Committee meetings are also scheduled well in advance every year. At least four
meetings are held in a financial year and the gap between two meetings does not exceed 4 months
for mandatory committees except Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and With Profits Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia includes reviewing the interim, quarterly
and annual financial statements, auditor’s report, internal audit reports and systems for internal
control, responsible for appointment and remuneration of external auditor (including concurrent
auditor), reviewing and monitoring the Company’s legal risk profile and compliance with applicable
legal and regulatory requirements, establishing and monitoring policies and procedures for treatment
of complaints received by the Company, approving or modifying transactions with related parties.

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted as per Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013
comprising of Independent and Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an
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Independent Director with finance and tax experience and all the members of the Committee have
accounting and financial management expertise. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as
the Secretary of the Committee.

During the financial year, the Committee met four times on 15" May 2023, 07t August 2023, 08t
November 2023 and 19" February 2024.

The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of the Members is given below:

S.No | Members Nature of Directorship No. of Meetings
Attended
1. Mr. Pritam Das Narang Non —Executive Director 3
2. Mr. Randy Lianggara Non —Executive Director 4
3. Mr. Suresh Mahalingam Non-Executive Independent Director 4
4. Ms. Sumithasri Eranti Chairwoman, Non -  Executive 2
Venkataramagupta Independent Director
5. Mr. Amit Agarwal’ Non - Executive Independent Director 2

1. Appointed as member w.e.f. 26th August 2023.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Investment Committee inter alia includes laying down an overall
investment policy and operational framework for the investment operations, reviewing and
implementing the investment policy as approved by the Board, independently reviewing the
investment decisions, formulating an effective reporting system to ensure compliance with the policy,
specifying norms for investing and monitoring “Other investments”, ensuring compliance with the
various Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Circulars etc. issued by the Authority from time to time.

During the financial year, the Committee met four times on 16" May 2023, 08" August 2023, 08t
November 2023 and 20" February 2024.

The composition of the Investment Committee and the attendance of the Members are given below:

S.No | Member Designation No. of Meetings
Attended

1. Mr. Asit Rath Chief Executive Officer & Managing 4
Director

2. Mr. Ajai Kumar Tripathi Appointed Actuary 3

3. Mr. Akhilesh Gupta Chief Investment Officer 4

4. Mr. Andrew Dinwiddie Non-Executive Director 4

5. Mr. Mohit Burman Non-Executive Director 4

6. Mr. PD Narang Non-Executive Director 3

7. Mr. Randy Lianggara Non-Executive Director 4

8. Ms. Sonali Athalye Chief Financial Officer 3

9. Mr. Suresh Mahalingam Non-Executive Independent 4
Director

10. | Mr. Amit Agarwal ! Non-Executive Independent 2
Director

11. | Ms. Vijayalakshmi Chief Risk Officer 2

Natarajan?
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1. Appointed as member w.e.f. 26th August 2023.
2. Ceased as member w.e.f. 31st August 2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee inter alia includes providing financial
(credit, market and liquidity), insurance, operational risk and reputation management oversight;
supporting the business and risk management strategy; management of the business’s reputation
and franchise value; ensuring the business’s systems and processes meet customer, employee,
regulator and external stakeholders’ expectations; overseeing the risk mitigation programmes;
monitoring the entity’s position against franchise value risk appetite; reviewing and challenging the
Company’s methodology for creating its forward-looking risk profile; reviewing management’s view
of emerging and potential risks.

During the financial year, the Committee met four times on 15" May 2023, 07th August 2023, 08"
November 2023 and 20" February 2024.

The composition of the Risk Management Committee and the attendance of the Members are given
below:

S.No | Member Designation No. of Meetings attended

1. Mr. Pritam Das Narang Non-Executive Director 3

2. Mr. Randy Lianggara Non-Executive Director 4

3. Ms. Sumithasri Eranti Non-Executive Independent 2
Venkataramagupta Director

4. Mr. Suresh Mahalingam Non-Executive Independent 4
Director

5. Mr. Amit Agarwal’ Non-Executive Independent 2
Director

1. Appointed as member w.e.f. 26th August 2023.

POLICYHOLDERS’ PROTECTION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Policyholders Protection Committee inter alia includes putting in place
proper procedures and effective mechanism to address complaints and grievances of policyholders
including misselling by intermediaries; ensuring compliance with the statutory requirements as laid
down in the regulatory framework; ensuring adequacy of disclosure of “material information” to the
policyholders; reviewing claims report, repudiated claims, unclaimed amount of policyholders and
awards given by the Insurance Ombudsman/ Consumer forums remaining unimplemented for more
than three months

The Committee is headed by a Non-Executive Director and includes a customer representative as
an invitee to enable the Company to formulate policies and assess compliance thereof

During the financial year the Committee met four times on 15" May 2023, 07th August 2023, 07"
November 2023 and 19" February 2024.

The composition of the Policyholders’ Protection Committee and the attendance of the Members are
given below:

S.No | Member Designation No. of Meetings
Attended
1.| Mr. Asit Rath Chief Executive Officer & Managing 3
Director
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S.No | Member Designation No. of Meetings
Attended
2. | Mr. Ajai Kumar Tripathi Appointed Actuary 3
3. | Mr. Joydev Sengupta Head- Legal & Compliance 4
4. | Mr. Kunal Anand Chief Operation and Customer 4
Service Officer
5. | Ms. Sumithasri Eranti Non-Executive Independent 4
Venkataramagupta Director
6. | Ms. Vijayalakshmi | Chief Compliance & Chief Risk 2
Natarajan’ Officer
7.| Mr. Vinit Kapahi Head-Marketing 4
8. | Mr. Vishnu Kumar Chief Distribution Officer 3
S.No | Invitees Designation No. of Meetings
Attended
1 Mr. Manoj Pandey Customer Representative 3

1. Resigned as Chief Risk Officer w.e.f. 31st August 2023.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter alia includes
scrutinizing, reviewing and formulating criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes of
Key Management Persons and Directors and also determine the independence of Directors,
recommending appointment and removal of Key Management Persons and Directors, carrying out
evaluation of Director’s performance and recommend appointment/ removal basis the performance,
recommending the policy relating to appointment/ re-appointments and remuneration for Directors
and Key Management Personnel and ensure adherence of the policy while considering such
appointment, re-appointments and remuneration; formulating such policies for retention plans, short
& long term incentive plans, monetary and otherwise, to all or any class of employees and
recommend the same to the Board for approval.

During the financial year, the Committee met three times on 16" May 2023, 08 August 2023, 08t
November 2023.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the attendance of the
Members are given below:

S.No | Member Designation No. of meetings
attended*

1. | Mr. Mohit Burman Non-Executive Director 3

2. | Mr. Pritam Das Narang ' Non-Executive Director 3

3. | Mr. Randy Lianggara Non-Executive Director 3

4. | Ms. Sumithasri Eranti Non-Executive Independent 3
Venkataramagupta Director

5. | Mr. Suresh Mahalingam Non-Executive Independent 3
Director

1. Ceased as a member w.e.f. 8th November 2023
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The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia includes supervising the investment strategy of
the insurer for the with profits funds considering the assets and liabilities of the with profit funds,
supervising the reinsurance arrangements for the with profit funds, ensuring they are appropriate
and in the interest of the with profits policyholders, ensuring the appropriateness in debiting the
expenses to with profit funds, determining the share of assets attributable to the policyholder, the
investment income attributable to the participating fund of policyholders and the expenses allocated
to the policyholders

During the financial year, the Committee met twice on 15" May 2023 and 07™ November 2023.

The composition of the With Profits Committee and the attendance of the Members are given below:

S.No | Member Designation No. of meetings attended
1. Mr. Andrew Dinwiddie Non- Executive Independent 1
Director
2. Mr. Asit Rath Chief Executive Officer & 2
Managing Director
3. Mr. Ajai Kumar Tripathi Appointed Actuary 2
4. Mr. Suresh Mahalingam Non- Executive Independent 2
Director
5. Ms. Sonali Athalye Chief Financial Officer 2
6. Mr. Subrahmanyam Kollimarla | Independent Actuary 2

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is constituted as per Section 135 of the Companies
Act 2013, comprising of Non-Executive and Independent Directors to:

iv.

V.

Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the
Company and any modifications thereto.
Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities undertaken defined
in the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company.
Review the performance of the CSR activities that have been approved by the Board of

Directors.

Recommend to the Board of Directors, an annual report on CSR activities to be included in
the Board’s Report as per the prescribed format under Companies Act, 2013.
Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

During the financial year the Committee met once on 16t May 2023.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is given below:

S.No | Member Designation No. of meetings
attended
1 Mr. Asit Rath Chief Executive Officer and 1
Managing Director
2 Mr. Lee Patrick Callaghan Non-Executive Director 1
3 Mr. PD Narang Non-Executive Director 1
4 Mr. Suresh Mahalingam Non-Executive Independent 1
Director
5 Ms. Sumithasri  Eranti | Non-Executive Independent 1
Venkataramagupta Director

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

The total remuneration paid to the CEO & MD for the year ended 31st March 2024 is Rs. 3,89,41,822.
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The present salary structure of CEO of the Company includes fixed and variable (performance bonus
plus long term incentive) which is in compliance with IRDAI Guidelines on remuneration dated 5t
August 2016 (hereinafter referred as “the circular”) wherein more than 50% of the salary constitutes
of variable component which is deferred for 3 years.

In compliance with the circular, the Company had duly amended its Nomination and Remuneration
Policy and subjected CEQO’s salary to be in compliance with applicable laws. Accordingly, whenever
any proposal for CEO salary is considered by Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the Board, compliance of IRDAI Guidelines will be adhered to and ensured.

The “Risk and Control” is one of the key objectives in the goal sheet of the CEO of the Company.
This objective includes Conduct, Governance and Risk management elements. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of the Company, at the time of considering vesting of
awards, shall take a holistic view bearing in mind various factors including the parameters stipulated
in the circular viz. persistency, solvency, grievance redressal, expenses of management, claim
settlement/repudiation, overall compliance status and overall financial position.

All the three Independent Directors are paid sitting fee of Rs. 1,00,000 for every meeting of the Board
and Committees attended by them. The total remuneration paid to Independent Directors for the
financial year 2023-24 is Rs 10,792,022.26 and is inclusive of the sitting fee paid to them. Total
remuneration of Rs. 50,88,000/- (Rs. 32,88,000/- as remuneration + Rs. 18,00,000/- as sitting fee)
was paid Ms. Sumithasri Eranti Venkataramagupta; Rs. 38,71,060/- (Rs. 14,71,060/- as
remuneration + Rs. 24,00,000/- as sitting fee) was paid to Mr. Suresh Mahalingam; Rs. 18,32,962/-
(Rs. 9,32,962/- as remuneration + Rs. 9,00,000/- as sitting fee) paid to Mr. Amit Agarwal.

The Non-Executive Directors have not drawn any commission from the Company, for the year ended
315t March 2024. No commission is paid to Managing/Wholetime director and the remuneration paid
to CEO&MD has been disclosed above as well as in the Notes to Accounts of the financial
statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CEO & MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director (CEO& MD)
responsibility for day-to-day management of the business of the Company in accordance with the
strategy, objectives and policies set by the Board from time to time.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit function reports to the Audit Committee. The purpose of the function is to help the
Board and Executive Management to protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of the
Company. The function assesses the effectiveness of framework of controls, management actions
to address deficiencies therein and reports to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis and to
management (as appropriate).

FINANCIAL CRIME AND WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Company has in place a Board approved Anti Money Laundering, Anti Bribery & Corruption,
Gift and Entertainment, Conflict of Interest and Anti Fraud Policies. The best practices relating to
prevention of financial crime have been adopted with self assessments conducted twice a year and
Anti-Fraud Policy complies with IRDAI guidelines on Fraud Monitoring Framework.

Whistleblowing mechanism is in place through Board approved Whistleblower policy and the
whistleblowing channel SpeakUP.

Financial Crime Risk assessments are performed on a regular basis, inadequate controls are
identified and existing controls are tested regularly to prevent and detect malpractice incidents,
followed by review of design and operating effectiveness. Anti Bribery & Corruption, Anti Fraud and
Whistle Blower policies are uploaded on Iconnect for easy and regular access to employees.
Further, in order to create awareness training and assessment are conducted through the year and
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along with periodical education teasers. These policies provide adequate guidance for effective
implementation of controls.

Further adequate controls are in place with local regulatory requirements and working fine in line
with Financial Crime Minimum Compliance Standards- Suspicious transaction monitoring and
reporting under AML, Central monitoring exercise under fraud, Conflict of interest monitoring, Gift
and Entertainment declaration monitoring, Monitoring of death claims, complaints, Free look
cancellation etc. and thematic reviews in place.

PUBLIC DISCLOSURES

Pursuant to the Public Disclosures requirements stipulated by IRDAI, the Company has published
its quarterly, half yearly and annual results within the prescribed period in the newspapers and has
made the necessary disclosures in the prescribed format on the Company’s website. Any transaction
with related party is disclosed in the Annual Accounts.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 315t March 2024 is set out as a part of the
Directors Report.
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Policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Persons of
Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited

Version:

6.1

Effective date:

01 April 2023

Purpose: To set out the Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors and Key
Managerial Persons of Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
Scope: All Aviva India’s Non-Executive Directors and Key Managerial Persons

Policy Statement:

Our reward approach supports the execution of Aviva’s strategy, rewarding
sustained performance and growth aligned with our values

Associated Policies
and Procedures:

e Variable Pay and Risk Adjustment Policy

e Identification of Remuneration Regulated Employees Policy
e Malus and Clawback Policy

e Rewards Approvals Framework

e Remuneration Business Standard

e Any supporting Reward Guidelines e.g., Buyouts & Guarantees,
Retention Awards and Global Mobility Guidelines

e Group Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference
e Aviva's Business Ethics Code
e Aviva’s Code of Conduct

e IRDAI circular bearing number IRDAI/F&A/GDL/MISC/141/6/2023
dated June 30, 2023 - “Guidelines on Remuneration of Directors and
Key Managerial Persons of Insurers”

e IRDAI (Corporate Governance for Insurers) Regulations, 2024

o IRDAI (Expenses of Management, including Commission, of Insurers)
Regulations, 2024 issued vide IRDAI notification F. No.
IRDAI/Reg/02/196/2024 dated January 24, 2024

Approved by: Board Remuneration Committee Date: April 2024
Last Amended: March 2024
Next Review: April 2025

Aviva: Confidential
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Policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Persons

The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI), vide circular bearing number
IRDAI/F&A/GDL/MISC/141/6/2023 dated June 30, 2023 has issued the “Guidelines on Remuneration of Directors
and Key Managerial Persons of Insurers” (the “Guidelines”), governing the compensation and remuneration to
the members of the Board, Senior Management, Key Persons in Control Functions and other employees of the
Insurers, whose actions may have a material impact on the risk exposure of the insurer and should not encourage
such individuals, to take inappropriate or excessive risks, especially where performance-based variable
remuneration is used. The Guidelines replaces and supersedes all erstwhile prescriptions of IRDAI in this regard,
including the IRDAI (Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors of Private Sector Insurers) Guidelines, 2016, and
(Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer / Whole-time Director / Managing Director of Insurers) Guidelines, 2016
issued by IRDAI vide circular bearing number IRDA/F&A/GDL/LSTD/155/08/2016 dated August 05, 2016.

Pursuant to the abovementioned Guidelines of IRDAI, the Company on its 37" Board Meeting held at the
registered office of the Company at May 10, 2024, adopts the present “Policy on Nomination and Remuneration
of Directors and Key Managerial Persons” (the “Policy”) in supersession of any and all Policy or process subsistent
in the Company in this regard.

1. Principles:
The Policy shall establish an effective governance of compensation and sound Remuneration structure for the
Officers of the Company, that -
a. disincentivizes excessive or inappropriate risk taking by such officers;
b. is harmonious to the long-term interests of the Company;

c. propagates an environment of healthy corporate culture, organizational objectives, contemporary strategies
and identified risk appetite in the Company;

d. prevents situations of conflict of interest (that might compromise the integrity and objectivity of such
Officers), while appointing any employee or member of its Board or designing the remuneration of the
officers of the Company.

e. Fully aligns to the Aviva Group RemCo approved remuneration policies and Aviva Group principles.

2. Objectives:
The Policy, amongst other objectives, primarily intends to ensure:
i. effective governance of compensation;
ii. /alignment of compensation with prudent risk taking;
iii. effective supervisory oversight and stakeholder engagement;

iv. safety of interest of policyholders and other stakeholders.

Corporate Office: 401-A, 4th Floor, Block A, DLF Cyber Park, Sector-20, NH-8, Gurugram, Haryana-122 016, India, IRDAI
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3. Definitions:

‘Board”:

‘Board
Nomination
and
Remuneration
Committee’ or
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Cash linked
stock
appreciation
rights (CSARs)

‘Clawback’

‘Company’

‘Fixed Pay’

Fixed

Remuneration:

‘Independent
Director’

IRDAI:

ANNEXURE B

Board means the ‘Board of Directors’, which is the collective body of the
directors of the Company, as defined under Section 2 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee Constituted by the Board under operation of section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and IRDAI(Corporate Governance for insurers) Regulations
2024, for inter-alia recommending to the Board on the matters relating to
the remuneration for the Directors, KMPs and other employees of the
Company.

In line with the ‘The Securities Exchange Board of India’ (SEBI) (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to
time, “stock appreciation right or SAR” means a right given to a SAR
grantee entitling him/her to receive appreciation for a specified number of
shares of the company where the settlement of such appreciation may be
made by way of cash payment or shares of the company.

Clawback shall mean the contractual right of the Company, by virtue of
which the Company can demand and receive back, the whole or part of
any previously paid or vested remuneration to any KMP under
circumstances stated under this Policy.

Company shall mean the Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited,
bearing IRDAI registration number 122, and having its corporate office at
Unit No. Corporate Office: 401-A, 4th Floor, Block A, DLF Cyber Park,
Sector-20, NH-8, Gurugram, Haryana-122 016.

Fixed Pay shall mean fixed part of any KMP Remuneration, which is
reasonable and arrived at taking into account all the relevant factors
including responsibilities of the KMP and applicable law for the time being
in force. Fixed Pay shall include Basic pay, allowances, perquisites,
contribution towards superannuation/retirement benefits and all other fixed
items of compensation of such KMP.

A fixed remuneration payable to the Non-Executive Directors irrespective of
the profit or loss of the Company during any financial year as prescribed
under Part II of Schedule V of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020.

Independent director is a Non-Executive Director of the Board of the
Company appointed under section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder.

IRDAI shall mean, Insurance Regulatory Development Authority of India,
constituted under Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act,
1999 (IRDAI Act 1999) for overall supervision and development of the
Insurance sector in India.

Corporate Office: 401-A, 4th Floor, Block A, DLF Cyber Park, Sector-20, NH-8, Gurugram, Haryana-122 016, India, IRDAI
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The Regulations, Guidelines, Circulars, Notifications and directions issued
by IRDAI from time to time with specific applicability on the Company or
otherwise.

Malus shall mean the right of the Company, by virtue of which the
Company can forfeit, the whole or part of any unpaid or accrued Variable
Pay due to any KMP under circumstances stated under this Policy.

“Key Management Persons” (KMPs) means as defined in the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority of India (Registration, Capital
Structure, Transfer of Shares and Amalgamation of Insurers) Regulations,
2024 as amended from time to time.

“Key Management Person” shall include all whole-time directors or
Managing Directors or Chief Executive Officer and the functional heads one
level below the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer, including the
Chief Financial Officer, Appointed Actuary, Chief Investment Officer, Chief
Risk Officer, Chief Compliance Officer and the Company Secretary and/or
as included in the NRC as per time to time

The Long Term Incentive Plan or the LTIP shall mean the Aviva Group
Long Term Incentive Plan. For the purposes of this policy “"LTIP"/Share
Awards will include Restricted Share Awards (RSU) / CSAR (Cash Linked
Stock Appreciation Rights)/CSAP granted under the Group LTIP plan, as
well as other deferred share awards such as deferred bonus under the
Annual Bonus Plan (ABP).

Consideration would also be given to any conditional share awards (CSAP),
if applicable.

KMP Remuneration shall mean any money or its equivalent given or passed
on to a KMP for the services rendered by him/her as the case may be; and
shall include Perquisites.

Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer of the Company shall mean a
Director of the Board of the Company as defined under Section 2(54) and
is appointed by operation of section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013, by
virtue of the articles of the Company or an agreement with the Board or a
resolution passed in its General Meeting, and is entrusted with substantial
powers of management of the affairs of the company and includes a
director occupying the position of managing director, by whatever name
called.

Non-executive director shall mean a Director of the Board of the Company,
who is not an Executive Director and includes an Independent Director.

Officer of the Company shall mean Officer as defined under section 2(59)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and shall include any Director, Managing
Director or Key Managerial Person of the Company.
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Perquisite shall mean Perquisite as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961
and will include:

a. Value of rent-free/accommodation provided by the Company.

b. Value of any concession in the matter of rent respecting any
accommodation provided by the Company.

c. Any sum paid by the Company in respect of an obligation which  was
actually payable by the KMP.

d. Value of any benefit/amenity granted free or at concessional rate to the
KMP etc.

e. The value of any specified security or shares allotted or transferred,
directly or indirectly, by the Company, free of cost or at concessional rate
to the KMP.

f. Any sum payable by the Company, whether directly or through a fund
other than a recognized provident fund or an approved superannuation
fund to effect an assurance on the life of the KMP or to effect a contract
for an annuity.

g. The amount of any contribution to an approved superannuation fund by
the Company in respect of the KMP, to the extent it exceeds one lakh
rupees.

The Restricted Share Units or RSU shall mean the Restricted Share Units in
accordance with the Aviva Group Long Term Incentive Plan.

For consideration of RSU’s, the ‘*Company’ shall mean the Group and not
Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited.

A fixed sum of remuneration payable by the Company to its Non-Executive
Directors against every meeting they attend in the Company in accordance
with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, read with
appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard.

Variable Pay shall mean the variable part any KMP Remuneration, which
shall be either in the form of Cash Benefits and/or in the form of Share
Linked Instruments. Where applicable, this will include discretionary annual
bonus (with cash and deferred elements if appropriate), Long Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) and/or deferred share awards and specialist incentive
arrangements.

‘Whole-time Director’ or ‘Executive Director’ shall mean a director in the
Board, appointed under section 196 read with schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013, and who is in employment of the Company on a
fulltime basis with entitlement to receive Remuneration.
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1. Effective Date:
This policy shall be applicable with effect from April 01, 2023.

2. Policy on Board diversity:
The Board shall be comprised of Directors having expertise in different areas / fields like Finance, Sales and
Marketing, Banking, Engineering, Human Resource management, etc. or as may be considered appropriate.
In designing the composition of the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board shall have at least one Board member who has accounting or
related financial management expertise and at least one women director.

3. Conflict of interest:
The Board recognizes conflict of Interest as one of the significant risks in structuring, implementing and
reviewing this Policy. Therefore, the BNRC shall carry out necessary examination to identify and prevent
circumstances of conflict of interest (that might compromise the integrity and objectivity of such Officers),
while recommending appointment of any member of the Board or KMP of the Company or designing their
remuneration under this Policy.

In order to ensure that the members of the Board or KMP of the Company are not placed in a position of
actual or perceived conflicts of interests, the Board, while structuring, implementing or reviewing this policy
or taking any decision under this Policy, shall also examine on the circumstances of conflict of interest before
taking any decision or further recommending to the shareholders on appointment of any member of the Board
or KMP of the Company or structuring their remuneration, as the case may be, within the ambit of this Policy.

4. Policy Framework
Keeping in view the difference of risks and responsibilities associated with the roles of the Non-Executive
Directors of the Board and the Key Managerial Persons of the Company, the framework of the Policy shall
have two distinct parts dealing with their entitlements, remuneration and compensation separately as under:

Part I: Policy on Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

Part II: Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Key Managerial Persons.
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Part 1
Policy on Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

Non-executive directors of the Company objectively act in the interest of the Company and the stakeholders by
overseeing and constructively challenging the management and the Company in its implementation of strategy
within the system of governance of the Company and the risk appetite set by the Board. Besides, the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company contribute towards ensuring that the Board members achieve their objectives;
providing leadership and strategic guidance, while maintaining objective judgment; filling the expertise gap in the
management; providing independent view on the running of the business, governance and boardroom best
practices. The experiences of non-executive directors from different fields bring in wider perspective and outside
experience contributing to the strategic developments of the Company. In view of the increasing demands on
participation of non-executive directors coupled with higher responsibilities, non-executive directors are expected
to bear in the interest of higher level of excellence in corporate governance and in order to enable Insurance
companies to attract and retain professional non-executive directors, it is essential that such directors are
appropriately compensated.

1. Policy:
This Policy shall be called the Policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors of the
Company (NED Policy) and shall be applicable from the Date of adoption of this NED Policy by the Board
or the Effective Date, whichever is earlier.

2. Appointment and Reappointment:
The Board and the shareholders shall carry out appointment or re-appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company through recommendations of the BNRC in accordance with this NED Policy and
as per the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, and the
Insurance Act, 1938 read with appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard. Further appointment of the
Chairperson of the Board shall be basis prior IRDAI approval from IRDAI and the chairperson shall be an
Independent Director

a. Age Limit:
The maximum age limit for Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairperson of the board, shall be 75
years. No person shall continue on the Board of the Company after attaining the age of 75 years.

b. Term of office:
i. Term of Office of Non-Executive Directors other than an Independent Director
Other than an Independent Director, the tenure of a Non-Executive Director in the Board of the
Company shall be in accordance with the decision of the Board and the Shareholders of the Company
and as per the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder,
and the Insurance Act, 1938 read with appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard.

ii. Term of Office of an Independent Director
An Independent Director in the Board of the Company may be appointed for a term of up to five
consecutive years and shall be eligible for re-appointment for the second term on passing of a special
resolution in accordance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made thereunder, and the Insurance Act, 1938 read with appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this
regard.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, beyond a period of
10 years. After completion of 10 years such Independent Director shall be eligible for re-
appointment only after a cooling-off period of at least three years in accordance with the applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, and the Insurance Act,
1938 read with appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard.
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3. Remuneration:
Remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company shall Comprise of Sitting Fee,
Reimbursement of expenses and Fixed Remuneration etc. Payment of such Remuneration by the
Company shall be governed by the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,
read with appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard. The remuneration paid to the Chairperson of
the Board shall be with prior approval from IRDAL.

a. Remuneration
Each Non-Executive Directors of the Company may be entitled for a remuneration as may be approved
by the Board and Shareholders from time to time and in compliance with the applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, and the Insurance Act, 1938 read with
appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard.

The total remuneration paid by the Company to any Non-Executive Director of the Board, collectively
on account of the above-mentioned Fixed Remuneration in any financial year, shall under no
circumstances exceed a sum of Rupees Twenty lakh. If the Chairperson of the company is a Non-
Executive Director, the remuneration may be decided by the Board of Directors and necessary
amendments shall be carried out in this Policy to specify the details of the remuneration and incentives
paid to him/her with prior approval from IRDAL.

The Non-Executive Directors shall not be eligible for any equity-linked benefits.

b. Sitting Fee and Reimbursement of Expenses
In addition to the Fixed Remuneration as mentioned in the preceding section, the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company shall be entitled to the following:

i. Sitting fees:
The Company shall pay Sitting Fees to the Non-executive Directors an amount as approved by the
Board from time to time within the limits of applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder, read with appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard.

ii. Reimbursement of expenses
Non-Executive Directors of the Company shall be entitled for reimbursement of actual expenses
incurred by them or as allowed by the Board of Directors from time to time, to participate in the
Board and other meetings of the Company in accordance with the applicable provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, and the Insurance Act, 1938 read with appropriate
IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard.

4, Disclosure:
The Company shall make adequate disclosure on the amount of remuneration paid to each Non-Executive/
Independent director, in the Notes to the Accounts forming part of Annual Financial Statements. In case
no remuneration is paid during a year, the same shall also be specifically disclosed. For transparency, the
Company may endeavor to present the disclosures under the heads recommended below.

a. Information relating to the composition and mandate of the BNRC.

b. Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes.

c. Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the remuneration
processes.

d. Description of the ways in which the Company seeks to link performance during a performance
measurement period with levels of remuneration.

Corporate Office: 401-A, 4th Floor, Block A, DLF Cyber Park, Sector-20, NH-8, Gurugram, Haryana-122 016, India, IRDAI
Aviva: Confidential Regd. N0.122, CIN U66010DL2000PLC107880 Telephone: 1800-103-7766, Website:- https://avivaindia.com



ANNEXURE B

5. Review:
The BNRC and the Board shall review the NED Policy:
a. at least once in every financial year, or

b. as and when the Board considers it appropriate, or

c. as and when the underlying laws governing the NED Policy undergoes any change including any
relevant change in the Insurance Act, 1938, IRDAI Prescriptions, Companies Act, 2013 and relevant
provisions of the Companies Act including applicable rules thereunder.
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Part IT
Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Key Managerial Persons or KMPs play significant roles in the conduct of affairs of the Company and serve the
Company as its primary drivers of business and strategy in adherence to all applicable law to meet the
expectations of the Board, shareholders, policyholders and all other stakeholders including the Government.

The Company has been committed to the adoption of fair employment, equal opportunity and prudent
compensation practices. The approach of the Company to compensation has always been to drive meritocracy
within the framework of prudent risk management. Further, the Company upholds the principle of advancement,
through talent and performance, while ensuring diversity of workplace through efforts to recruit, develop and
retain the most talented people from a diverse resource pool. This Policy is intended to establish a framework
and guiding principles for appointment and compensation of the KMPs of the Company that is in harmony with
the stated commitments of the Company and confirms to the requirements of law for the time being in force.

The appointment of KMPs shall be by the Board on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. Further, the appointment of Appointed Actuary shall be in accordance with the IRDAI (Actuarial,
Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024. The appointment of the Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer and Appointed Actuary shall take effect on or after the date of approval by the
Competent Authority. The Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) shall be appointed for a minimum fixed tenure of not
less than 3 years.

1. Policy:
This Policy shall be called the Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Key Managerial Persons of the
Company (KMP Policy) and shall be applicable from 01 April 2023.

2. Scope:
The policy shall govern and administer all aspects of the KMP Remuneration, including but not limited to:
e Fixed Pay including allowances,

Perquisites,

Retirement Benefits,

Variable Pay including incentives,

Bonus,

Share Linked Instruments,

Joining Bonus/ Bonus in lieu of Loss of Bonus, Buyouts etc.

The BNRC shall ensure that every KMP Remuneration adheres to the principles and procedures laid down under this
Policy and follows the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder,
and the Insurance Act, 1938 read with appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions in this regard.

Further, the BNRC, in consultation with the Risk Management Committee of the Board, shall from time to
time ensure that:

a. The KMP Remuneration is adjusted for all types of risk,

b. KMP Remuneration outcomes are symmetric with risk outcomes,

c. Payment of KMP Remuneration are sensitive to the time horizon of the risk, and

d. The mix of cash, equity and other forms of remuneration are consistent with risk alignment.

Apart from the above, the BNRC and the Risk Management Committee of the Board shall from time to time
ensure that every KMP Remuneration is risk adjusted through quantitative and qualitative measures of credit,
market and liquidity risks.
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3. Institutional Performance for determination of Variable Pay and revision of Fixed Pay of the
KMPs:
The KMPs being primary drivers of the business and strategy of the Company, their remuneration in terms
of Variable Pay has to be harmonious with the performance of the Company. Therefore, the BNRC, while
considering the Variable Pay for the KMPs of the Company for any given period, shall ensure that such
Variable Pay to the KMPs commensurate with the overall performance of the Company during the period.
Besides, the Company, while considering variable pay or revision of fixed pay structure of any of the KMPs,
shall take into account the market movements, such as market positioning of the Company, experience or
exposure of KMP etc. The minimum parameters of institutional performance, which shall be taken into account
by the BNRC for determination of their Variable Pay of the KMPs for any period or for revision of Fixed Pay
shall be:

a. Overall financial soundness of the Company, such as net-worth position, solvency, Growth in AUM, Net Profit,
and/or Embedded Value, Value of New Business including any other indicator that reflects the overall financial
soundness;

b. Compliance status of the Company with respect to requirements under Expenses of Management
Regulations;

c. Claim efficiency of the Company in terms of settlement and outstanding;

d. Improvement in overall grievance redressal status of the Company over the period previous to the
one under assessment;

€. Reduction in Unclaimed Amounts due to the policyholders of the Company over the period previous
to the one under assessment;

f. Improvement in persistency (37" month to 615t month); and
g. Overall Compliance status of the Company with respect to all applicable laws.

h. Any other factor that the BNRC considers appropriate and in line with the business plan, strategy and
priorities of the Company.

Numeric weightage arrived on the basis of institutional performance on each of the above parameters shall
be suitably configured by the BNRC for the MD/CEO/WTDs and other KMPs depending on their respective
roles. Such numeric weightage shall constitute at least 60% of the total weightage in the performance assessment
matrix of MD/CEOQ/WTDs, balance 40% will be decided by the BNRC from time to time keeping in view the business
priorities, business strategy of the company and market dynamics. At least 30% of the total weightage in the
performance assessment matrix of other KMPs individually.

The deterioration in the financial performance of the Company including the above-defined parameters or
deterioration in overall performance of the KMP shall lead to a contraction in the total amount of Variable
Pay which may even be reduced to zero.

4, Fixed and Variable Pay:

To ensure effective alignment of compensation with prudent risk taking, the BNRC will take into account
adherence to the risk framework in conjunction with which the financial plan/ targets have been formulated.
The KMP Remuneration budget of the Company will be based on projected levels of business performance
(Group + Aviva Life Insurance, India) and staffing requirements, revenue generation and the other relevant
parameters. Bonus awards are performance related, and will be based on a combination of Group, Business
Unit and Individual performance over an appropriate period. Individual performance will be assessed taking into
account a combination of financial and non-financial performance metrics.

a. The Company will have a judicious and prudent approach to KMP Remuneration and will not use such
KMP Remuneration as the sole lever to attract and retain employees. KMP Remuneration will take into
account a mix of external market pay and internal equity.
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b. The total compensation will be a prudent mix of fixed pay and variable pay.

Fixed pay will include basic pay, allowances, perquisites, contribution towards superannuation/ retirals
and any other form of benefits including reimbursable perquisites.

The Variable Pay to any KMP shall be ‘performance-based’ using measures of individual, unit or group
performance that do not create incentives for inappropriate risk taking. ‘Performance based incentives’
shall be aligned with long term value creation and the time horizon of risks to which the Company may
be exposed. Any variable pay or performance incentive shall be paid/ granted to any KMP only once
during a financial year.

¢. The Variable Pay shall be in the form of Share Linked Instruments or Long-Term Cash Benefit or a mix
of Cash Benefit and Share Linked Instruments.

d. The structure of Variable Pay shall be as under:

i. The Variable Pay shall be both in cash and non-cash forms in accordance with the Aviva Group
Annual Bonus Plan, Aviva Group Long Term Incentive Plan (RSU/ CSAR and / or CSAP)
of the company as applicable from time to time.

ii. Variable Pay structure of any KMP shall be in accordance with the IRDAI guidelines for the
corresponding period and shall not exceed 300% of the Fixed Pay. Where variable pay is up to 200%
of the Fixed Pay, a minimum of 50% of the variable pay shall be through grant of RSU/ CSAR and/or
CSAP under the Aviva Group Long Term Incentive Plan and/or the Aviva Group Annual
Bonus Plan. The same limit would be 70%, in case the variable pay is above 200% of the fixed
pay. The variable pay structure to be aligned with the IRDAI guidelines and Internal Aviva Group
policies. The deterioration in the financial performance of the Company or deterioration in overall
performance of the KMP shall lead to a contraction in the total amount of Variable Pay which may
even be reduced to zero.

iii. A minimum of 50% of the total Variable Pay must invariably be under deferral arrangements and
the deferral period shall be a minimum of three years. The first such vesting shall accrue after one
year from the commencement of the deferral period. Vesting shall be no faster than on a pro-rata
basis and shall not take place more frequently than once in a year to ensure a proper assessment of
risks before the application of ex-post adjustments.

No deferment of variable pay unless dictated as per standard deferral under Aviva policy need to be
applied in case the total Variable Pay with respect to any KMP is equal to or less than Rs Twenty-
Five lakhs for any given particular year.

iv. Grant of RSU/CSAR and/or CSAP under the Aviva Group Long Term Incentive Plan or the Aviva
Group Annual Bonus Plan as a component of Variable Pay shall be reckoned at the fair value of
such scheme as on the date of grant.

v. The total number of RSU/CSAR and/or CSAP issued, granted under the Aviva Group Long Term
Incentive Plan or Aviva Group Annual Bonus Plan in a year shall not exceed 1% (One percent)
of the paid-up capital of the Company and at any point in time the total RSU/CSAR and/or CSAP held
by the employees including KMPs shall not exceed 5% of the paid-up capital.

vi. For clearance of doubts in interpretation and classification of Variable Pay under this sub-clause, the
flow diagram annexed to the Policy (Annexure — A) may be referred.

e. In case of resignation / death of any KMP prior to the deferral period, the deferred pay may be paid as
per the employment contract of the KMP / applicable group / company policy. In case of reappointment
on retirement, the deferred pay due at the time of retirement (i.e., prior to reappointment) shall be paid
only for the respective years to which it was originally deferred.

f. In case of resignation / termination of any KMP from the company or termination by the insurer in case
of fraud/criminal offences etc., the deferred pay shall be forfeited in accordance with the provisions of
Malus and Claw-back Policy of the Aviva Group Plan Rules.
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g. The level of deferral of variable pay for any KMPs, for the purposes of meeting the requirement, should
include deferred annual bonus, Restricted Share Awards and any Long-Term Incentive Awards. It may
be necessary to defer an additional portion of the Annual Bonus in order to satisfy his requirement. This
requirement could be waived if total variable pay is less than the minimum stated within the regulatory
requirement, currently INR 2500000.

h. This deferral requirement remains applicable to any bonus awarded as part of leaver arrangements of
KMPs.

5. Prohibited modes of KMP Remuneration:

a. KMPs of the Company shall not be issued or granted any sweat equity shares.

b. Guaranteed bonuses are inconsistent with sound risk management or the pay-for performance principles
and hence shall not be part of any remuneration plan, unless limited to the first year of employment in
place of a lost bonus in line with the Aviva Group Policy.

c. The Company shall not grant Severance Pay other than accrued benefits like gratuity, pension, etc., to
Key Managerial Persons except in cases where it is mandatory under any applicable provision of the
statute. However, it is clarified that Severance Pay does not include notice period pay. Therefore, the
Policy does not restrict payment of contractual notice period pay to any KMP upon resignation or
termination of services of such KMP, as the case may be.

6. Age and Term of Office of the Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer or any Whole-time Director

a. Subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, and the Insurance Act,
1938 read with appropriate IRDAI Prescriptions being in force from time to time, the position of the Managing
Director, Chief Executive Officer or any Whole-time Director shall not be held by the same incumbent in the
Company for a continuous period of more than fifteen years.

Provided that, the individual shall be eligible for re-appointment as Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer or
any Whole-time Director, as the case may be, in the Company, if considered necessary and desirable by the
board, after a cooling off period of at least one year, subject to the individual meeting other applicable conditions as set
forth by the Board and Shareholders from time to time.

b. No person shall continue as Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer or any Whole-time Director, as the case
may be, with the Company beyond the age of seventy years.

Provided that the Board and shareholders of the Company may spedify an age limit lower than seventy years
for the appointment of a person as the Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer or any Whole-time Director of
the Company.

c. In the event, the Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer or any Whole-time Director is appointed by the
promoter of the Company, then the incumbent shall not hold the said posts for a continuous period of more than
twelve years.

Provided that, the Company in the event, the Board and the Shareholders of the Company requires the incumbent to
continue in the office for a period of more than 12 years, the same shall be done subject to necessary approval of the
IRDAL However, even in that case, Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer or any Whole-time Director shall
not be eligible to hold office for a collective period of more than fifteen years.
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6. Governance of KMP Remuneration:

a.

The BNRC shall have the oversight over design, review and implementation of the Policy. In line with the
prevalent law and the Group Remuneration Policy and governance

The BNRC will be composed of such Non-Executive Directors as may be prescribed under the applicable
statutory/regulatory provisions from time to time including the IRDAI (Corporate Governance for Insurers)
Regulations 2024, as considered appropriate by the Board.

For Accounting purposes, where annual remuneration paid to KMP’s individually exceeds INR
4,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Four Crores only), such excess shall be borne by the Shareholders of the
company (Aviva India) and be debited to the Profit & Loss Account.

Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer or the Whole-time Director of the Company shall present
the financial and strategic plans for the Company to the Board annually. The financial plan/ targets shall
be formulated in conjunction with a risk framework with limit structures for various areas of risk/ lines of
business, within which the Company should operate to achieve the financial plan. The BNRC shall work
in close coordination with Risk Management Committee to achieve effective alignment between
compensation and risks.

The BNRC shall from time to time define the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the Managing Director,
Chief Executive Officer, Whole-time Directors and KMPs of the Company based on the financial and
strategic plans approved by the Board. KMP Remuneration shall be aligned to both financial and non-
financial indicators of performance including controls like risk management, process perspective,
customer perspective and others for the Company.

The BNRC shall recommend to the Board for approval of the Fixed Pay, Perquisites, Retirals, Variable Pay
that includes Cash Benefits, Non-Cash Benefits, RSU/CSAR and/or CSAP, Deferred share awards and
Stock Option Grants for the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, whole-time Directors and
KMPs of the Company. This will be subject to necessary approvals from the regulators and shareholders,
wherever applicable.

The BNRC will approve the organizational performance norms for variable pay and assess the
achievement against such norms including reviewing credit, market, liquidity risks, material operational
risks and various other risks and factor in show cause notices, strictures issued, and penalties levied by
IRDAI, if any as well as any internally identified compliance failures. The KMP Remuneration shall be in
compliance with all requirements law for the time being in force. Based on such an assessment, the BNRC
shall recommend Variable Pay to the Board for approval. The BNRC may also recommend *nil’ variable
pay based on its assessment.

The Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer and the Whole-time Directors of the Company shall be
responsible for execution of the KMP Remuneration strategy, practices and plan (covering both Fixed Pay
and Variable Pay) for the Company, in line with the KMP Remuneration Policy.

The Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer and the Whole-time Directors of the Company shall ensure
that staff engaged in internal audit, compliance and risk control functions are compensated independent
of business areas they oversee, and the compensation of such employees is in line with rest of the
Company.

Compliance with the IRDAI (Expenses of Management, including Commission, of Insurers)
Regulations, 2024 (herein referred as EOM Regulations), as amended from time to time:

In case the actual expenses of management of Aviva India exceeds by 10% or more of the projected
expenses of management levels as per the Business plan formulated in terms of Regulation 5 of the EOM
Regulations, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure that no variable pay shall be
payable to Managing Director (MD) / Chief Executive Officer (CEO) /Whole-Time Directors (WTD) and
Key Management Persons (KMPs) for the said financial year.
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k. In case, Aviva India exceeds the limits of expenses as specified in the IRDAI (Expenses of Management,
including Commission, of Insurers) Regulations, 2024, as amended from time to time, there shall be
Restriction of performance incentive to Managing Director (MD) / Chief Executive Officer (CEO) / Whole
Time Director (WTD) and Key Management Personnel (KMPs) and/or any other action as specified by the
Regulations.

I.  The Head of Human Resources of the Company shall present the KMP Remuneration Policy for review to
the BNRC annually.

7. Long Term Payments

a. The Long-term part of the Variable Pay shall be in non-cash form in accordance with the Aviva Group
Annual Bonus Plan and Aviva Group Long Term Incentive Plan. RSU/CSAR and/or CSAP and
any Deferred Share Awards, currently governed by the Aviva Group Long Term Incentive Plan as amended
from time to time aim at achieving twin objectives of aligning KMP Remuneration to long term interests
of the Aviva Group as well as retention of high potential employees of the Company. Long Term Variable
Pay aim at aligning the behavior of KMPs to long-term view of the performance of the Company.

b. The RSU/CSAR and/or CSAP and any Deferred Share Awards will be granted in accordance with the
Aviva Group Long Term Incentive Plan and Annual Bonus Plan, as amended from time to time, and duly
approved by the BNRC and shareholders, and this Policy.

c. The RSU/CSAR and/or CSAP and any Deferred Share Awards granted by the Company shall have a
minimum one-year vesting period, and thereafter vesting shall take place (subject to meeting prescribed
vesting criteria) as per vesting schedule on an annual basis over three or more years, and follows the no
faster than pro-rata basis for vesting. Should the Company and BNRC consider other forms of Share
Linked Instruments (subject to obtaining necessary and appropriate approvals), it will duly consider
applying Retention Period for such other forms of Share Linked Instruments.

d. The long-term variable Pay in the form of Aviva Group Restricted Share Units Plan shall be applicable and
be effective from April 01, 2024. However, for the financial year 2023-24, the Company shall use Phantom
Shares in accordance with the clarifications rendered by the IRDAI, as the share-linked instrument
towards long term variable part of the remuneration of the KMPs.

8. Malus and Claw back
a. The Company shall be governed by the prevalent Malus and Claw-back principles of the Aviva Group as
amended from time to time.

9. Review:
The BNRC shall review the KMP Policy:
a. at least once in every financial year, or

b. as and when the Board considers it appropriate, or

c. as and when the underlying laws governing the KMP Policy undergoes any change including any
relevant change in the Insurance Act, 1938, IRDAI Prescriptions, Companies Act, 2013 and relevant
provisions of the Companies Act including applicable rules thereunder.

10. Disclosure:
The Company shall make adequate disclosure on the amount of remuneration paid to the KMPs of the
Company in the Notes to the Accounts forming part of Annual Financial Statements. For transparency, the
Company may endeavor to present the disclosures under the heads recommended below.
a. Qualitative Disclosures
i. Information relating to the composition and mandate of the BNRC.
ii. Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes.

iii. Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the remuneration
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processes, including the nature and type of the key measures used to take account of these risks.

iv. Description of the ways in which the Company seeks to link performance during a performance
measurement period with levels of remuneration.

b. Quantitative Disclosures

i. Details of the Remuneration awarded for the Financial year to the MD/CEQO/WTD mentioning Pay,
Allowances and Perquisites, Variable Pay including Share Linked Benefits, Joining Bonus, accrued
benefits like gratuity, pension, if any, etc. classifying the same under fixed and variable, deferred and
non-deferred as applicable, the remuneration debited to Revenue Account (Policyholders Account), and
Profit Loss Account (Shareholders Account).

ii. Details of the outstanding deferred Remuneration of MD/CEO/WTD at the end of the Financial Year
mentioning name designation, financial year (remuneration pertaining to), nature of remuneration and
the amount outstanding.

iii. The above disclosure in the note to account shall be made as per the format prescribed under the
IRDAI prescription from time to time.
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Annexure A: Variable Pay Participant Guide

| Annual Remuneration of KMPs ————

Fixed Pay (FP) Variable Pay (VP)
Min. 25% - Max 66.66% Min. 33.33% - Max 75.00%
(Min 50% to Max 300%)

e Basic pay

o Allowances

e Perquisites

o Retiral benefits

e Other fixed items of compensation

Variable Pay Components

e Cash + Non Cash Components

e Incentives, Bonus (performance based)
aligned with long term value creation.

e To be paid only once in a year

e Deterioration of financial performance of
the insurer should trigger contraction
that may reduce to Zero

VP > 33.33% < 66.66% VP > 66.66% < 75.00%
Min. 50% of VP should be non-cash Min. 70% of VP should be non-cash

Min. 50% of VP to be Deferred
Deferral period shall be min. 3 years

¢ In retirement/resignation/death entitlement as per Policy
e Appointment after retirement — pre-retirement entitlement

to follow
e Deferral entitlement forfeiture on termination by
enforcement
Cash Component of the VP Non-cash Component of the VP
As per the Aviva Group Bonus Plan As per Aviva Group Long Term Incentive
Plan

o Staggered vesting on a pro-rata basis

o First vesting after one year from deferral

¢ One vesting per year

e No deferment for an amount < Rs. 25
lakh
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( ANNEXURE C
at CHANDRASEKARAGN GSSOCIATES®

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the year ended March 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
2nd Floor, Prakashdeep Building,

7 Tolstoy Marg, New Delhi - 110001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutoryprovisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Aviva Life Insurance Company India
Limited (“hereinafter called the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and
c ompliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder; Not Applicable

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
applicable only to the extent of dematerialization of shares of the Company

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’): Not Applicable

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital ari Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2018

11-F, Pocket-IV, Mayur Vihar Phase-], Delhi-110 091,
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client to the extent of securities issued;

(g9) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

{(vi) The Management has identified and confirmed the following Laws as being specifically
applicable to the Company:

1. Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India Act, 1999,
2. Insurance Act, 1938 and various Rules, Reguiations & Guidelines issued
thereunder, including circulars issued from time to time

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i} Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015: Not
Applicable

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisionsof
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above axcept as
mentioned below:

1.As per Corporate Governance Guidelines as issued by Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India (IRDAI), composition of Audit committee should be minimum
three directors and majority should be independent directors, but the meeting held on 18th
May 2023 and 8th August 2023, out of 4 members only 2 are independent directors.
However, the composition of the committee was revised thereafter by appointing one more
Independent Director.

2. As per the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, composition of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee should be three or more non-executive directors
out of which not less than one-half shall be independent director, but in the meeting held on
18th May 2023 and 8™ November 2023, out of 5 members only 2 are independent directors.
However, the composition of the committee was revised thereafter.

We further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except in cases where meetings
were convened at a shorter notice for which necessary approvals obtained as per applicable
provisions}, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participatian at the
meeting, AW L)
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All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as

recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the
Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period no major event has happened, which are
deemed to have major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For Chandrasekaran Associates
Company Secretaries

FRN: P1988DE0Q02500

Peer Review Certificate No.: 41856/2023

Shashikant Tiwari '.4'\/
Partner

Membership No. F11919
Certificate of Practice No. 13050
UDIN: FO11919F000329390

Date: 08.05.2024
Place: Delhi

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A
and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure-A

To,

The Members

Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
2nd Floor Prakashdeep Building,

7 Tolstoy Marg, New Delhi — 110001

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4, Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management, Qur examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Chandrasekaran Associates

Company Secretaries

FRN: P1988DE002500

Peer Review Certificate No.: 4186/2023
A Y

0 / R ./ \C 3 \
~ = \

/- NEW DELHH |3

\ S
Shashikant Tiwari '
Partner

Membership No. F11919
Certificate of Practice No. 13050
UDIN: FO11919F000329320

-

Date: 08.05.2024
Place: Delhi
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The Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board's Report For Financial Year

2023-24

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

AVIVA

Life Insurance

ANNEXURE D

As an integral part of its CSR obligations, Company has chosen for Community Services including day
care facility for children at Molarbund Delhi impacting over 300 children every academic year across
both Junior and Senior Balvatika.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S.No.| Name of Director |Designation / NatureNumber of meetings| Number of meetings
of Directorship of CSR Committee | of CSR Committee
held during the year| attended during the
year
1 Mr Asit Rath Chief Executive 1 1
Officer and Managing
Director
2 |Mr Lee Patrick Non-Executive 1 1
Callaghan Director
3 [Mr PD Narang Non-Executive 1 1
Director
4 [Mr Suresh Mahalingam |[Non-Executive 1 1
independent Director
5 Ms Sumithasri Eranti [Non-Executive 1 1
\Venkataramagupta Independent Director

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. -

hitps://www.avivaindia.com/sites/default/files/CSR%20Policy 0.pdf

hitps://www.avivaindia.com/

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). —
Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if
any — Not Applicable

SI. No. [Financial Year |Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set-off
from preceding financial years [for the financial year, if any (in
(in Rs) Rs)
1
Total Not Applicable Not Applicable
CIN - U66010DL2000PLC 107880 P\ T N
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6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) — Rs. (719,882,000) [Net Loss]

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) — NIL

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. —
Not Applicable

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any — Not Applicable

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year — NIL

8. (@) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Not Applicable

Total Amount Spent for

the Financial Year. (in

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule Vil as per second proviso

Rs.) section 135(6). to section 135(5).
Amount. Date of Name of the Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

(1] @ 3) (4) (5) (6) @) () ®) (10) (L))

SI. Name| Item |Local |Location of|Proje |/Amount|/Amount{ Amount |Mode of Mode of
No bf the| from the | area |the project.| ct |allocate|spent in|transferr|Implem | Implementation -
Proje| list of [es/No) durati|d for the] the ed to |entation Through
ct | activitie on. | project | current [Unspent|- Direct| Implementing

sin (in Rs.).[financiall CSR |[(Yes/No Agency
Schedul L Year (in| Account )-
e Vil to State |Distri Rs.). for the Name psR ]
the Act. ct project Registration
as per number.
Section
135(6)
(in Rs.).
1.
Total
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Not
Applicable
M| 2 3 4 (5) (6) 7) (8)
Sl. | Name Iltem |Locall Location of |[Amount{ Mode of Mode of implementation -
No. | of the |from the|area | the project. | spent implementation| Through implementing agency.
Project| list of |(Yes/ for the - Direct
activities| No). roject es/No).
I:’,: ! ©) State.[District. (li)n 'J;s_)_ 1 ) Name. CSR registration
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Total

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — Not Applicable
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) — NA

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any — Not Applicable

Si. No.

Particular

Amount (in Rs.)

(®

135(5)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section

(ii)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

(iii)
(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities
of the previous financial years, if any

v) mount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] |Not Applicable
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable
Sk No.| Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to Amount
Financial [transferred to| spent in the | any fund specified under | remaining
Year. Unspent CSR| reporting Schedutle Vil as per to be spent
Account Financial section 135(6), if any. in
under sec!:lon Year (in Rs.). Name of| Amount| Date of su.cceeqmg
135 (6) (in th in Rs). |t P financial
Rs.) h ed (in Rs). [transfer. years. (in
el Rs.)
1.
Total

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s): Not Applicable

IRDA Reg. No. 122

m | @ 3 4) (5) (6) 0] (8) (2]
Sl. No.|Project| Name | Financial | Project | Total |Amount Cumulative Status of
ID. | of the Yearin |duration.| amount |[spenton| amount |the project
Project., which the allocated| the spent at -
project was for the |project in| the end of |Completed
commenced. project the reporting | /Ongoing.
(in Rs.). [reporting| Financial
Financial| Year. (in
Year (in
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Rs). Rs.)

Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year — Not Applicable
(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is

registered, their address etc.
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location

of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5). Not Applicable

D

k_{";.' \:__gj LA U\_’{ll,l __— l%\,\_

(Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director) (Chairperson CSR Committee).

CIN - U66010DL2000PLC107880 1 EZEN
IRDA Reg. No. 122 =i APAI
Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited

Head Office: 401-A, 4th Floor, Block A, DLF Cyber Park, 1800-180-2266 / 0124-2709046  customerservices@avivaindia.com  www.avivaindia.com
Sector-20, NH-8,Gurugram, Haryana - 122016 1800-103-7766

Tel.: +91 124 2709000, Fax: +91 124 2571210

Registered Office: 2nd Floor, Prakashdeep Building,

7, Tolstoy Marg, New Delhi-110 001, India

Tel.: +91 11 41510933, Fax: +91 11 41510922



J.C. Bhalla & €o... Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountarits Chartered Accountants
B-5, Sector 6 221-223,Deen Dayal Upadhyay Marg

Noida — 201301 New Delhi = 110002
Uttar Pradesh

Independent Auditor's Report
Tothe Members of Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aviva Life Insurance Company
India Limited (‘the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Revenue Account (also known as the "Policyholders Account" or "Technical Account"), the
Profit and Loss Account (also called “Shareholders” Account” or "Non-Technical Account”),
the Receipts and Payments Account for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, which we have signed under reference to this report.

It our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explahations given to
us, the aforesaid financial staternents give the information required by provisions of the
Insurance Act, 1938, as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015 (the
"Insurance Act") read with Insurance Regulatory and Development Act, 1999 (the "IRDA
Act"), Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial
Statements and Auditors' Report of Insurance Companies} Regulations, 2002 (the "IRDA
Financial Statements Regulations”), order/ directions, circulars, guidelines issued by the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (the "IRDAI”) in this regard and
by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, (the Act) to the extent applicable and in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 to the
extent applicable to Insurance Companies:

a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024;

b) inthe case of the Revenue Account, of the net surplus for the year ended on March 31,
2024;

¢) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on March
31, 2024;and

d) in the case of the Receipts and Payments Account, of the receipts and payments for the
year ended on March 31, 2024.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section. of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon.

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report with Annexuares
thereto, Management Report and Corporate Governance Report which does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance / conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and Receipts and Payments of the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Act read with IRDA Act, the
IRDA Financial Statement Regulations and orders/directions/ circulars issued by the IRDAI
in this regard, and accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the. Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection an application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
OT erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors are either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as-a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act"),we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professionat skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
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» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

o EHvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion.

* Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern; and

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide
those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare cireumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters

The actuarial valuation of liabilities for life policies in force and for policies where premium
has been discontinued but liability exists as at March 31, 2024 is the responsibility of the
actuary appointed by the Company (the" Appointed Actuary"). Such liabilities have been
duly certified by the Appointed Actuary and in his opinion, the assumptions for such
valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the IRDAI and
Actuarial Practice Standards issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with
the IRDAL Accordingly, we have relied upon the Appointed Actuary's certificate in this
regard for forming our opinion on the valuation of liabilities for life policies in force and for
policies in respect of which premium has been discontinued but liability exists, as contained
in the accompanying financial statements of -the Company for the year ended March 31,
2024.0Our opinion is not moditied in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, according to information,
explanations given to us, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its directors
during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits Jaid down under section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act and the rules thereunder read with Section 34A of the
Insurance Act.

As required by the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, we have issued a separate
certificate dated May 09, 2024 certifying the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
Schedule C to the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations.

Further to our comments in the Certificate referred to in paragraph above, as required by
Statements Regulations, read with Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
accompanying financial statements:

b) In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} As the Company's financial accounting system is centralized at Head Office, no
returns for the purpose of audit are prepared at the branches of the Company;

d) The Balance Sheet, the Revenue Account, the Profit and Loss Account, and the
Receipts and Payments Account dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

e) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, investments have been valued in accordance with the provisions of the
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g)

h)

)

Insurance Act, the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations and / or orders /
directions/ circulars/ guidelines issued by IRDALI in this behalf;

In our opinion and best of information and according to the explanation given to s,
the balance sheet, revenue account, Profit and Loss Account and the Réceipts and
Payment account dealt with by this report comply with the requirement of the
Accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with read with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021(as amended) and Companies
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, to the extent they are not
inconsistent with the accounting principles prescribed in the IRDA Financial
Statements Regulations and orders/ directions issued by IRDAL in this regard;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the accounting policies selected by the Company are appropriate and are.
in compliance with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with the Companies(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, to the extent they are
not inconsistent with the accounting principles prescribed in the IRDA Financial
Statements Regulations and orders / directions issued by the IRDAI in this behalf:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A” wherein we have expressed an
unmodified opinion;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and. Auditors), Rules, 2014 (as amended), in

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

‘The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31,
2024 on its financial position in its financial statements as referred fo in Note 19
of Section C of schedule 16 to the financial statements;
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ii.

iii,

iv.

The liability for insurance contracts is determined by the Company's Appointed
Actuary referred to in Other Matters paragraph above, on which we have
placed reliance; and the Company did not have any other long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses. Refer to Significant Accounting Policy para 8 of schedule 16 in the
financial statements;

There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education arid Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March
31, 2024; and

. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understandirig, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(jes),
including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties'), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other person or entities, identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security -or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

‘The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended

March 31, 2024.
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vi,

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies. (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

J.C. Bhalla & Co. Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N FRN : 000038
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Place : Noida

Place : New Delhi

Date : May 10, 2024 Date : May 10, 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Certificate referred to in paragraph l4under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ forming part of the Independent Auditor’s Report
dated May 09,2024

To _ _
The Members of
Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 11
September, 2023 with Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited (the “Company”).

This certificate is issued to comply with the provisions of paragraphs 3 and 4 of Scheduile C
read with regulation 3 of the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation
of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations 2022, (the
‘IRDA Financial Statements Regulations’)

Management’s responsibility

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for complying with the provisions of the
Insurance Act, 1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act 2015 ( the
“Insurance Act”), the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 (the
“IRDA Act”), the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, orders/ directions/ circulars issued
by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (the “IRDAI”)} which
incfudes the preparation and maintenance of books of accounts and the Management Report.
This includes collecting, collating and validating data and designing, implementing and
monitoring of internal controls suitable for ensuring the aforesaid and applying an
appropriate basis of preparation that are reasonable in the circumstances and providing all
relevant information to the IRDAI.

Auditors’ responsibility

Pursuant to the requirements of the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, it is our
responsibilityto obtain reasonable assurance and form an opinion based on our audit and
examination of books of accounts and other records maintained by the Company as to
whether the Company has complied with the matters contained in paragraph 3 and 4 of
Schedule C read with Regulation 3 of IRDA Financial Statemenis Regulations as of and for
year ended March 31, 2024.

We have audited the financial statements of the Company as of and for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024, on which we issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our reports
dated May 09, 2024. Our audit of these financial statements were conducted in accordance.
with the Standards on Auditing as prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Companies Act,
2013 and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAI ). Those Standards require that we plan and perform the
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audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. Our audits were not planned and performed in connection with any
transactions to identify matters that may be of potential interest to third parties.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAL
The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the independence and other ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAIL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control ('SQC") 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements issuéd by the
ICAL

Opinion
In accordance with information and explanations given to us and to the best of our

knowledge and belief and based on our audit and examination of the books of account and
other records maintained by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, we certify that:

a. We have reviewed the attached Management Report to the financial statement for year
ended March 31, 2024, and on the basis of our review, we have not found any
‘apparent mistake or material inconsistencies in the Management Report read with the
financial statements;

b. Based on management representations and compliance certificates submitted to the
Board of Directors by the officers. of the Company charged with compliance and the
same being noted by the Board, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the Company has not complied with the terms and conditions of
registration as stipulated by the IRDAT;

c. We have verified the cash balances, to the extent considered necessary with. the books
of accounts and securities relating to Company’s loans and investments as at March
31, 2024, by actual inspection or on the basis of certificates/ confirmations received
from the Custodians and/or Depository Participants appointed by the Company, as
the case may be. As at March 31, 2024, the Company does not have reversions and life
interests;

d. Base on management representation, the Company is not a trustee of any trust; and

e. No part of the assets of the Policyholders’ Funds has been directly or indirectly
applied in contravention to the provisions of the Insurance Act relating to the
application and investments of the Policyholders’ Funds.

10
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Restriction on Use

This certificate is issued at the request of the Company solely for use of the Company for
inclusion in the annual accounts in order to comply with the provisions of paragraph 3 and 4
of Schedule C, read with regulation 3 of the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations and is
not intended to be and should not be used for any other purpose without our prior consent.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other
purpose.

J.C. Bhalla & Co. Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountanis Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N FRN : 000038N
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Rajesh Sethi K.N. Gupta
Partner Partner
M.No: 085669 M.No: 009169 |
UDIN :24085669BKERY A3524 UDIN :24009169BKGFQS5291
Place : Noida Place : New Delhi

Date : May 10, 2024 Date : May 10, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Aviva
Life Insurance Company India Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024 '

[Referred to in paragraph 15 )] under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Aviva Life Insurance
Company India Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Aviva Life Insurance Company
India Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at
that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘the ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act including the
provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendrment) Act,
2015 (the “ Insurance Act”), the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999
(the ” IRDA Act”), the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, orders/directions issued by
the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (the “IRDATI") in this regard.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit-involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedure selected depend
on the auditors judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material mis-statermnents
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements.

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company;
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company;and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
13
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controls, material misstatermnents due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedutres may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

The actuarial valuation of liabilities for life policies in force and for policies where premium
has been discontinued but liability exists as at March 31, 2024 is the responsibility of the
actuary appointed by the Company (the "Appointed Actuary"). Such liabilities have been
duly certified by the Appointed Actuary and in his opinion, the assumptions for such
valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the IRDAI and
Actuarial Practice Standards issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with
the IRDAIL Accordingly, we have relied upon the Appointed Actuary's certificate in this
regard for forming our opinior on the valuation of liabilities for life policies in force and for
policies in respect of which premium has been discontinued but liability exists, as contaihed
in the accompanying financial statements of the Company for the yearMarch 31, 2024.
Accordingly, our opinion on the intérnal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, does not include reporting on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal controls over the valuation and accuracy of the aforesaid actuarial liabilities.

J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001111N
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Life Insurance

|Rs. '000] s {Rs. "000)
Pramiums earned (Nat) )
{a) Premburm 1 134,568,592 1,374,522
{b} Reinsurance ceded {7,99,713} (6,96,045)
lr.i Reinsurance accepted . . .
SubTetal’ 1,26,68,679 1,24,78,480
Inicome from Jnvestments
{2) interest, Dlvldends and Rent — Gress B1,14,528 72,44,250
{b) Profit on salefredemption of t 38,14,800 30,18,33%6
{ch iLoss) on safn/ redomption of lnvestments {1,64,385} (5,08,499)
{d) Transfer/Gain on revaluationfchange in i"air value 36,71,956 {24,67,129)
(e} Appmprmtlonfapmprlaﬂon Adjustmant a:munt . -
" Sub Total 1,54,37,053 72,587,008
Other Income
fa) Tther Income 33,474 3,00
(&) Cortribution from the Sharehalders’ Aszount
- fnwaéds extra mortallty thar_gp_; £ other charpes waived off 21,402 8,774
- towards excess of expense of management - 36,985
-~ towards deficit funding and others 11,11,781 15,16,248
TOTAL [A] . 2,!2,7!.5%% 1,1!,50&9:
Commisslen Expenses® 3 794,615 3518
Goods and Service Tax on Linked Charges 1,41,253 1,356,603
2 ing Ef 5 related to | @ Busines ‘3 26,588,156 2733785
Provision for Doubtful Advances 3,024 | 12,485
Bad debts waitten off [refer nota C.35 of Schedule 16) 2,34,518 -
Pravisian far Tax - -
Provisians {other than taxatian}
{al For diminution in the value of nvestments {Net} {2,22,171) 4,918
{B} Dthors - -
TUTAL (B): ' 36,41,755 ' 32,390,980
Benefits Pakd {Met) L] 1,00.61,312 1,10.00,2031
Bonuses Paid 21,809 19,510
Change i valuation of lability in respect of life polictes
[a} Gross 141,581,151 2,26,249
(B Amount ceded [n Reinsurance 12,48,5R0) 12,40,141)
[e] Amount accepted in Reinsurance - -
id) Reserve for discontinued policles {1,53,863) {58,818
Tatal ) - . L 2,38,61,723 1,79,45,988
TOTAL (B4€): . . 2,75,03,519 _2,1%,86,960
SURPLUS/{BEFICIT) (R)=(A)-(BI-{0) 17,69,076 1,863,299
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Shareholders' Account 17,68,427 1,59,833
Transier $o Other Reserves - -
i belng Funds fer Future Apprapeiatiens £49 3,416
TOTAL{D]. ~ . 17,658,076 . 1,63.245
— ———— ——
The brezk up of Total surplus is as under:
{a} Bonuges Paid 21,808 19,510
{b] Allogation of Bonus to polleyhalders: 73,617 59,417
1€} Surnlus shown In tha Revenue Account 17.69,076 1,632,249
Jg): Total Surplus: (Iate(bl+()): 18;58,502. - 252,176

*tncluding Rewards andfer remuneration to agents brukers or other intermediaries
We certify that all Expenses of Management (FOM in respect of [Ife insurance business transacted in India, by the Company, have been fully dehited te the Pollcyhalders® Revenue Account as
expenses, unless specificafly instructed by RDA| to do otherwlse,
Signlficant Accounting Palicies and Nates tothe Atcounts i5
The Schedule referred to herein ferm an [ntegrat part of the Palicyholders’ Account.
As per our report of even date attached,

For . C Bhalla & €o. For Thakur, Valdyanath Alyar & Co. Aviva Ufe Insurance Company India Limtted //2/\/ ’
I -

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants CIN U6601001.2000PLCIDTRED
m Reglstration No. OD Firmi Registration Mo, 000038N Far and en behalf of the Board of Birectors -
@‘( el ;}?E’]b‘)—’ L-@»\:wwf&-a.«gu,
-
JN—— 5 -
Rajesh Sethi K. N. Gupta $urnkh35ri Erantl Venkata Asit Rath
Partner _ Partner Chalrpersun Manzglng Tirector &
Mambership No. 085659 Membershlp No. 003163 DIN 07087197 Chief Executive Dfficer
pate: | et Pt ouy) ) o e Yoo DIN 055615
Flace; H ‘1\\ _.,;/ -
Meod e Obeis s : \l ; f*'f"
A5 5 ; : u’rﬁmﬁ Aa) ara
: rf Directer
021962 DIN 0009193202
L N Vowsd #1
Senall Athafje Kn.:ma'l Ially
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: 4 {? - _r,w 3% Membership No, A22020

Place:
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] oy .} S i 67 A (. _.
Amount, tran_sferred feom Policyholders' Aceount Technical Account] 17,68,427 1,59,833
Income From Investments

{a) Interest, Dividands and Rant - Gross 3.80,432 3,55,195

{b} Profit on sale/redemption of investments 1,225 7,088

l¢) (Loss) an sale/ redemption of investments {856) [1,392)
Other Income - -
TOTAL (&) ) 21,59,428 5,20,924
Expense other than thase directly related to Insurance business ELS 122,974 1,01,281
Managerial Remunaration {Refer nate C.8 of Schedule 16} 28,058 50,823
Bad debts writtan off [refer note 35 of Schedule 16) 19,257 -
Provisions {Other than taxation)

{a) Far diminution in the value of Investments (net} [19,257) (B0]

{k] Provision far daubtful debts - -

[c) Othars ) - .
Cantribution to the Pollcyholders® Azcount [Technical Account)

- towards excess of expense of managemant - 36,989

- towards deficit funding and athers 11,11,781 15,16,248

TOTAL (8) B 12 52,811 17,05,281
Profitf{Loss) befora tax 8,96,617 |11.B4,357}
Provision far Taxatian - -
Profit/{Loss) aftar tax 8,065,617 {11,84,357)
APPROPRIATIONS

{a) Balance at the beginnlng of the year {1,53,37,711) (3,47,53,354)
(B} Interim dividends paid during the year - -
(t] Proposed final diidend - -
{d) Dividend distrlbution nn tax - -

__{=} Transfer to reserves/ other aczounts - -
Laks earrled forward to. the B Sheet ;1&041-5054) [1‘.;5=2,=3?;?11]
Earpings par equity share ) [in Rs.) [InRs.]
Basic and diluted loss per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 par share} 041 {0.59)
Significant Accounting Pellcies and Notes to the Accounts 16
The Schetlule referred to herein form an integra| part of the Sharehalder’s account.

As par our report of even date attached, »""“Z
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p Registration No. 0011115 Firm Registration Na. 38N For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors L”/ o
B " . /)w”
X . !
‘ Ko b S e il ike b -
_ v . oA

Rajesh Sethi K. N. Gupta + Sumithasrl Eranti Venkataramagipta Aslt Rath
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{A. 000)

. '000)
SOURCES DF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS:
SHARE CAPITAL 5 2,18,55,000 2,18,59,000
RESERVES AN SLRPLUS B - -
CREDIT/|BEBIT FAIR WALUE CHANGE ACCOUNT 101,650 -
Sub-Tétal - - 2,20,00,650 2,18,83,000
BORROWINGS 7 - .
POLICYHOLDERS” FUINDS: _
CREDIT/[OERIT] FAIR YALUE CHANGE ACCOUNT 1,35,013 5,427
POUCY LIARIUTIES
Hinked - indlvideal - Life - Non Participating 8,62,B67 3,134,773
Linked - Individual - Fenslan - Non Particpating 12,917 11,076
Linkéd - Group - t1le - Non Participating 3,150 3,242
Non Linked - {ndlvidua! - Life - Participating 3,60,865 2,24,153
Non linked - Individual - Pension - Partidpating 8,790 9,222
Non Linked - Inclvidual - Life - Non Participating 8.70,20,140 7.91,20,559
Wen Ldked - Indlvidual - Pension - Noa Particlpating 18,1%,923 18,71,429
Nan Linked - Group - Lfa - Nan Participating 10,04,370 9,23,917
Man Enked - Group - Fenslen - Non Partitpating 4B4 517
Maon tnked - Annulty - Non Partleipatiog B,18,357 7,11,264
Man Unked - Variable group 78,633 £4,984
Non Linked Health Mon Participating 3,27,046 3.07.582
INSLBRANCE RESERVES - -
FPROVISION FOR LINKED LEABILITIES
Inked - Individual - Eife - Participating 502,161 4,52,251
tnked - Individual - Pension - Partlcipating 32,550 35,813
ibnked - Individual - Life - Kan Participatln 3,15,78, 208 2,55,47661
Linked - Individual - Pensian - Neh Participating 23,40,771 27,18,597 -
Linked - Group - Ufe - Non Partlclpating 35,689,005 32,41,377
Discoritinged Pollcies Fund - Non Eaxment of gramium 13,37,123 14,90,982
Sub-Tgtat 13,15!3¢l'235- 11,?6,25;045
FUNDS FOR FUTURE APPRD PRI&TIQNS
Linked Par ('000)- R, BE1,398 {PY BGLBSS) Nan linkad Par ('00C) -Rs. 43,405 {PY 41,253] 9,04,8G3 9,04,154
JOTAL . i} + 1% 44,26 583 14&?3@
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
INVESTMENTS
Sharaholdars' ] 62,75,389 51,565,629
Palicyhelders’ aa 9,17,97,295 B,33,77,861
Assets held to cover linked abilities -] 00,41, 241 3,47,50,688
LOANS Ll - -
FIXED ASSETS 10 60,050 1,13,035
CURRENT ASEETS
Cash and Bank Balance 11 7.50,6R3 £,25,318
Advanites Ard Other Assets i2 40,66,535 42,123,030
Sub-Total [A] . ABA7.224 47,37, 3148
CURRENT LIABILITIES 13 38,57,654 35,71,731
PROVISIONS 14 44,951 78,339
Sub-Tatal [B); 40,02,605. 36,50,070
NET CURRENT ASSETS (C] = {A~R}- 5,149,619 “10,87,278
MISCELLANECUS EXPENDITURE {fa the extent nat written off or adjusted} 15 " -
CEBIT PALANEE IN PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUMNT {Shareholders’ Account) 1,50,41,094 1.55,37.#11
TOTAL . R L : 5 i} !EIME'Z!!SSQ. 14!04!23!200
signlficant Accounting Poflcles and Notes to the Accounts 16

The $chedule referred to harein form an Integral part of the Bafance Sheet.
As per our repert of even date attached,

Far ), C. Bhalla & Co.
hartered Accountants .
Registraiian No! 001113N

Chartered Accountants
Flrm Registration Ny, Q0003

Far Thakor, Valdyanath Aiyat & Co.
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[Rs. '00D) {Rs. "D00)
| Cash flows from cperating activities '
Fremium received fram palleyhalders, incleding advance recalpts 1,35,80,056 131,67,711
Other Receipts 33,474 22,710
Payments ta the re-insuirers, net of commissions and claims {1.13,129) ~ [9,835)
Payments of claims [1,08,24,526) 1,48,23,110)
Paymants of commission and brokerage {5,50,208) {3,44,541)
Payments of other opei’aﬂng expensas (28,50,423} {28,04,777)
Deposits, adwanges and staff foans [1,14,581) 1,599,261,
income taxes paid/ Refunded [Net} - 2,501
Goods and Serylee tax paid {5,935) 16,483
Other payments - -
Cash flaws before extragndinary ltems (8.95,272) (16,77,601)
Cash flow fram extracrdinary operations - -
Net cash used In oparating activitles {L)- ' (8,96,272). . (16,77,601)
1 Cash flows from investing activitles
Purchase of Fixed Assets {23,020) {1,15,411}
Proceeds from Sale af Fixed Assats 1,450 2,247
Purchasa of Investmeit (5,87.77,441) [5.47,86,356)

ts in Fixed Deposi (52,600) -

Frocends fram maturlty of Flxed Deposlts 5,000 5,000
Loans disbursed - -
Leans agalnst policies - -
Proceeds from Salefredemption of Investment 5,75,63,048 6,08,31,865
Repayments recefved - -
fentsfInterests Dividends received 68,27,205. 76,40,598
Investments In maney market Instrumants and In liguid mutual funds (iet) {43,44,718) {1,36,97.422)
Exp related to investments - -
Net cash fiow friam invasting activities (11} 11,853,923 . {1,19,479)

1] Cash flaws fram financing activities

Procreds from issuance of share capital N 18,%50,000
Praceeds from borrowlng - -
Repayments af borrowing - -

Interest/dividends pald - -
Net cash'genérated from financing activitles (11} L= 18,50,000
IV Effect of forelgn exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents, net . -
Wet Increasef{decreass) In cash and cash equivalent [HEHTIHVY 257,651 52,920
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 6,932,898 5,759,978
Cash @i csh equivalent it thie end of tha year . 830,549 ) -6,32,898
Break up as fallows :

Comprpents of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashand Bank Balances (Refer to Nate 1 below) 5,565,589 487,818
Bank batances - LEnlted Assats 2,64,960 1,45,080
Total:~ 9,30,549 532808
Nota 1

Cash [including cheques, drafts and stamps) 93,918 1,05,940
Bank balances on current atcounts 1,21,270 2,03,978
Flxed Deposits with maturlty [ess than 3 months 4,50,400 1,77,300
Cashand Bank Balances 6,65,589: 4,587,818
Note 2

Cash and Bank Balances {Refer to Note 1 ahove] 6,645,589 4,87,818
Fixed Dapasits with maturlty mare than 3 ment hs [Considered as' Investing Actlvity] 85,100 A7.500
Cash and Bank Balunces a5 per Schediile 11 ) ) ] 7,50,689. . . 525318

The above Receipts and payments account has baen prepan:d as prescribed by Insurance Regulatun,r and Devalopmant Autharlty [Preparation of financial statements and auditor's reporf of Insuranca
carnpanles) Regulations, 200% under the "Direct methad” In accordance with Accounting Standard 3 Cash Flow Statements.

Significant Atcounting Pollcies and Notes to the Accaunts 16
For ). C. Bhalla & Co. For Thakur, Valdyanath Alyar & Co. Aviva LIfa Instirance Company Indla Umited //

artersd Accountants , Charterad Actountants CIN U66010DL2000PLC10 7880 //
Firkn Reglstration Mo, 001111N Firm Regmtrat:on No. 000038 For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMEENTS Life insurance

{Rs. '000) {Rs. '000)
First year premiums 31,70,504 29,972,228
Rerewal premiums 98,580,069 §97,83,913
Single premiums 4,007,618 3,584,388
TOTAL . . -1,34,68,592 1,31,74,529

Pramium Income from business written :

In India 1,34,68,592 1,31,74,529
Cutside India - -
TOTAL: . - . 1,34,68,592 . '1,31,74,529 -

e e e

2 12
[Rs. '000) [Rs, 'GDA)
Commission Paid
Birect - First year premiums 2,05,658 2,58,753
- Reriewal premiums 48,920 75,901
- Single premiums 10,415 5,460
TOTAL o 3,148,993 3,844,154
Add ; Commission an Re-insurance Aceepted - -
Less : Commission on Re-insurance Ceded - -
NET:COMMISSION - o 3,14,993 344,154
Rewards and/or remuneration to agents, brokers or other intermediaries 479,623 8,025
INERATION . . L . 7@4;615 . . 3!'5251?9-
Break-up of commission by distribution network
Agents 9,01,654 79,738
Brokers 38,600 42,645
{orporate Agency 377,514 2,10,256
Referral fee 30 (549
Others (Insurance Marketing Firm) : 76,818 19,594

Total . . . ) . 794,616 . 352,179




Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BMTVA

Life Insurance

Employees’ remuneration and welfare benefits* 15,37,368 14,83,842
Travel, cenveyance and vehicle running expenses 45,135 36,108
Trainlng expenses 6,608 188
Stamp Duty- Pu_licies 1,00,31% 44,715
Rents, Rates and Taxes. 1,58,366 1,80,676
Repairs & Gffice Maintenanca 66,338 ‘92,497
Printing and Stationery 16,875 15,561
Communication expensas 37,779 48,716
Legaf and Professional charges 1,87,390 96,035
Madfeal feas ) 4,894 7,284
Auditors' fees, expenses etc {Refer note 20 of Schedule 16)

a} as auditor 5,644 6,266

b) as adwviser or in any other capaclty, in respect of
{i} Taxation matters ' - -
{ii) Insurance matters - -
(iliy Management services; and - -

£} in any other capacity (0o 800
Advertisernent and publicity 1,50,645 3,61,094
Interest and bank charges 14,352 14,898
Information technology and related expenses® 197,777 1,62,887
Others

. 8} Electricity 21,901 23,522

b} Recruitment 25,204 24,809

t) Miscellaneous expenses 21,875 11,575
Depraclation 79,685 1,11,068
Goods and Service Tax on gremivm - 11,139
TOTAL . . RO 26,88;156 . 27,33,785

*Rs. [000) 388,230 {Previous Year Rs. {'D00) 71,255] being reimbursed by Aviva Central services UK Ltd., a related party, the net impact of the same'in
the Operating expenses of the Company is NiL.
*Also Refer Note C.24 of Schedule. 16

{Rs. "a00) {Rs. '000)
Employees’ remuneration and welfare benefits 67,543 38,584
Travel, conveyance and vehicle running expenses 42 42
Tralning expenses 4 .
Communication expanses - 2
Legal and professional charges 220 238
Interest and bank charges 101 25
Informatlan technofogy and retated expenses ¢ 20
Goods and Service Tax on premium 12,410 4
Racruitment 4231 1,562
Miscellaneous expanses 20,361 31,980
Extra Morality/Other Charges waived off 21,402 8,774

TOTAL . L L S s ) 333874 0 1.01.281




Aviva Life [nsurance Company India Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AVIVA

Life Insurance

E
{Rs. "000) {Rs, "000)
Insurance Claims
{a} Claims by Death 14,24,199 11,856,857
(b} Claims by Maturity 20,83,929 30,70,838
{c} Annuities/Pension payment 55,532 1,14,170
{d}) Other benefits
- Riders: 1,941 1,260
- Surrender 57,82,193 58,92,018
- Health 28,100 14,785
- Perlodical Benefit 5,186,032 7,774,277
- Interest to palicy holders 1,048,422 77,697
- Withdrawals 6,75,845 4,29,416

(Amount ceded in reinsurance):
{a} Claimsby Death {6,04,341) {5,63,817)
(b} Claims by Maturity - .
{c) Annuities/Pension payment - .
(d} Other benefits
- Riders - .
- Surrender - .
+ Health 6,600} {7,400}
- Periodical Benefit - .
Améunt accepted in reinsurance :
{a} Claims by Death . .
{b} Claims by Maturity . -
{c) Annuities/Pension payment R .
{d} Other benefits
-Riders - -
- Surrender - .
- Health - -
- Periodical Benefit - -
TOTAL L 1}00,‘51@'1-2' _1-,10;00&

Benefits paid to claimants:

In India 1,00,61,312 1,10,00,201
Qutslde Indla - -
TOTAL 1

1,00,61,312" 15105'00'!201-.




Aviva Life Insurance Company india Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Life Insurance

{®s. '000) T (Rs.'000)

Authorised Capital 2,50,00,000 2,50,00,000

2,500,000,000 (Previous Year 2,500,000,000) Equity shares of

Rs 10 each

Issued, Subscribed and Called up Capital

2,189,900,000 (Previous Year 2,189,500,000 } Equity shares of

Rs 10 each, fully paid up *)

Less ; Calls unpaid - -

Add ; Shares forfeited (Amount originally paid up) - -

Less: Par value of Equity Shares bought back - -

Less: Preliminary expenses

Expenses Including commission or brokerage or underwriting - -
bseripti f <h:

TOTAL - . _ 2,18,99,000. 2,18,99,000.

2,18,99,000 2,18,99,000

*569,373,860 aquity shares (Previous year 569,373,950) are held by the Nominated Partners, who are holding these shares on behalf of Dabur
Invest Corp. (Partnership Firm). 140 equity shares (Previous year 40) are held by the affiliates of Dabur invest Corp.
During the vear NIL [Previous Year 185,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each were alloted, at par value.

%of ' % of

Number of Shares Holding Number of Shares Holding
Promoters
- Indign - Dabur Invest Corp.(Partnership Firm} 56,93,74,000 26% 56,93,74,000 26%
- Foreign - Aviva International Holdings Limited, UK 1,62,05,26,000 4% 1,62,05,26,000 74%
‘Others ~ - - -

TOTAE ' : 2,1%;95:00,000: 100%. 2,18,95,60,000 100%




Aviva Life Insurance Company India LimEted
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Reserve - -
Capital Redemption Reserve - -
Share Premium - -

Ravaluation Reserve - -
General Reserves - -

Less: Debit balance in Profit and Loss Account, if any - -

Less: Amount utilized for Buy-back - -
Catastrophe Reserve - -
Dther Reservas - -
Bzlance of profit in Profit and Loss Accaunt - -
TOTAL. . . . - -

(Rs, '000) [Rs.'200}
Debentures/ Bonds - .
Banks - -
Financial Institutions - -
Others - “

TOTAL : o . - . - . -




Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Life Insurance

rjr J
{Rs. 000's) {Rs. 00D'S)
LONG TERPA INVESTMENTS ) '
Government Securities and Gevernment guaranteed bonds including treasury bills 12,74,825 16,07,333
{Market value (Rs '000) Current Year 1,271,270 Previous Year 1,591,380)
Other Approved Securities 34,60,084 25,14,598

{Market value (Rs '000) Current Year 3,426,193 Previous Year 2,4561,277)

Other Approved Investmants
{a} Shares
{aa) Equity - -
{Historical value [Rs '000} Current Year ML Previous Year NIL)
{bb) Preference - -
{b) Mutual Funds - -
(c} Derivative Instruments - -
{d} Debentures/ Bonds - -
{Market value (Rs ‘000) Current Year- NiL Previous Year NIL}
{e) Other Securities (Term Deposits} - -
{Market value (Rs '000} Current Year MH. Previous Year NIL}
{f) Subsidiaries - -
investment Properties-Real Estate

Investments in Infrastructure , Soclal Sector and Housing ;
Man Convertible Debentures
{Market value {Rs ‘000} Current Year 1,083,174 Previous Year 427,188}
Equity Shares - .
{Historical value {Rs '000) Gurrent Year NIL Previous Year NIL)

10,41,689 4,28,997

Other Investmants

Dehbentures/ Bonds - .
{Market valua (Rs '060) Currant Yaar NIL Previous Year NIL)

Equity Shares 1,87,234 -
{Historical value (Rs '000) Current Year 85,584 Previous Year N|L)

SHOHRT TERM INVESTM ENTS_
Government Securities and Government guaranteed bonds including treasury bills 209,516 13,521
{Market value {Rs '000) Current Year 208,512 Previcus Year 13,378}

Other Approved Securities - -
[Market value (Rs '000) Current Year NIL Previous Year NIL)

Other Approved Investments
{a) Shares
{aa) Equity - -
{bb} Preference - -
[b) Mutual Funds
{Historical value [Rs '000) Current Year MIL Pravious Year NIL)
[} Darivative Instruments N -
{d) Debentures/ Bonds - i .
{Market value [R5 '000) Current Year NIL Previous Year NIL)
{e) Other Securities (Commercial Papers , Certificate of Deposits and Term Deposits} - -
{Market value {Rs '000) Current Year NIL Previous Year NIL} )
{f) Other Securities (Reverse Repe) 31,654 4,518
{Market value (Rs '000) Current Year 31,654 Pravious Year 4,518)
{g) Subsidiaries : -
{h)lnvestment Propartias-Real Estate N -

Investments in Infrastructure , Soclal Sector and Housing ;
Non Convertible Debentures
{Market value (Rs"000) Currant Year 69,715 Pravious Year 584,257)
Other Investmants
Mutual Funds - -
Debentures/ Bonts - -
{Market value (Rs '000} Current Year NIL Previous Year NIi)
ToTAL - ' a . _ _ 62,75,389. . . 31,56,629-

70,287 5,87,662

INVESTMENTS

In India 62,75,389 51,56,629.
Outside India — S . . — — — —
TOTAL .« - o 675389 5L56628

=




Aviva Life Insurarice Company India Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AVIVA

Life Insurance

{Rs. 000's) (Rs. 000's)
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Government Securities and Government guaranteed bonds including treasury biils 5,24,37,070 4,91,88,045

{Market value [Rs'000) Current Year 53,056,576 Previous Year 48,??2}956}

Other Approved Seturities 1,95,03,163 1,56,68,030
{Market value (Rs '000) Current Year 19,346,834 Previous Year 15,129,850)

Other Approved Investments
(a) Shares
{za) Eguity 22,687 17,987
{Historical value (Rs '000) Current Year 12,380 Previous Year 9,301)
{bb} Preference- - -
{b) Mutual Funds - -
{c) Derivative Instruments - -
{d) Debentures/ Bonds _ 2,96,585 -
{market value [Rs'000} Current Year 306,039 Previous Year NIL)
{e} Other Securities [Term Depaosits) ) - “
{Market value (Rs ‘000} Current Year NILPrevicus Year NIL)
{f} Subsidiaries - -
investment Properties-Real Estate - -

Investments In Infrastructure , Social Sector and Housing
Non Convertible Debentures '
{Market value (Rs'000) Current Year 16,111,169 Previous Year 13,993,898)
Equity Shares ' 507 1,125
{Historical value {Rs '000) Current Year 238 Previous Year 639}

1,60,05,008 1,40,12,591

Other Investments

Non Convertible debentures 42,079 42,079
{Market value (Rs ‘'000) Current Year 42,079 Previous Year 42,079}

Equity Shares 2,29,286 843
{Historica! value {Rs "000) Current Year 104,848 Pravious Year 598}

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Government Securities and Govérnment guaranteed bonds including treasury bills 13,70,899 18,235,685
{Market value.{Rs '000) Current Year 1,370,670 Previous Year 1,833,502)

Other Approved Securities 6,13,561 -
{Market vaiue (Rs‘00C) Current Year 613,483 Previous Year NIL}

Other Approved {nvestments

{a) Shares
{aa) Equity - .
{bb} Preference - .
{Historical value {Rs ‘000) Current Year NIL Previous Year NIL)

{b) Mutual Funds - -
{Historical value {Rs '000) Current Year NIL Previous Year NIL)

{c) Derivative Instruments - -

{d) Dabentures/ Bonds . -
{Market value {Rs '000) Current Year NIL Previous Year NiL)

{e) Other Securities {Commercial Papers, Certificate of Deposits and Term Deposits) 3,07,110 2,42,654
{Market value {5 '000) Current Year 307,110 Previous Year 242,654)

(f} Other Securities {Reverse Repo} 9,34,311 22,98,460

{Market value {Rs '000} Current Year 934,311 Previous Year 2,298,460)
(g} Subsidiaries - -
Investment Properties-Real Estate - -

Investments in infrastructure , Social Sector and Housing :
Non Convertible Debentures )
{Market value (Rs'D00) Current Year 34,888 Previous Year 65,254}
Commegrcizl Paper - -
{Market value (Rs'000) Current Year NILPrevious Year NIL)

35,026 69,352

Other Investments
Nan Convertable Debentures _ _ - -
{Market value (Rs '00_0) Current Year NilPravious Year NIL)

TOTAL: . .~ . ... 917,97,296 . .- B3377.861

INVESTMENTS
in India 9,17,97,296 8,33,77,861

'9,17.97:2967 . 0.0 0 L8R T, 861




Aviva Life (nsurance Company [ndia Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| AVIVA

Life insurance

{Rs. 000's} (Rs. GOD's}
.LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Government Securitles and Government puzranteed bonds Including Treasury Bills 65,36,235 33,22,544
{Histarical value{'000)Currant Year §,455,504 Previaus Year 3,319,264}
Qther Approwved Securities 912,321 37,76,845
{Histarical valu={"000)Current Year 936,724 Praviows Year 3,809,480}
Other Approved Investinents
{a) Shares
{aa) Equity '2,05,37,764 1,54,43,470

[Histerical value{"D0MCurrent Year 14,423,035 Previgus Year 11,640,912)
({bb) Preference - -
[Histarical value['000)Curtent Year BIL Previous Year NIL )
fb) Mutual Funds - 1,06,371
lHistoricali'ai_ue{'OOU]Current Year MIL Previous Year 124,373)
{e) Derivative Instrumeants - -
{d} Debentures/Bonds 2,50,713 -
|Historicat valuel'DO0ICurrent Year 248,097 Previous Year NIE
{e} Other Securities {Cetificate of Deposits,Term Deposits and Commercial papers} - -
|Historital vaiuef{"000)Current Year NIl Previous Year NIL
{f) Subsidiaries - -
-{e} Investment Properties-Real Estate - -
Investments in (nfrastructure, Social Sector and Housing :

{a) Non Cenvertible Debentures 23,77,134 13,25,382
|Histoticat value{"000)Current Yeafé 2,376,609 Previous Year 1,327,440)
{b] Equiiry 42,80,241, 18,87,906

{Historica! value('0Q0)Current Year 2,582,105 Previous Year 1,395,469)
Other Investments

{a} Equity Shares 849,307 15,983,259
{Historical value(*000]Current Year 468,162 Previous Year 1,175,594)

{b) Debentures/Bonds 682,161 88,588
[Historical value{'000)Current Year 997,370 Previous Year 400,000

{ch Mutual Funds 1467275 17,656,484
[Historical value('000}Current Year 1,227,966 Previous Year 1,621,752)

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Gavernment Securities and Government guaranteed bands Including Treasury Bills

Government Securities and Government guaranteed Bends 13,22,405 23,15,400
{Historical value{'000]Current Year 1,303,110 Previdus Year 2,136,203

Other Approved Securities - -

(Historical valua('000]Current Year NIL Previous Year NIL
Other Approved Investments
{a) Shares
{aa) Equity - .
{bb} Preference - -
{Historical value('000]Currant Year NIL Previous Year NIL
(b} Mutual Funds - -
{c) Derivative instruments - -
{d} Debentures{ Bonds - -
(Historical value(*000}Current Year NIL Previous Year MIL

{e) Other Securities {Certificate of Depesits,Term Deposits and Commercial papers 338416 11,19,733
(Historicat value('000)Current Year 332,472 Previous Year 1,095,913)

{f} Other Securities (Reverse Repo) 5,60,893 13,69,494
{Historical value('000)Current Year 560,463 Prevltus Year 1,368,240)

{g) Substdiaries - -

{h) Investment Properties-Real Estate - .
investments in Infrastructure , Sacial Sector and Housing @

- 3,45,285
Hon Convertible Debentures ’
{Historical value{'000)Current ¥ear MIL Previous Year 346,380}
Other Invastments
{a) Mutual Funds - -
[Historlcal valued'000)Curcent Year NIL frevious Year NIL
{b} Dabentures/Bonds " )
[Histarlesl value] DO Current Yoar ML Previous Year NiL
Balances in Bank’ 2,64,960 1,45,080
Other Current Assets (net}* 71412 244,841
JOTAL - ) ) . - 4,0441,241 o 3,47,50,686
INVESTMENTS
in India 4,04,41,241 "3,47,50,686
Qutside India - -

an:Housing Finance Uimited which was 100% provided



Aviva Life fnsurance Company [ndia Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Life Insurance

(Rs.'000) (Rs. ‘000)

Security-Wise Classification
Secured
{a} On mortgage of praperty
{aa) InIndia - -
{bb} Outside [ndia - -
{b) On Shares, Bonds, Govt. Securities etc - -
(<} Loans against policies - -
{d} Others {te be spacified) - -
Unsecured
TOTAL
BORRDWER-WISE CLASSIFICATION
{a} Central and State Governments - -
(b} Banks and Financial Institutions - -
{c} Subsidiaries - -
{d) Companies - -
{e} Loans against policies - -
{f) Others - -
TOTAL
PERFORMANCE-WISE CLASSIFICATION
{a} Loans classified as standard
{aa} Inindia - -
{bk} Qutside india - -
{b} Non-standard loans less provisions
(aa} In india - -
{bh) Outside India - -
TOTAL
MATURITY-WISE CLASSIFICATICN
{a) Short Term ' - -
{b} Long Term - -
Total ' = = . - . -
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Aviva Llife Insurance Company India Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV VA

Life Insurance

Cash {including cheques,drafts and stamps) 93,918 1_,05,940
Bank Balances '
{a} Deposit Accounts
{aa) Short-term {due within 12 months

533,000 1,82,900
of the date of balance sheet} : o

{bb) Cthers 2,500 32,500

(b} Current Accounts 1,21,270 2,032,978

{c) Others - -
Money at Call and Short Notice

{a) With Banks - -

‘{b)  Wwith other Institutions - -

Qthers : -

TOTAL 7,50,688 5,25,318

Baolances with non-scheduled banks included above - -

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

In India 7,50,68% 5,25318

Qutside India - -

TOTAL . ?150!589 5!25!'318




Avlva Life Insurance Company Indfa timlted
SCHEDULES FORMING PARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 AYVIVA

Life insurance

ADVANCES
Reserve deposits with ceding companies - -
Application maney for investments - -

Frepayments 32,353 34,849
Advances to Directors{Officers - -
Advance tax paid and taxes deducted at source B 82
Less: Provision for doubtful recovery {B1) - (81) i
Others {includes suppliers; employee advances and receivable
-from holding company) 1,581,004 1,18,329
Less: Provision for doubtful advances {22,629} 1,58,375 {26,335) 91,994
TOTAL[A). . . 1,896,728 1,26,849
OTHER ASSETS
Income accrued on investments 16,52,102 15,067,021
Outstanding Premiums 6,186,788 5,90,920
Agents’ Balances 94,017 99,521
Less: Provision for doubtful Agent Balances [88,247) 5,770 {90,016} 9,505

Fareign Agencies’ Balances - -
Due from other entities carrying on insurance business

Tee o Ui 2,745 2,393
{including reinsurers]
- Investment pertaining te Urclaimed Pollcyhelders Fund {Refer note
'C.2% & C.30 of Schedule 16) 528,643 13,09.188
- Interest an Investment pertaining to Unclaimed Palleyholders. 274,204 3,19,682
Fund (Net of FMC) [Refer nota C.25 & C.30 of Schédule 16)
- Refundable Security Dapasits 1,59,923 1,54,670
Less: Provision for doubtful security deposit (24,248} 1,35,675 {14,789) 139,871
- Redemption Receivable - 82,737
Less: Provision for doubtful asses - - [82,737) -
« Goods qu Service Tax Deposits (Refer note C.19 of 1,05,442 55,257
Schedule 16)
-~ Goods and Service Tax Unutilised Credit 1,15,158 1,30,8356
- Dther Relnsurance Assets 33,280 20,513
TOTAL{B). " . 38,565,807 40,85,1B6

TOT nL-!A-FB! .- . . 40565!535 : '42!'125030 :




Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,ﬁ{%}' 51%@1:&&
Life Insurance

{Rs. '000) {Rs. ‘000}

Agents’ Balances 65,948 83,258
Balaneces due to ather insurance companies 78,885 16,634
Depesits held on re-insurance ceded - -
Fremiums received in advance 1,17,633 75,284
Unaliocated prerniurn 2,68,015 1,73,924
Sundry creditors

Micro, Smail & Medium Enterprises - 3

Others 8,061 26,665
Unclaimed Amount - Policyholders 9,28,5843 12,08,188
Inta?rest on Investment pertaining to Unclaimed 2,784,204 3,19,682
Policyholders Fund
Claims Cutstanding B,32,329 541,752
Annuities Due 24,504 15,523
Due to Officers/Directors 5,692 815
Others:

Accrual for expenses 9,897,431 7,05,178

Goods and Service Tax payable 1,00,162 1,19,722

Payables for unsettled investment contracts 53,468 -

Statutory Dues Payable 78,731 £4,854

Employee and other dues Payable 69,478 71,280

Other Reinsurance Liability 50,051 23,559
TOTAL . 33,57,654. 35,714,731

7 23
{Rs. '000) {Rs. "Ic0}
For taxation {less payments and taxes deducted at source) - -
For proposed dividends - -
Far dividend distribution tax - -
Others:
Pravisian for Gratuity (net of plan assets} - 571
Provision for Leave Encashment 17,932 22,645
Provision for Other Long Term Bensfits 22,599 25,937
Provision for Other Employee Benefits 4,420 29,136
TOTAL . 441953 78,338




Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Discount Allowed in issue of shares/ debentures-
Others - -

TOTAL . . . . . . . - ' . -
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T AVIVA
Life Insurance

Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Schedule 16
SIGNIF[CANT.ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

COMPANY INFORMATION

Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited {the Company’) (CIN U66010DL2000PLC107880) was incorporated on
September 25, 2000 under the Companies Act, 1956, The shareholders of the Company are Dabur invest Corp,, 2
partnership firm holding 26% (Previous Year - 26%)} and Aviva International Holdings Limited, UK holding the remaining
74% (Previous Year - 74%). The Company is registered as a life Insurer with the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India {IRDAI'}. The Company is regularly depositing the annual fee in accordance with Section 3A of the
Insurance Act, 1938,

The Company's business comprises of Life Insurance, Pension, Annuity and Health business, The life insurance business
comprises of Linked Participating, Linked Non-Participating, Non-Linked Participating and Non-Linked Non-Participating
products. Some of the products have riders attached to them such as accelerated critical illness and permanent total
disability, accidental death and dismemberment and hospital cash benefit. The pension business comprises Linked
Participating; Linked Non-Participating, Non-Linked Participating, Nor-Linked Non-Participating products. The Annuity and
Health business comprises Non-Linked Non-Participating products. The Company has both individual and group business.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, unless
otherwise stated, and on the accrual basis of accounting; in accordance with the accounting principles generally aceepted
in India ("GAAP"). The Caompany has prepared the financial statements in compliance with the accouniing standards
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2021, and in
accordance with the provision of the insurance Act, 1938 (amended by The Insurance (Amendment) Act, 2021), Insurance
Regulatory and Davelopment Authority Act, 1999, and the regulation framed there under, insurance Regulatory and
Development Autharity {Preparatien of Financial Statements and Auditors' Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations,
2002 (the "IRDA Financial Statements Regufations”), the Master Circular on Preparation of Financial Statements and Filing
of Returns &f Life Insurance Business Ref No. |RDA/F&A/Cir/232/12/2013 dated December 11, 2013, (‘the Master
Circular’}, and the various circulars/directions/orders issued by IRDAI from time to time, to the extent applicable, and'the
practices prevailing within the insurance industry in India. The accounting palicies have heen consistently applied by the
Company.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principies requires the
Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues and expenses
far peried, reperted balances of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as an the date of financial
statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances up to and as at the date of the financial statements.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in
current and future periads.

Revenue recognition
Premium Income

Premium for Non Linked business is recognized as income on acceptance of risk/ when due from policyholders. For finked
business, the due date is taken as the date when the associated units are allotted. Uncollected premium on lapsed policies
is recognized as income when such policies are reinstated.

Charges recovered from Linked Business

Fund Management charges, administrative charges;, mortality charges, ahd other charges as per the preduct feature are
d from linked funds and recognized, when dug, in accordance with terms and conditions of policies.
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Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Income from Investments

interest

interest income from Investments is recognized on Accrual Basis.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. For dividends on listed securities, the
date on which the stock becomes ex-dividend is the date of accrual of dividend.

Discount Income and Basis of Amortization

In case of Non Linked Funds, Debt securities, including Government securities and redeemable preference shares are
considered as 'held to maturity’ and accordingly stated at cost, subject to -accretion / amortization of the discount /
nremium over the peried of maturity / holding. In case of other instruments like Commercial Papers, Certificate of
Deposits, Tri party repo{TREPs) and Treasury Bills, the difference between the redemption value and book value is
accreted over the life of the asset, on a straight line basis in all funds.

Realized GainfLoss
Linked Funds

The realized gain or lass in Unit Linked funds is the difference between the sale consideration and book value {weighted
average purchase price) on the date of sale.

Sale consideration for the purpose of realized gain/ loss is net of brokerage and taxes, if any, and excludes accrued interest
received on sale,

Non-Linked Funds

The profit or loss on sale of debt securities is the difference between the net saie consideration and the accreted/
amortized cost in the books of the Company as on the date of the sale. Accreted/ amiortized cost is determined en the
basis of weighted average purchase price.

Sale consideration for the purpose of realized gain/loss is net of brokerage and taxes, if any, and excludes accrued interest
received on sale.

Profit/loss on sale of equity shares/ redemption of mutual funds is difference between net sales consideration and book
value on the date of sale and includes effect of aceumulated fair value changes, as applicable, recognized previously, for
specific investments sold/redeemed during the year. Book value is determined on the basis of weighted average purchase
price.

Fee, Charges and Other income
Interest/fee on overdue premium is recognized as income on reinstatement of the policy.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents far the purpose of Receipts and Payments account include cash and chegues in hand, bank
balances and deposits with original maturity of three months or less which are subject to Insignificant risk of change in
vaiue.

Reinsurance Premium

Reinsurance premium ceded is accounted for at the time of recognition of premium income in accordance with the treaty
or in-principle arrangement with the re-insurer.

Profit commissior: under re-insurance treaties, wherever applicable, is recognized in the year of final determination of
profits.

Benefits paid (including direct cost of claim settlement}

a. Maturity claims, Aanuity Claims and Survival Benefit Claims are accounted for when due to policyholder.

b. Surrenders are accounted for when notified.

c. Death claims and rider claims are accounted for when intimated.

d. Re-insurance recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related claim.

&, Claims include policyholder bonuses credited in the case of Participating palicies.

f.  withdrawals under linked policies are recognized in the respective funds when the associated units are cancelled.

g. Repudiated claims disputed before judicial authorities are provided for under operating cost, based on management
prudence after censidering the facts, evidencesand past experience available in respect of such types of claims.

h. Surrender charges recovered are nettad off against the claim expenses incurred.

i.  Amount payable on lapsed/discontinued policies are accounted for on expiry of lock in period of these policies.
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Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs, including commission are related to the acquisition of the new and renewal insurance contracts.
Acquisition costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred,

Commission claw back in future, if any, against first year commission paid for policies cancelled/lapsed, is accounted for
in the year in which a policy is cancelled/ fapsed.

Determination of Mathematical Reserves and Valuation of Policy Liahilities

Mathematical Resetves including the valuation of policy liabilities has been determined by the Appointed Actuary on the
basis of an annual review of the life insurance business as par the Schedule |l of insurance Regulatory and Devefopment
Authority of India (Assets, Liabilities and Solvency Margins of Insurers) Regulations, 2016, and other requirements of the
IRDAI, accepted actuarial practices and guidance notes issued by the Institute of Actuaries of india. Actuarial method and
assumptions are given in Note 1 of Part C of this Schedule.

The Company did not have any other long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foresecable losses as at 31 March 2024,

Investments

investments are recorded at cost or date of purchase, which includes brokerage and related taxes, if any and excludes
broken period interest.

Classification

Investments maturing within twelve months or debt securities having put and call option within the next twelve manths
frem the balance sheet date or investments made with the specific intention to dispose off within twelve months from
the balance sheet date are classified as short-term investments. Investments other than short term are classified as long-
term.investments, Equity shares are classified as long term invastment,

Valuation - Linked Funds

Listed Equity shares/preference shares/Units of Infrastructure investment Trusts (InvITs) /Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs)
are valued at closing market price of National Stock Exchange Ltd (NSE), the primary stock exchange approved by the
Investment Committee of the Comnpany. If the Scrip is not traded on the valuation day on NSE then closing price on Bombay
Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE) is taken. If the security is not traded on both NSE & BSE, then the last available closing price in

the same preference (NSE/BSE} is taken for valuation. Unlisted partly paid up equity shares are valued at closing market

price (as mentioned above} of fully paid up shares after deducting uncalled liability. Mutuat Fund units {other than ETFs)
are valued at Net Asset Value {NAV}. Government securities are valuéd at prices obtained from Credit Rating Information
Services of India Ltd. (CRISIL) and other debt securities are valued at prices arrived from CRISIL-Bond Valuer on a daily
basis and below investment grade debt securities are valued as per internal valuation policy. In case of short term
irstruments like Cornmerdat Papers, Certificates of Depasit, Tri Party Repo (TREPs) and Treasury Bills, the difference
betweeén the redemption value and book value is accreted over the life of the asset on a straight-line basis and accordingly
these instruments are valued at accreted cost. Investments in Fixed Deposits and Reverse Repo are valued at cost. If
renunciation is traded, then the traded price will be considered farvaluation of rights. when renunciatien is not traded, if
the intention is to subscribe to the rights issue, then rights are valued at intrinsic value (difference between spot price of
the entitled equity share and the exercise price subject to a floor of zero) else at zero..

Unrealized gains and losses are recognized in the respective funds' Revenue Account.

Valuation = Non-Linked Policyholders’ Funds and Shareholders’ Fund

Debt securitias

Debt securities, inciuding Government securities and redeemable preference shares are considered as 'held to maturity'
and accordingly stated at cost, subject to accretion/amortization of the discount/premium on a straight line basis over
the period of maturity/holding. In case of other instruments like Commercial Papers, Certificates of Deposit, Tri Party Repe
{TREPs) and Treasury Bills, the difference between the redemption value and book value is accreted over the life of the
asset, on 2 straight line basis. Investments in Fixed deposits and Reverse Repo are carried at cost.




| AVIVA

Life Insuracce

Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

b.

9.4

Equity shares, Unit of Infrastructure investment Trusts {InvIT) and mutua} funds

Listed equity shares, Exchange Traded Funds {ETFs) and InvIT which are actively traded, are stated at fair value, being the
closing price at National Stock Exchange Ltd {NSE} which is the primary stock éxchange approved by the Investment
committee of the Company. If a security is not traded on the primary stock exchange on the balance sheet date, then the
Company will use the closing price at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE). Mutual Fund units as at the end of the Balance
Sheet date are valued at net asset values.

Equity shares would not ke considered as actively traded, if as per the guidelines governing mutual funds laid down from
time to time by SEBI, such shares are classified as "thinly traded".

Unreaiized gains and Josses on listed equity shares, InviTs and mutual funds ara taken to the “fair value change account”
and carried forward in the balance sheet.

Impairment of Investments
The Company has laid down the impairment accounting policy for recognizing diminution in value of investment., The

Carrying amount of investment are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and if there is any indication of impairment based
on impairment policy, an impairment loss is recognized as an expense and disclosed under the head “Provision for
diminution in value of Investment” in the Revenue/Profit & Loss account, to the extent of difference between re-measured
fair value and acquisition cost as reduced by any pravious impairment loss. Any reversal of impairment loss earlier
recognized for in the Revenue/Profit & Less account is accounted in the Revenue account-or the Profit & Loss account
respectively,

Provision for Non Performing Assets

All assets where the interest and/or instaliment of principal repayment remain overdue for more than 90 days at Balance
sheet date are classified as Non Performing Assets (NPA) and provided for in the manner required by the JRDAI regulations
and/or circulars in this regard.

10. Fixed assets and depreciation/amortization
10.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes the
purchase price and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its present location and working conditicn for its
intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the Straight-Line Method {SLM) pro-rata from the date of acquisition with reference to
management’s assessment of the estimated useful life for each class of asset as mentioned hereunder:

(a) Information Technology Equipment *A 3 years
{b} Leasehold Improvements® 5 years or over the primary pericd of Laase, whichever is lower
{c) Furniture and Fittings *» 5 years
{d} Office eguipment *4 | 3 years
fa) Vehicles *» 3 years

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment, the Company is following shorter useful life as compared to
prescribed life under Part C of Schedule It of the Companies Act 2013, The useful life considered in the current year are
based upon the principles of prudence which are consistent with the previous years.

Individual Assets acquired on or after April 1, 2005 and costing Rs.25,000 or less aré depreciated in full in the year of
purchase.

A For these class of assets, based on internal assessment, the Company’s. Management has considered the residual value
ta be nil.

10.2 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprising software are stated at cost less amortization and impairment. Significant expenditure on
improvement to software are capitalized when it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future
econemic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of perfermance and such expenditure can be measured
and attributed to the assets reliably. Software expenses are amortized using straight fine method over a period of 3 years.
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10.3 Impairment of Assets
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The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.
After impairment, depreciation/amortization i5 provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining
useful life. However at the balance sheet date if there is any indication that a previously recognized impairment loss ng
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount, subject to a
maximum of depreciable/amortizable historical cost.

Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Realized gains and
losses on foreign exchange transacticns durihg the year are racognized in the Revenue Account/Profit & Loss Account,
Foreign currency assets and liabilities, if any, dre transiated at the year-end rates and resultant gains/losses on foreign
exchange transactions are recognized in the Revenue Account/Profit & Loss Account.

Taxation

Current Tax

Current tax expense is deter_mined in accordance with the pravisions of Section 44 of the Income - tax Act, 1961 read with
Ruies contained in the First Schedule and other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as applicable to a company
carrying on life insurance husiness.

beferred Tax

in accordance with the provisions of the Accounting Standard (AS) 22, "Accounting for Taxes on Income”, with respect to
the carry forward of fasses undsr the Income Tax regulations, the deferred tak asset s recognized only to the extent that
there is.a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that future taxable income will be available against which
the deferred tax asset can be-realised. The carrying ameunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probakle that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred. tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates, which have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized on timing differences being the differences between
taxable incomes and accounting incomes that originate in one period and are capable of reversing in one or more
subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liahilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Goods and Services Tax [GST)

Goods and Service Tax payment is made after availing the input tax credit available as per the provisian of law. Goods and
Services Tax advance payment and unutilized credit, if any, are carried forward under "Advances and other Assets" for
adjustments/setoff in subsequent periods.

Provisions and Contingencies
A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the abligation, in respect of which a refiable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to their present value, and are determined based on the Management’s estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation, at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current Management estimates,
Contingent liabilities arising from claims other than insurance claims, litigations, assessment, fines, penaltias, etc. are
recorded when It is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. A disclosure
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but probably will not,
; tflow of resources. However, contingant assets are not recogm ona-prudent basis.
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Leases where the Lessor effectively retains substantially alf the risks and benefits of ownership over the leased term are
classified as operating leases, Operating lease rentals and Sub Jease income including escalations are recognized as an
expense/income on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

Employee Benefits

The Company has defined contribution plans for post-employment benefits in the form of Provident Fund, Pension Fund,
National Pension Scheme and Employees’ Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme {EDLI). Under the Provident Fund Plan, the
Cempany centributes to'a Government administered provident fund on behalf of employees. The Company has no further
obligation beyond making the contributions. The Company’s contribution to the above Plan is recognized in the Revenue
Account and Profit and Loss Account as incurred.

Contributions to Defined benefit Plans and other long-term employee benefits, are provided on the basis of an
independent actuarial valuation (as per AS-15 Revised) made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains or loss
arising from such valuation are charged to Revenue Account/Profit and Loss Account in the year in which they arise. The
Actuarial method used for measuring the aforesaid {iabilities is Projected Unit Credit (PUC} Method,

The Company provides for its liability under Long Term Incentive Plan (LTiP) and Short-Term Incentive Plan (STIP} based
on independent actuarial valuation .

Allocation of Expenses
Expenses relating to each class of business are allocated, based on the policy approved by the Board, to the respective
business segments on the basis of:

- Expenses that are directly identifiable to the business segments are ailecated on actual basis;

- Other expenses that are not directly identifiable to the business segments, are allocated on either of the following

basis, a5 considered appropriate by the Management:

a) Average Number of inforced Policies

b) Grosswritten Premium/ New Business Premium

¢) Sum Assured

d) Number of Mambers under Group Product

el Number of claims Settled

- Fund Management related costs are allocated on the basis of the ratio of average monthily corpus in each fund.
For each type of expense, the most suitable method of allocation is chosen taking into account the nature of the expense
and its relevance to the respective cost center.

Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per share is talculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the welghted number of equity shares during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss during the year, attributable to equity
shareholders and weighted number of equity shares during the year are adjusted for effects of all dilutive equity shares.

Segment Reporting _

The Company's reportable segments are business segments which have been identified in accordance with the Master
Circular issued by the IRDA/. The operating expenses, investments and cther income attributable to the business segments
are allocated as mentioned in Note 21. Segment assets and liabilities have been identified to the extent possible. There
are ne reportable geographical segments since the Company provides services to customers in the Indian market eny and
does not distinguish any reportable regions within India.

Composition of Business Segments

The Company’s business comprises of life insurance business and pension business, The life insurance business comprises
of linked participating, linked non-participating, linked group non-participating and nan-tinked participating, non-linked
non-participating, non-linked group non-participating, annuity, heaith, group variable preducts. The pension business
comprises linked participating, linked non-participating and non-linked participating, non-linked non-participating, non-
linked group pension praducts. Accordingly, revenues arising out of these segments comprise the primary basis of
segmental information set out in these financial statements.

Segment Accounting Policies

The segment reporting complies with the accounting policy adopted for preparation and presentation of financial
stataments of the Company and is in conformity with Accounting Standard 17 — Segment Reporting, notified by the
Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and read with applicable IRDA regulations.

Segment assets represent assets employed and liabilities include those, which are incurred by a segment in its operating
activity. The Company provides services to customers in the Indian market only, which is the oniy geographical segment.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Actuarial Method and Assumptions

The annual statutory actuarial valuation of the policy liabilities at the close of the financial year i.e. at March 31, 2024 has
been carried out, in accordance with the generally accepted actuarial principles and practices and in particular the
provisions of IRDAI {Assets, Liabilities and Solvency Margin of Life Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016, periedical
communication frem IRDAI regarding valuation of liabilities and the professional guidance by the Institute of Actuaries of
India (1Al) to determine policyholders’ liabilities of the Company. A brief summary of valuation methods and actuarial
assumptions used for determining the liabilities are given below:

Methodologies for calculation of Mathematical Reserves

The principles adopted for the valuation of policy liabilities have been set out as per the IRDAI [Assets, Liabilities and
Solvency Margin of Life Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016 and the APS 2 & APS 7 issued by the Institute of Actuaries
of India. The general principles of actuarial valuation applicable for all lines of business are given beiow:

- The policy liabilities are valued on policy by policy basis i.e, each policy is separately valued.

- Gross Premium Valuation Methad is used in the determination of mathematical reserves-for all products except
Yearly Renewable Group Term Assurance Products (OYRGTA) where the resarving has been done using Unearned
Prernium Method.

- For Rider valuation, the IRDAI {Assets, Liabilities and Solvency Margin of Life Insurance Business} Regulations, 2016 is
complied with and higher of the reserve calculated using Unearned Premium Method {UPR) or GPV is kept as the
raserva, as per the said iRDA! Regulations. '

- The valuation methodology takes into account all possible contingencies under which any premiums (by the
pelicyholder) or benefits (to the policyhokder / beneficiary} may be payable under the policy, as determined by the
policy conditions. The level of benefits takes into account the reasonable expectations of policyholders [with regard
to crediting interest, bonuses, including terminal benuses, if any) and any established practices of the Company for
the payment of benefits or the level of discretionary / reviewable charges.

- The valuation method takes into account the cost of any options and guarantees that may be available to the
policyholders under the terms of the contracts.

- GPY method allows for reinsurance related cash flows i.e. the reinsurdance premium and reinsurance claim recoveries,
However, for OYRGTA group insurance business, where the reserve is calculated using the UPR (Unearned Premium
Reserves) method, explicit reinsurance credit based on reinsurance premium is taken into account while calculating
the reserve.

= The determination of the amount of liability is based cn prudent assumptions of all the relevant parameters, The
value of each such parameter is based on the expected experience relavant for the block of business and includes an
appropriate margin for adverse deviations {MAD) that may result in an increase in the amount of mathematical
reserves.

- The amount of mathematica! reserve is set to zero, in case of negative reserve and riot less than the surrender value.
This check is applied on palicy by policy basis.

- The determination of the amount of mathematical reserves takes into account the nature and term of the assets
representing those abilities and the value placed upon them and shall include prudent provision against the effects
of possible future changes in the value of assets on the ability of the insurer to meet its obligations arising under
palicies as they arise.

- Additional Provisions as per Regulaticns are also calculated and taken into accourit for vatuation,

- The Reinsurance cash-flows for individual businass are taken into account in GPV cash-flow methed of reserving, But
for group insurance business where the reserve is calculated using the UPR methed, explicit Reinsurance credit has
been taken into account while calculating the reserves,

- The provision for Free-look cancellation of policies has been made in Reserves.

Additional Rules for Linked Business

Unit Linked Non Par Business (Individual)
Reserves consist of two compaonents, namely Unit Reserve and Non-Unit reserve. The following method is used to
determine these reserves:

Unit Reserves
The unit reserve is determined as the number of units, as an the valuation date, multiplied by the unit price of the
units on the valuation date. For actuarially funded products, the value of actuarially funded units is determined on
the basis of actuaria) funding factors.
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Non - Unit Reserves

For non-unit reserves in respect of linked business, the Company calculates it using gross premium method of valuatian,
Nen-unit reserve is caleulated by discounting the prospective net cash flows under each policy. The net cash flows at each
duration is the sum of various outgoes e.g. death outgo net of reinsurance recoveries, rider outgo, expense outgo,
commissicn outge, maturity outgo, reinsurance premium payments and increase in unit reserve (on valuation basis) less
premium and investment income. Further, the amount of mathematical reserve in respect of a policy calculated in spirit-
of Regulation 4 under Schedule II-A of IRDA} (Assets, Liabilities and Solvency Margin of Life Insurance Business)
Regulations, 2016, may he negative (calied “negative reserves”) or less than the surrender value available [calied
“Surrender Value Deficiency Reserve®) at the valuation date. Then amount of such mathematicaj réserve Is set to zero in
case of negative reserve or surrender value in case of surrender value deficlency reserve,

Unit Linked Non Par Business (Group)

Linked Group products consist of Group Superannuation and Group Gratuity Plans. These products are valued similar to
individual business unit linked products. Since the charges are higher than the costs in each of the future months, there is
no non unit reserve requirement for these preducts and hence the reserve for these products is equal to the unit reserve,
For group gratuity plan where each policy has One Year Renewable Group Term Assurance (OYRGTA) life cover, the
reserve for the OYRGTA cover has been calculatad as 115% of the gross unearned premium where axplicit premiumis
charged from the custamer. And where the mortality charges are deducted from unit fund, last one month’s mortality
charge is kept as reserve because the charges have already been deducted but a part of the month’s risk is yet to expira.
In addition, the reserve for IBNR cases is kept. '

Unit Linked Par Business {individual)

The higher of Gross Premiumn Benus Reserve (GPBR) and the unit price of actuarlally funded units (as explained under Unit
reserve above) for each policy is taken as reserve,

The gross premium bonus reserve valuation is z gross premium method of valuation with explicit allowance for future
bonuses (regular and terminal bonuses). The GPBR projection allows for the cash flows of premium income, death outgo,
rider outge, maturity outgo, expense outgo, commission outge, tax outgo, net reinsurance and transfers to the

shareholders. Al the benefits outgo contain element of existing as well as future regular bonuses and the terminal bonuses
based on the projected asset share of the policy.

Any excess of assets over reserves in with profits fund is treated as fund for future appropriation (FFA) for reporting
purposes.
Provisions for Incurred but Not Reported {IBNR] Claims

As on the valuation date it is likely that for certain policies, death might have occurred hefore the valuation date but the
death clairi has not been reported to the Company. An additional provision has been made to cover the cost of such
claims.

For Individuzl business, IBNR Reserves are estimated using Bernhuetter-Farguson (BF) Method. {BNR using BF method is
calculated for the exposure period as:

IBNR Reserves = Ultimate Loss Amount x Quistanding-Claim Proportion x A x {1+ B} x {1 + MAD)

Where,

A = Sum at Risk after reinsuranceﬁnta! Sum Assured

B = Claims reparted after 12 months of death/Ciaims reported within 12 months of death

MAD has been taken as 15%

For the calculation of {BNR ciaims rates under Group business, assumption for Delay Period has been taken as 3.6 months
basis experience studies,

The estimates have margins for prudence. Appropriate reinsurance credit has also been taken into account to determine
the reserve amount.

Credit of Reinsurance claims has been taken to reduce {BNR provisions of death claim amounts in respect of such
unreported claims will be paid by the reinsurer. This is supported by the actuarial investigation of such cases occurred in
the past L
{IBNRireserves are estimated separately for each ARA Category.
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Provision for Lapsed Policies {Individual Businass)

An additional provision has been kept for lapsed policies where there may be a fiability in future when the policy is

reinstated or terminated.

Provision for Paid-Up Palicies {Individual Business)

An additional provision has been kept for Paid-up policies where there may be an additional liability in future when the

policy is revived.

Provision for Individual policies cancelled during the free-look peried

An additional provision has been kept for individual policies which may be cancelled during the free-lock cancellation

period using a free-look cancellation rate of 3.13% inclusive of Margins for Adverse Deviation (MAD).

Grouy Business [Non Par}

One Year Renewable Group Term:

Mathematical reserve for OYRGTA is set equal to unearned office premium as at the valuation date assuming that office

premium is earned linearly over the period starting from the date of premium payment to the next premium due date,

There is an additional Premium Deficiency Reserve kept in line with IRDAI (Assets, Liabilities, and Solvency Margin of Life

Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016 and also Unexpired Risk Reserves ara maintained.

Group Non-Linked Fund based business

The reserve for traditional group gratuity schemes has been kept as the fund accumulated at the declared rate of interest:

with additional reserve for interest rate fluctuation and to meet certain out goes such as expenses etc.

Single {and Regular) Premium Group Term Business and Groub Endowment Business

GPY method has been used to determine the reserve for these lines of business.

Group Non-Linked Variable Insurance and Universal Life Products

These are the products where regular interest credits are done to the fund at the end of every quarter / year based on

the performance of the fund during the period.

»  Fund value under the policy {assessed as fund accumulated at earned rate of interest or higher of the policy
account value and shadow account value)

- Intgrest rate fluctuation reserve, to allow for unfavorable movemant in interest rates in the future.

- Additional reserve, that may be needed, to meet certain out goessuch as expenses, death claims etc.

Health Insurance {Individual business)

GPY method has been used to determine the reserve for this line of business.

Additional Provision for Key Operational Risks

In order ta ensure that the reserves held reflect the amount required to meet the lossesemerging from operational issues,
an additional provisioning, as a part of the global reserves, is made to ensure that the reserves held cover the expected

outgo ernerging from such risks that are not covered explicitly via valuation parameters or additional provisicning. This
additional provision has been estimated by using the following parameters:

- For linked business, Q;1% of the fund value, as on the valuation date

- For non-linked business, 0.1% of the present value of the future premjums

- For OYRGTA polices, it is taken as 0,1% of UPR Reserve

- Forsingle premium group term policies, it is taken as 0.1% of Mathematical Reserve
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110 Key Valuation Assumptions:

a. Mortality Assumption
Mortality Valuation assumption for varicus lines of business has been taken as under:

= 1t ‘g it
Unit Linked Endowment 63% to 138%
Traditional Endowment ' 51% to 115%
Products: Aviva Life Shield Advantage, Aviva Life Shield Pius, Aviva Lifel .

Shileld & Aviva i-Shield 121%to 127%

Mortality Rates have been expressed as % of
IALM 2012-14 for different age groups, which
have been derived by reference to the

Praducts: Aviva i-Life / Aviva Life Shield Platinum / applicable reinsurance rates for these
Aviva i-Life Secure / Aviva i-Life Total / Aviva i-Term Smart/ Aviva Life | products {refer Appendix 3}. These rates are
Shield Premium/ 3D Term/ Aviva Protecticn Plus based on reinsurance rates in line with the

assumpticns made at the time of pricing these
products. MAD of 15% has been provided on
the best estimate rates.

Aviva Heart Care and Aviva Health Secure 38% to 85%
46% of Annuitant Table 2014-16 with an
Aviva Annuity Plus & improvement of 2% per annum from second
Aviva Saral Pension {IRDAI's Standard Pension Plan) year cnwards up to next 20 years and flat
theraeafter.
Aviva Saral Jeevan Bima [IRDAI's Standard Term Assurance Product) 144%-259%

For rural, POS and group term single premium business, a different mortality assurnption has been taken dépending
upon the risk characteristics of the business.

b. Expense Assumption
The assumptions are expressed as per policy, % of premium and % of reserve. The policy maintenance valuation expense
assumption ranges from Rs. 24 to Rs. 1,278 per pelicy per annum, The premium related expense assumption ranges from
0.3% to 2.5% (Incl. Group) and reserve related expensa assumptions ranges frem 0.0575% to 0.23% of the reserves. The
sum assured related assumption is 0.02% of Sum Assurad. '
An additional provision for policy maintenance expense over-run has been made to ensure that the reserve related to
palicy maintenance expenses is adequate.

¢. Interest Rate assumption
Based on the expected investment return on various asset classes, current asset mix, expected return on existing assets,
future lnvestments and expected return on those assets, the expected return over the policy term of the policy

Year 1 to Year 5 6.05%  6.10% 645% | 6.10%
Year 6 onwards 5.25% B.25% 5.70% 5.30%

Note: Year 1 to Year 5 refers to the first five years from the date of valuation; Year 6 onwards refers to sixth year onwards
from the date of the valuation

2, Capital Commitments
There are no commitments made and outstanding for loans and investments as at end of current and pravious year.
Capital commitrents made and outstanding at the year end with respect to the fixed assets (net of capital advances)
amount to Rs. (000} 23,008 (Previous year Rs. {'000) 88,580}.
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3. Assets to the extent required to be deposited under local laws or otherwise encumbered i or outside India

All the assets of the Company are held in India, There are no assets required to be deposited by the Company under any
local laws or-otherwise encumbered except amount mentioned below:

Amount deposited wlth legal authorities/others for outstandlng 162,142 112,257
legal cases/contract performance :
Fixed D it inst t i by Bank/Li C t
ixed Deposit against guarantee given by Bank/Lien on Curren 27,500 27,500
Account
Callateral for margin monay with CCIL for trading in TREPS 30,173 30,832
4, Operating Lease commitments

The Company has taken office pramises on operating léase, which include both cancellable and non-cancellable lease,
Maost of the lease are renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clause.
The operating Iease rentals charged durlng the year are summarlzed below.

Amount charged to the Revenue Account/Profit and Loss Account 48 593 48,593
for non-cancellable leases
Amount ch dtathe R A t/Profit and Loss A t

mount charge o. e Revenue Account/Profit and Loss Accoun 97,344 120,476
for all other operating leases

The operating lease rentals fiture minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellableé opérating leases as at the
balance sheet date are summarized below:

Not fater than one year ‘ 44678 | 56,430

Later than oné year but not later than five years - 44,674
Later than five years . ;i

5. Claims
Claims settled and remaining unpaid for a period of more than six months at year-end is Rs. (‘000} Nil
(Previous year - Rs. (‘000) NIL).

6. Value of unsett[ed contracts relating to Investments

Purchases where deliveries are pending
- Linked Business 186,122 258,669
- Non Linked Business 53,468 -
- Sharehalders’ Fund - -

$ales where payments are outstanding
- Linked Business 39,586 310,031
- Non Linked Business - -
- Shareholders’ Fund - -
- Unclaimed Policyholdar Fund - -

The above contracts are not overdue and are within the contracted settlement period.
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7. Disclosures relatad to remuneration of Diractors and Key Managerial Persons
A. Information refating to the composition and mandate of the Nomination and Remuneration committee:

The Nemination and Remuneration Committes {NRC) of the Board comprises of four directors of the Board with
two of them independent directors. The following is the composition of the NRC,

s Mr Suresh Mahalingam- chairperson, Indapendent Director

» Mr Mo#it Burman- member, Non Executive Director

-+ Ms Sumithasri EV- member, independent director

s Mr Randy Lianggara- member, Non Executive Directer

The NRC has the following key cbjectives:

» To guide.the Board in relation to appointment and removal of directors and key management persens;

s To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board. for
further evaluation;

« Torecommend to the Board a pelicy relating to remuneration payable to the directors and key management
persons; and

= Review Key personnel policies - for overall compensation ahd reward strategies of Directors and XMP

Information relating to the design and structure of the remuneration policy and key feature and objective of

remuneration policy:

B

The Paolicy, primarily intends to ensure:

» e&ffective governance of compensation;

e alignment of compensation with prudent risk taking;

» effective supervisory oversight and stakeholder engagement;
¢ safety of interest of policyholders and other stakeholders.

o

Description of the ways in which current and fiature risks are taken into account in the remuneration policy:
= MD and CED goal-sheet is aligned to cover major risk related areas;

*» the KMP Réemuneration js adjusted for all types of risk;

-+ KMP Remuneration outcomes aré symmetric with risk outcomes;

» payment of remuneration to KMPs are sensitive to the time horizon of the risk;

e the mix of cash, equity and other forms of remuneration are consistent with risk alignment; and
e Long Term and Short term awards are structured to ensure prudent risk culture.

e

Description of the ways to link performance with remuneration during the performance 'measure_ment period:

The KMPs being primary drivers of the business and stratagy of the Company, their remuneration in terms of Variable
Pay has to be harmonious with the performance of the Comipany. Therefore, the NRC, whiile considering the Variable
Pay for the KMPs of the Company for any given period, shall ensure that such Variable Pay to the KMPs js
commensurate with the ovérall performance of the Company during the performance period. Besides, the Campany,
while considering variable pay or revision of fixed pay structure of any of the KMPs, takes inte account the market
mavements, such as market positiening of the Company, relevant experience of KMP etc. The minimum parameters
of institutional performance, which shall be taken inta account by the NRC for determination of Variable Pay of the
KMPs for any period or for revision of Fixed Pay is calculated post evaluation of performance against Performance
parameters as defined in the IRDAI guidelihes,

Numeric weightage arrived on the basis of institutional performance on each of the above parameters is suitably
cenfigured by the NRC for the MD/CEO/WTDs and other KMPs depending on their respective roles, Such numeric
weightage constitutes at least 60% of the total weightage in the performance assessment matrix of MD/CEQ/WTDs (at
least 30% in case of other KMPs individuatly}, balznce 40% is decided by the NRC from time to time keeping in view
the businass priorities, business strategy of the Company and market dynamics,

The deterioration in the financial performance of the Company including the above-defined parameters or
deterioration in overall performance of the KMP leads to a contraction in the.total amount of Variable Pay which is
even reduced o zero, TN
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Managerial Remuneration
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Managing Director’s remuneration for the year on account of salary, retirement benefits, perquisites and other long term
incentive plans is Rs. {000} 54,800 {Previous Year- Rs. {'000} 65,823} as per detalls given hereunder:

oo ™

Asit Rath  |Amit Malik | Asit Rath | Amit Malik

CEO&MD |[CEO&MD ICEO&MD |CEO&MD

Pay and Allowances [a) 25,134 - 16,635 7,744

Fixed Pay Perquisites ete. {b) 1,610 - 1,797 14

Total {c]) = (a)+{b} 26,744 - 18,432 7,758

Cash Paid 12,198 15,858 - 6,942

Components {d) | Deferred - - - -

s Non-Cash Settled - - - -

Variable Pay Components {e} | Deferred - - - -

Total (f)=(d}+(&) Paid/Settled 12,198 15,858 - 6,942

' Deferred - - - -

Total of Fixed and Variable Pay {c) + {f) 38,942 15,858 18,432 14,760

Amount Debited to Revenue Afc 26,744 - 300 14,700

Amount Debited to Profit & Loss A/c 12,198 15,858 18,132 32,691

Value of loining/Sign on Bonus - - - -
Retirement benefits like Gratuity, pension, etc; paid during the

- - - 32,691

Year T

Amount of deferred remuneraticn of earlier years paid/settled

during the year i ) i j

1 Asit Rath

Details of Qutstanding remuneration

CEO & MD

2. Amit Malik

CEQ & MD

The managerial remuneration above does not include the actuarially valued employee benefits that are accounted as per
Accounting Standard [AS} 15 (Revised), “Employee Benefits” that are determined on an overall Company basis.

Remuneraticn and Sitting Fee paid/payable to non-whole time independent directors during the year as per details given

i Eran.ti _Ven‘kataramagupta 3,288 1,800 815 2,400
Sumithasri :

2, Suresh Mahalingam 2,439% 2,400 - 2,700

3. Amit Agarwal 933 900 - -

4. Bobby Parikh - - - 1,700

5. Ashwani Puri - - - 100

*Includes remuneration of Rs {‘000) 968 pertaining to FY 2022-23 approved in the current year
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Disclosures under Accounting Standard 15 (Revised}

The Company has calculated the various employee benefits provided to employees as under:

A, Defined Contribution Plans

£

AYIVA

Life insurance

Contribution to Employees Provident Fund 61,515 56,489
Contribution to ESIC 3,530 2,992
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 351 259
Contribution to NPS 8,515 6,570

B. Defined Benefit Plan / Other Employes Benefits

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of

defined benefit obligations

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 99,343 22,64 104,314 17,237
Current service cost 4,749 10,075 5,447 13,566
Interest cost 7,252 1,652 6,801 1,124
Benefits paid (34,697) (6,837) {27,644) (5,156)
Net actuarial {gain) / Joss recognized in the year 5,167 {9,602) 10,425 {4,128)
Presant value of obligation as at the end of the year 31,814 17,932 99,343 22,645

Recaonciliatio
12

tg
5,

R s T S0

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 98,772 - 103,804 .
Adjustments

Contribution made during the year 8,000 - 19,000 -
Return on plan assefs 8,396 . 7,266 -
Benafits paid {34,697 - {27,644) -
Net actuarial gain / {loss) recognized in the year 1,507 - {3,654) -
Fajr value of plan assets at the end of the year 81,978 - 98,772 -

Reco

R TS S SRR

Prasent value of obligation as at the end of year 8,814 17,92 99,343 22,645
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 81,978 - 58,772 -
Net liability recognized in balance sheat 164 {17,932) {571) {22,645}

Cost for the year

8
Current service cost 4,748 10,075 5,447 13,566
Interest cost 7,252 1,653 6,601 1,124
Return on plan assets {8,396} - {7,266} -
Net actuarial {gain)/loss recognized in the year -3,660 {3,603) 14,079 {4,126)
Net cost recognized for the year ‘7,265 2,125 19,061 10,564
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Prmmpal assumptions

DJscountrate . B 7.17% | 7.17%

7.30% 7.30%
Future Salary Increase 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%: 8.00%
Expeacted rate of return on plan assets 8.50% - 7.00% -

Government of India Securities

Major categories of plan assets [as percentage of total plan assets)

51% 58%
Corporate Bonds 24% 22%
Equity 18% 1%
Others 7% 9%
Total 100% 10034

The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority,
promaotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Dlsclosure relatlng to present va!ueof daned beneflt obllgatlon and fair valu of plan assets and net actuarial Ioss.

(Rs. ‘000)

Presentvalue of ]

obligation as at the 81,814 17,932 85,343 22,645 104,314 17,237 9?,538 18121 90,861 17,287

end

Fair value of plan

assats at the end 81,578 - 98,772 - 103,804 - 63,341 - 71,5934 -

Net liabllity

tecognized in 164 (17,332) (574 {22,645] {510} {17,237) {34,197} {18,121) {18,927) {17,287)

balange sheet

;llc;ts:titfarlalrlsaml 3,660 {3,603} 14,079 (4,126) 8775 {9,746) B,BEB (6,201} 11,989 {8.013)
Experience on Actuarlal Gam![Loss) for Plan Benefit Outgo and Plan Assets {Rs. '000)

gz r;l;m BeneRit (5,050) 9,635 {8,289) 4,805 (8,043) 8,670 {12,B45) 5,140 112,319) 7,878
[On Plan Assets 1,507 - (3,654} - |1,054) - 1,452 - (214) -

C. Provision for Other Employee Benefits/Long term benefits

Provision for Other Employee.Benefits/l.ong term benefits Rs. ('000) 27,019 {Previous Year - Rs. {*000) 55,123) in Schedule
14 pertains to the amounts provided to meet dues towards employee henefits payakle pursuant to Phantom Units
awarded to employees under Long Tarm and Short Term Incentive Plans of the Company.

The break- up of the provision is as under:

55,123

Balance as at beginning

Additional provisions/ increase made during the year 5,568 28,622
Amount paid during the year {20,522) {21,755)
Unutilized amount reversed/ written back during the year {13,150) {11,736)
Balance as at the end 27,018 55,123

Management has used best estimates with respect to uncertainties relating to attrition and performance conditions, and
Actuariaf Valuation has been done for Lang Term Incentive Plan and $hort Term Incentive Plan refated provisions and
included the same in the above reported balance at year end. The outflows under these plans are expected to be made
in the financial years 2024:25 and 2025-26., '

Based on the Supreme Court Judgment dated February 28, 2018, the Company has reassassed the compenents to be
included in the basic salary for the purposes of deduction of PF. Accordingly, the Company is carrying a provision of
Rs. ("000} 2,681 as on March 31, 2024 (Previous Year Rs. (‘'000) 2,681) in the books of account (disclosed under *Accrual

for Expenses’ under Schedule 13 Current Lizbilities)

Ry
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10.  Provision for taxation _
In the absence.of overall taxable profits, no provision for taxation has been made in the books of accounts of the current
financial year {Previous Year - Nil). The deferred tax asset Rs. ('000) 565,928 (Previous Year Rs. (000} 682,347} has not
been recognized on brought forward business loss as there is no virtual certainty to realize the same within the foreseeable
future.

11.  Percentage of business sector-wise

¥ ded h 31, 2
ear ended March 31, 2024 21,03%
5,986
Year ended March 31, 2023 21.02%

130,716

Tota! Business (lives) in the preceding financial year 761,474 2,72,612
Sacial Sector lives as a % of total business in the preceding financial year 17.17% 8.29%
Social Sector First Year Premium [Amount in Rs.’000) 96,152 30,611

12,  Allocation of investments and income thereon between Policyholders’ Account and Shareholders’ Account
The funds of the shareholders and the policyholders are kept separate and records are maintained accordingly.
Investments made out of the sharehclders” and policyhalders’ funds are tracked from their inception and the income
thereon is also accounted for separately. Hence, the allocations of investments and inceme are not required.

13. Risk retained and reinsured _
Extent of risk retained and reinsured based on sum at risk is given below;

BRI LA T ST ETpAS 1 TE =

Risk retained
Risk reinsured

14,  Reinsuranceis in place on lives insured where cover is in excass of the Company's retention limit and this has been reflected
in the Financial Statements as reinsurance cedad.

15.  Corporate Social Responsibility
As per the provisicns of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend at least 2% of its average net profits
of immediately preceding three financial years on CSR activities eligible under the said Act.
As per above criteria, the Company was required to spend Rs. {'000) Nil (Previous year Rs. ("000} Nil) which is 2% of average
net profits of immediately three preceding financial years. The Company had spent Rs. ('00C) Nil (Previous year
Rs. ("C00) 678) in the current financial year which is included under the head miscellaneous expenses in Schadule 3A.

16.

fEnis 12023

2ot e i _ . 2024 W
%EB]Pmﬁt J{Loss) attributable on Equity Sharehoiders (Amouint in Rs 896,617 {11,84,353)
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 2,189,900,000 2,00,89,54,795
{No. of Shares)}

_Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share 0.A1 (0.59)
{Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each} (Amount in Rs.} ) )

17.  Operating expenditure incurred by the

T T

Company on the following activities is as under:

Outsourcing Expenses* 62,834 44,630
Business Development and Sales Promotion 61,768 173,826
Marketing Support.
Lead Generation Charges - -
Other Marketing Events 113,705 253,568

*as per outsourcing report
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18, The following amounts have been paid on account of penal actions taken by various gevernment autherities during the
Fnancnal year 2023 24

Insurance Regulatory and Development Autharity None Nil {Nil) Nil [Nll) Nl {Nil)

Service Tax Authorities None Nil (Nil) Nil (Nil} Nil {Nil)
Income Tax Authorities Nene Nil (Nil) Nil {Nil) NH {Nil)
Any other Tax Authorities None Nil (Nil) Nil (Nif) Nit {Nil)
Enforcement Directorate/ Adjudicating Authority/ Tribunal or ; ; .
any Authority under FEMA Naone Nil (N1} Nil (NiB) Nil {Nil)
Registrar of Companies/ NCLT/CLB/ Department of Corporate - - .
Affairs or any Authority under Companies Act, 1956 None il (Nl il (il il (Nil)
PEI:‘iaItY awarded by any Cou‘rt,f Tribunal fo.r any matter inciuding None Nl (N il (il Nl [NT)
claim settlement but excluding compensation

Securities and Exchange Board of Indiz_(Post listing) None NH (M Nil {Nil} Nil {NiT)
Competition Commission of India None Nif (N1} NIl {Nil} Nil {NIL)
Any other Central/StatefLocal Government / Statutory Authority None- Nl (N1} Nl (Nil) Nil (Nil)

Note: Table above does not include contested penalties.
* Amounts in brackets reprasent previous year figures

13. Contingent Liabilities

Partiy pald-up investments 4,854 -
Underwriting commitmants sutstanding fin respect of shares & securities) - -
Claims, other than thaose under policies, not acknowledged as debts by the 4515 27.815
Company

Guarantees given by or an behalf of the Company 2,500 2,500
Reinsurance obligations to the extent not provided for in accounts - -
Othears {In relation to Claims against policies) 182,699 2,01,200
Statutory demands/liabilities in dispute, not provided for * - 13,26,493

* Based on the review done by the management during the year, supparted by independent expert opinions in this regard, it has
been assessed that the possibility of outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits in service tax related litigations is remote.
For these matters, the Company has till date, made deposits of Rs. (000} 55,442 to the appeilate forums.

As part of an industry wide investigation, during the vear, Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intefligence has made
certain enquiries on the Input Tax Credit availed on certain expenses, The Company is explaining the position-and has submitted
relevant documents. The Corhpany has not received any show cause notice from the department. During the year, the Company has
made deposits of Rs, {‘000) 50,000.

20, Pavment to Auditors for other Services*

JC Bhalla & Co Chartered Acccuntants Tax audlt /Certlfi:atlon Cost 200 700
Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyarand Co Chartered Accountants | Tax audit /Certification Cost 700 200
Total 900 200

*Excluding GST and out of packet expense
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Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

T

Performance Ratios
et .

g

W
W

AVIVA

Life Insurance

v Business Premiu,
Linked Individual - Life Participating NA NA
Linked individual - Penslon Partfcipating NA NA,
Linked tndividual - Life Nan Farticipating 55% 34%
Linked Individual - Pension Non Participating 46% {58)3%
Linked Group - Non Participating ' {18)% 1%
Non Linked Individuat - Life Participating NA 100%
Non Linked Individuat - Pension Participating NA NA
Non Linked Individual - Life Non Participating {341% A%
Non Linked individual - Pension Mon Participating {23)% {48)%
Non Linked Group - Life Non Participating 26% 1%
Non Linked Group - Pension Non Participating 0% 0%
Mon Linked Annuity Non Participating 14% {15)%
Non Linkad - Varlable - Group {20)% 143%
Non Linked Health Non Participating 100% {1001%
Other Rotios:
2- Net Retention Ratio 94% 95%
3 Expense of Management to Gross Direct Premium Ratio 26% 23%
4 Commisslon Ratio {Gross commission paid to Gross Premium) % 3%
5 Ratlo of palicyhalders' liabilities to shareholders’ funds 19,03 19.88
5 Growth rate of shareholders’ funds 17 % 13%
7 Ratlo of surplus to policyhoiders' liability 3.50% (L.14)%
2 Change in Net worth [Rs, '000) B96,617 65,645
3 Profit after tax/Total income 3.14% (5.88)%
10 (Total Real Estate + Loans)/Cash & invested assets MA NA&
11 Total Investments / (Capital + Surplus) 20.20 20.68
12 Total affiliated lnvestments / {Capital + Surplus) NA NA
13 Investment yield {gross and neét)
Policyholder |- Gross (Realized and Un-realized investment income) 12.5% 6.0%
- Met [Realized investment income) 9.4% 8.2%
Shargholder |- Gross (Reallzed and Un-realized investment income) 6.9% 7.0%
- Net [Reallzed investment income) 6.9% 705
14 Conservation Ratio
Linked Par individual Life B2% 75%
Linked Par Penslon 173% B28%
Linked Non Par individual Lifa 9% 79%
Linked Non Par Pension 83% 85%
Linked Non Par Graup 0% 0%
Non Linked Par individual Life 78% 4%
Nom Linked Par Pension 33% 87%
Non Linked Nan Par Individual Life 85% 8%
Non Linked Non Par Individual Pension 4% 73%
Non Linked Groug Life Non Par 0% 7%
Non Linked Varlable Group 0% 0%
Non Linked —Health 87% 95%
154 Persistency Ratio (by numbers)
For 13th manth 62% G0%
For 25th month 50% 54%
For 37th month 48% 51%
for 49th Month 454% 56%
For 615t month 44% 42%
158 Persistenicy Ratio (by premium)
for 13th month 70% 75%
For 25th month 63% Sh%
For 37th month 51% 53%
For 49th Month 50% 47%
For 615t month 42% 44%
16 NPA Ratio
Grass NPA Ratio 0.50% 0.659%
Nat NP2 Ratio 0.10% 0,113
17 Solvency Ratio 183% 134%




B AVIVA
Life Insurance

Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

23,  Sum of FianciaISaemets _ - _ _ - {Rs. ‘600)

)

P
1 | Gross Premium Income 13,468,592 13,174,529 12,681,484 11,652,550 11,936,373
2 | Net Premium {ncome 12,668,879 12,478,480 11,579,401 11,001,314 11,350,475
3 | Income from investments {Net} 15,437,059 7,287,008 11,400,533 17,073,599 {355,372)
4 | Other income 33,474 22,710 36,395 46,852 53,689
5 Extra Mortality Rate/Other Charges Contribution 21,402 8774 10,234 10,423 10814
from Sharehclders
6 | Total iIncome 28,160,814 159,796,971 23,426,563 28,132,188 11,059,606
7 i Commissions 794,616 352,179 324,526 251,641 237,256
8 | Brokerage - - - - -
9 | Operating expenses relating to insurance business 2,834,433 2,845,894 2,522,436 2,525,883 2,344,387
10 | Bad debts written off 234,918 - - - -
11 | Provision for Tax - - - - -
Provisions {other than taxatian) - o
12 For dlminuiion I the value of investments (Net) {222,171) 4,918 90,450 (14,636) 289,787
Total Expenses 3,641,796 3,242,991 2,937,412 2,762,888 2,871,430
13 | Payment to policyholders 10,083,121 11,019,711 11,915,917 5,938,808 10,915,421,
14 | Increase in actuaria! liability 8,036,669 9,458,648 8,466,419 7,488,450 8,724,747
15 | Pravision for Linked Liabilities 5,741,933 | (2,531,379} 1,129,788 8,178,468 {11'140‘423]'
16 | Surplus/{Deficit) from operations 657,285 {1,353,000) (1,022,974} {236,426) {311,571)
iﬁAREHOLDE RS’ ACCOUNT
17 | Total income under Sharehalders’ Account 391,001 361,091 427,554 479,271 502,581
18 'ljotal Expenses under Shareholders’ Account 170,287 189,093 233,913 563,978 612101
{includes EMR}
19 | Provisions {other than taxation) :
For diminution in the value of investments {Net) (19,257) (60} (10,295) (2,057} 3674
20 | Profit/Lass before tax 896,617 (1,184,357} {85%,257) {427 424} {4,93,105}
21 | Provisions for tax - - - - -
22 | Profit/Loss after tax 896,617 | (1,184,357) {859,257) {427,424} {4,93,105}
23 | Profit/{Loss) carried to the balance sheet (15,041,094) { (15937,711) | (24,753,354) | (13,894,097) {13’465'673;
MISCELLANEQUS
24 | A)Pollcyholders’ account
Total Funds (including Funds for future 132,429,039 | 118,524,200 | 111,594,680 | 102,035,787 | 85,617,651
appropriatton)
Total Investments 332,238,537 | 118,128,547 | 110,414,436 | 101,215,760 84,321,762
Yield on investments (%) 8.94% 5.59% 11.38% 20,27% {0.41)%
B)-Shareholders' dccount
Total Funds' 6,959,556 5,961,289 5,295,644 6,165,572 6,505,571
Total Investments 6,275,389 5,156,629 5,050,560 6,412,167 6,606,952
Yield on investrments{%) 7.15% 7.33% 7.75% 7.64% B.12%
25| Yield on total investments (%) 8.76% 6.62% 11.20% 19:.40%. 0.11%
26 | Paid up equity capital 21,899,000 21,899,000 20,048,953 20,059,669 19,972,243
27 | Net worth 8,857,906 5,961,289 5,295,644 6,165,572 6,505,571
28 | Total Assets 143,391,200 | 128,130,828 | 120,727,145 | 113,121,573 95,536,433
29 | Earnings par share 0.41 {D.59) {0.43} {0.21) {0.25}
30 | Book value per share 313 e 2T 2.64 3.07 3.26
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Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Related Party Disclosures

ular,
Aviva International Holdings Limited, UK

B AVIVA

Life Insurance

Control

Dabur Invest Corp. {Partnership Firm)

Substantial Interest

Aviva International Insurance Limited

Significant Influence

Aviva Central Services UK Limited

Significant Influence

Aviva Investors Global Services Limited, UK

Significant Influence

Aviva Investors Asia Pte. Limited

Significant Influence

Aviva Life Services UK Limited

_Significant Influentce

Aviva Group Holdings Limited

Significant Influence

Aviva Asia Managemient Pte Limited

Significant Influence

Aviva Plc

Signiflcant Influence

Experian Credit Information of India Private Limited.

Entity in which relative of director is.a director

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

it

Amit Malik (DOC - July 11, 2022)
. Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Asit '_‘ath {DOA- July 11, 2022)
Sanali Athalye Chief Financial Officer (DOA - August 13, 2021)
Angj Arora Company Secretary {DOC - August 29, 2022}
Komal Jally Company Secretary {DOA - January 4, 2023)
Transactions with related parties:

Recharge of purchase of assets and other

operating expenses supporting 644,292 168,804
AVIVA Central Servicas UK Insurance technologies apd gthers
Urnited Reimbursement/Payable towards ) 2363

secondment charges of expats *

Consuitant payment for CIO recruitment - {722}

Balance Receivable/{Payable) 24,844 21,715
AAV“'.'a Asia Management Fte Recharge of executive search fees {11,641) -
Limited

Balance Receivable/{Pavable) - -
Asit Rath Managerial Remuneration {38,542) {18,432}
Amit Malik Managerial Remuneration (15,858} {47,391}
Other Managerial Persons Managerial Ramuneration {16,108) {12,064}

25,  As per IRDA! (Expenses of Management of Insurers transacting life Insurance business) Regulations, 2023 the Company is

required to ensure that for the FY 2023-24, the actual expenses of management are not above 100% of the allowable

expenses.

For FY 2023-24, the Company is compliant on overall basis for participating and non-participating business segments
respectively and actual expenses at the Company level are at 95% (Previous year 94%) of the tota allowable expenditure

under the regulations.

The Company has charged the excess of actual expenses over zllowable expenses of Rs. {'000} Nil (Previous year
Rs. {'000) 36,989), determined at a Segment [eve], to the Shareholders’ Account in‘jine with the regulations




H AVIVA
Life insurance
Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

26.  Disclosures under IRDAI {Treatment of Discontinued Linked Insurance Policies) Regulations, 2010 relating to Discontinued

Policy Fund

1 Number of Policles discontinued during the financlal year 2,132 1,364

2 Product wise percentage of discontinued policies to total policies
Aviva Freedom Life Advantage 0.07% 0.15%
Aviva Life Saver Advantage 0.08% 0.07%
Aviva Sachin Extra Cover Advantage 0.00% 0.00%
Aviva Young Scholar Advantage 0.56% 0.60%
Aviva I — Growth 1.26% 1.80%
Aviva Life Bond advantage 0.00% 0.00%
Aviva Live Smart Plan 0.12% 0.42%
Aviva Affluence 5.66% 7.16%
Aviva Fortune Plus 14.08% 5.05%
Aviva Signature fnvestment Plan 5.14% 0.87%

3 Number of discontinued policies revived 156 126

4 :::r:entage of poiicies revived {to discontinued policies) during the 7% a%

5 Charge imposed on Account of Discontinued nolicies {Rs' 000) 6,590 3,741

6 Charges readjusted en.account of revival of policies (Rs' 000) 335 220

27. Noteon Movement in iscontin ued Policy Fund

AT oo

REZI000)

Open cies 1,450,992 1,549,830
Add : Fund of policies discontinued during the year 620,315 734,996
Less : Fund of pollcles revived during the year {125,114) {91,459}
Add : Gross income/Gains on investment of the fund 112,964 91,362
Less : Fund management chargés including transaction cost ievied during the year {9,586) {10,303}
Less ; Amount refunded to policyholder during the vear {752,437) {783,434}
Closing balance of Fund for discontinued policies 1,337,123 1,490,992
28.  Claims Reconciliation (Life/Non fife)
T B

Qpening Balance

Add : New intimations 49,032 55,403
Less : Claims settled 47,355 53,627
Less : Claims declined 36 21
Lisss - Claims written back” 81 103
Closing Balance 8,486 6,926




i AVIVA
Life Insurance

Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

29. Unclaimed Amount of Policyho[delfs: _
As per IRDAI Circular on Unclaimed amount of Policyholders Reference No. IRDAI/FRA/CIR/Misc/41/2/2024; disclosure
on unclaimed amounts by policy holders is given below: (Rs. “000)

S ' i =
Claims settled but not paid to the
palicyholders/ insurad due to any
reasons except under litigation from
the insured/ pollcyholder
Sum'due to the insured / policyholders
oh maturity or otherwise
Any excass collectlon of the premium/
tax or any ather charges which is
refundable ta the policyholders eithier
as terms of canditions of policy r as
per law or as may be directed by the
Autharity but not refunded so far
Cheques Issued but not encashed by
ol

120,452 18,631 6,916 869 18,814 11,915 4,696 57,267 1,384

322,878 | 20,005 | 21,619 | 4,936 | 13,624 | 17984 | 37,750 | 194421 | 12,439

4,087 . 58 504 472 779 707 1,567 -

755,390 | 73,353 37,989 ; 26,687 | 44,927 14,552 17,331 } 480,555 59,096

o e S T e F ek ABF ol By L {2 et AL
Claims settled but not pald to the
policyholders/ insured due te any
reasons except under litigation from
the insured/ poiicyhoider

Sum due to the insured / policyholders
on maturity or otherwise

Any excess collection of the pramium/
tax or any other charges which is
refundable to the policyholders either

131,515 3,782 | 20478 ; 28306 5,452 4,714 9,353 50,649 8,781

499,195 | 17,932 | 23,361 | 41416 | 76052 | 76891 | 41,847 | 218576 | 5220

ot o 10,846 2,270 2,385 1,572 1,268 417 1,574 1,360 -
as terms of conditions of policy or as
per law or as may be directed by the
Authority but not refunded so far
Cheques issued but not encashed by

the 987,314 | 820,966 | 116,030 4521 39,191 6,103 24,263 | 629,625 90,684

T

! 10);
Opening Balance 1,628,870 1,685,389
Add: Ameunt transferred to unclaimed amount 313,930 630,454
Add:; Cheques issued out of the unclaimed amount but not encashed by Policyholders 40,773 3,366
Add: Investment income net of charges on Unclaimed Fund 103,917 86,677
Less: Amount of-Claims pald during the year {529,728} {603,768)
Less: Amount dissolved as per IRDAI eircular {106,452) -
Less: Amount transferred to SCWF {net of claims paid in respect of amounts transferred earlier) {248,463) {174,248)
Closing Balance of Unclaimed Policyholders’ Fund 1,202,847 1,628,870
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B AVIVA

Life Insurance

Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

32.  Asrequired by circularno. IRDAI/F&I/CIR/F&A/D45/03/2010, the detail of the fund is mentioned below:

32,1 Computation of Controlled fund a5 per the Balance Sheet

Policyholders' Fund (Life fFund}
Participating (Non Ltinked)
Individual Assuranee 360,665 324,153
Individual Pansion 8,790 §222
Mon Partlcipating [Mon Linked)
Individizal Assurance ‘87,020,140 79,180,569
Individisal Pension 1,814,922 1,871,423
Group Suparannuation and Gratuity 1,004,854 924,434
‘Group Annuity 818,357 711,364
Group Varizble 78,633 64,984
Health 327,046 307,582
Fair Value Change 135,013 0,427
Linked {Par + Non Par)
Indlvidual Assurance 33,780,352 28,205,677
Individuzl Pension 2,986,238 2,766,586
Group Assurance 3,192,219 3,244,619
Funds far Future Appropriations 904,803 504,154
Total (A} 132,429,039 118,524,200
Shareholders' Fund
Palid up Capital 21,859,000 21,899,000
Reserves and Surplus - -
Fair Vatue Change 101,650 -
Tatal [B) 22,000,650 21,299,000
Miscellanepus. expenses not written off - R
Credit / {Debit] from Profit and Loss Account {15,041,094) [15,837,711)
Total (C} {15,041,084} {15,837,711)
Tatal shareholders' funds {B+C] 5,959,556 5,561,289
Cantroiled Fund {Total {A+B-C)} 139,388,595 124,485,489

32.2  Reconcllifation of the Controlled Fund fratn Revenue and Profit and Loss Account

0pe'rﬂr|'g Balance of Cantrollad Fund

,880,326
Add: Inflow - B
ncome - -
Premtium Income 13,468,592 13,174,529
Lass: Reinsurance cedad {799,113) {696,049]
Net Premium 12,668,879 12,478,480
|rvestment Income { {Lass) 15,437,059 7,287,008
Other Income 33,474 22,710
Funds transfarred from Shareholdars' Accounts {ineluding EMR cost) 1,133,183 1,525,022
Total Income 29,272,595 21,313,220
Less: Jutgo
{i} Benefits pald {Nat} 10,061,312 11,000,208
{iii} Interim Banys Paid 21,809 19,510
{iiit} Change in Valuation of Liability 13,778,602 6,927,269
{iv} Commission 794,615 352,179
{v} Operating Expansas 2,683,180 2,709,201
{vi] Bad debts 234,918 -
{wiil Provision for Taxation [FET] - -
{vilil Provision For diminutionin the value of Investmants {Nat} [222,171) 4,918
{ix]) Sarvice Tax on Premlim 141,253 136,603
Total Outgo 27,503,519 21,149,971
Sumplus of the Policyholders’ Fund 1,769,076 163,249
Less: transferred to Sharcholders’ Account 1,768,427 158,833
Net Flow in Policyholders' agcount 649 3,416
Add: Net income [ {Loss) in Shareholders’ Fund 896,617 {1,184,357)
Net In Flow [ [Outflow) B97,266 [1,180,941)
Add: change In valuation Liabilities 13,778,602 6,927,269
Add: increase in Paid up Capital - 1,850,000
Add; Fair Value Change {SH +PH) 227,236 {1,165)
Closing Balance of Controlled Fund 139,388,595 124,485,488
A Per Balance Sheet 139,388,595 124,485,488




Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

32,3 Reconciliation with Shareholders' and Policyholders' Fund
32,3.1 Policyholders’ Funds - Traditional-PAR and Non-PAR

#

AVIVA

Life Insurance

L

Opening Balance of the Palicyholders' Fund 83,444,424 73,976,73

Add: Surplus of the Revenue Account 2,144 10,208
Add: change in valuation Liahilities 8,036,669 9,458,648
Add: change in fair value of investments 125,587 {1,167}
Total 91,608,824 83,444,424
As per Balance Sheet 91,608,824 83,444,424

32.3.2 Policyhulders Funds Linked (inclnding Iinked FFA]

35,079,777

Opening Balance of the Policyholders' Fung 37 617 948
Add: Surplus of the Revenue Account {1,497) {6,792}
Add: Change in valuation llabilities 5,741,933 {2,531,379)
Tota! 40,820,213 35,079,777
As per Balancs Sheet 40,820,213 35,079,777

32.3.3 Shareholders' Funds

33.

T

Opening Balance of Shareholders’ Fund

5 951 291 5 295 645
Add: net income of Sharehoiders' account 896,617 {1,184,357)
Add: Infusion of Capital - 1,850,000
Add: change in fair value of investments 101,650 2
Closing Balance of the Shareholders’ fund 5,959,558 5,961,291
As per Balance Sheat ;959,558 5,961,291

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and

Details of dues to microand smail enterprises as defined under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 [“MSMED Act”] on the basis of information available with the Company:

beyond the appointed day during the year

. . . - 50
remaining unpaid as at year end
interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining i i
unpaid as-at year end
Principal amounts pald to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 44,902 71,163

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered undet the MSMED Act, beyond the appeinted day during the
year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED
Act, for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years
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Avlvd Ufs Insurance Company Indla Bmited
SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POULIES AND ND'TES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Noma of 1he Inzurer - Avive Lie Inpronce Company fndia lmiled
Reglshation Ma. 122
Dale of Registralon wilh IRDA - T4th May 2042

ETES [a} Peformance of the Funde (CAGLT) [As od 31 Morch 2024)

LUFI0 0404 2002HFRALANCEF22

Bit AVIVA

Life Insurance

HUFDGS27/01 F200AUFEGROWIH1 22 F7-JenD4
Uirlt Linkad Sacurs Fund LIUFGAZF{ 0 S200UIFESECURET 22 AF=dare4
Urlt Linked Protecior Fund LIMAFDGR | 102200408 PROTECT T 1 Ewlul-0f
\iriflsed With Praflt Bundd LFO0225/ 04 FA00ZLIFWPROATI 2T AE-JunE
Ponsion it Linked 8alonced Fund ULFO03 FF/02/3000PMSZALANC E1 22 11-Fab-0d
E?cnsloﬂ Urat Binkad Growih Fund LIP3 0320057 MEHCROWTH 1 22 OF-Mear 85
Pansionbinli 1inked Securg Fynd ULF0803/03/200 3P MSHSECURE] 22 O-haar-05
Ponsfon Linitked with Profit Fund LAIED0 F EAO2 03P HIWPROMTI 22 1i-Fel03
Croup Groluity ond § Bolonced Fund LAGF0210/03/ 2006 GROUPEALANIT 22 . M-
Group Gralulty end Supsrnruation Grawth Fund ULGRO4I O3 200AGROUPGROWTIZZ T-biaeid
Growp Gratlty ond Superonruotion Secure Fund URGHXI 1 3/07/ 205 GROUDSECUR 1 22 13- ful-05
Graup Gratulty and Supsranrwation Sosh Fund ULGROO53] /O3 A004GRONPT ATHR 22 I -hio-0é
Group Gratulty and Superannuation Dabt Fund ULGHXII N 03/ 2008 SROUPDERTF 22 T-War-De
Groug Groiuity and Superonruation Ineome Furnd UL GFOO72A/03/ 201 IGROLUPINCOM 122 2311
Pernslon Unit bnked Indes Fynd LUED) 122401 S200EPRENINDERF i 22 22.Jan-08
Penslon Urdt Binked Pratactar Fund LLIFT 408/ 02/ 08P MEPROTECTIAZ (08-Fol-08
Mnit Lnked Dobt fund LHIFH 305/ 02 /2008 FEDERTEL 1 22 D&-Fab-08 -
Unlt Lirked Enhonces fuhid LR ] 250/ £2008 I ENHANCER 122 at-Jor-08
Ifrit Unked Index Fund LR 003/ /20G8FE| MOEXF T 22 02-Jan-QB
Graup Supsmnnuation Shorf Term Debt Fund LGFO041 /03 200F GROUPSDES T 22 13-Fon-0%
Lnlt Unked Bolanced funchi| UUFD1 SOBFCH 201 G BALAN1122 08 Jar- 1)
it Linked Growth Funddi LD B0B/H £20 1 DU GROWT1 22 Cg-Jan-ED
kinit Linked Protecior Fund4l LIUFJ2 t0B/0N J20 DU PR OTEN] 22 02-Jan-10
Penslon Urit Linked Bofonesd Funddl LUFIZ326/0] S2010PHAALAN | 123 A3-Jon-1l
Pension Urit Linked Growth Fund-l LLFO2425/H F2010PNGROWIHLE22 I5-lan-1o
Penislon Linit Lirtked Indes Fundd | LUFD2525/ 3 2010PHINDERA 122 25-Jan-10
Penslon Unit Linked Protecfar Fund-l LILFd2825/01 A2 10PNPROTEIN 22 25-lan-10
kirlt Unkod Dobt Fund-1] WIFH $08/31 201 DL FLERT-H $22 Bi-Jare 10
Unit Unked Bnhonces Fund-l| W LR 7080 #2031 DUFEMHMNAI 124 Og-Jor10
Rrrit Unked Indes Fupedl LIURIZ008/01 £201 QUFIND¥SE 22 Of-Jan-10
Uit Unked Infrastructure Fund LLIEQ | P08/ 00 #2304 DU FEIMFRAS EXT D8-Jor- 10
Ponslon Uil Urniked Infrosituciute Fund ULFIZ525/0 520 QPHEMINFRAF1 22 25-Joreil
&t Linkod PSU Fund UUED2208/01 /20 OUFEPSUFND 22 0B-Jor-10.
Penslan Usit Linked PSU Fund W37 25/01 420 OPNANPSUFN D 22 25-Jark
fnit Unked Dynomic PAE fund LIdFga201 /08,5201 TLUFDYMAMIC 122 Ai-Aug-§
Dlseontiouecd Pollcf Fund LR 32401 /20 TUDISCRLCY 122 2r-laned
Einlt Linkad Mideop fundit LI LFT3320/ 01 f 20T LI FEAMIDC AP ) 22 H-landd

A3 of 3 Maorch 2023

Unii Unked Balanced fund

LILFOGTOS (/2002 FBALANCE 22

kit tinkerd Growth Fune

ULRIGSIF{H f2004FEGROWTHI 22

Linit Einkadt Secure Fund

ULF0627 /01 A HI04 1 FESECURET 22

LInit Hekacf Pretaciar Fund

WHRGH 1 107/ 2004 I FPROTECTIZ2

tritiserd Wiih Profit Fung

LR35/ 06 200U FWPROAE 22

Pension Unil tinked Bolanesd Fund

LI LIFO03 1 /D2 A00APMSRALAHCET 22

Penzlon Unit Lirked Growth Fund

LA/ 03 S PRNSMGROWTH 122

Penylonini Unked Socurd Fund

LIUFD0R03/00/ 2D0EPHNANEECHRE 1 22

Pendan Uniised with Profit fund
Croup Graiulty end supseannuation Balanaad Fund

ULR001 1 /O 00IPHSWPROFITEZZ

ULGFO02 1 032006 GROUPAALANIZ2

GCroup Gratully ang Superannyation Growth Aund

ULGHOO41 0032008 GROUPGROWT 22

Group Graiuty and Supsrmnruation Secwe fund’

UL GROT 13022005 GRAUPSECUR 122

Gtoup Gralyity end Superonmation Cash Fand

LGOS JOSDDAGROUPTASHE 122

Group Gratulty and Supamnruation Sebl fund
Group Gratulty cnd Syperannugtion Incoms Furd

ULGFO031 0032004 GROUPDERTF [22

ULGFO0?26/03/20) | SROUPENCOM LD

Pansion Unit tiaked lndew Fund

L LFH F22/01 2D0APNSHINDIEKF122

Pention it Unked Pratecfor Fupd

U LRD 1408/ 02/ 2008PHIPROTECTI 22

Unit linked Oobt Fuvd IUUHH:NJMD?I?DD&U FECEITFLI22
Elnit Eirikerd Enbraricer Fund [ULIRD]230/01 /2008 EHHANCER 122

UnH Unked Index Fund

LIS D02/01 /20660 FEINDEXF1 22

Group Supemnnuation Shed Temm Bebt Fund

L LGFO041 302N TG RECUPSDERT 1 22

tnlt tnked Boloncad Fend.li
Linil Hrked Growths Fundgi

[LILiFi SOB/01 /201 0L BALAN-21122

ULF1808/01/201 0L GROWI 122

Unlt Wnkad Froteciar Funddl

[ULIFI2H08/01 /201 U PROTEH 122

Pensien Urit tinkad Bolancad Fundd|

LIRS/ AT OPNIALANAI 22

Pension Unit Unked Growth Fund-l

ULIF2425/01 /2 OPNGROWTI 1 22

Penslon lodl Linkad Index fund4|

ULIFD2425/01 /20 OFNEMDEX 41 22

Penson Unit Linkad Protecior Funddi

UL FRA25/G1420 ] OPNPROCTESEI 22

kinit Hnkad Bobt fund-

[UURH 40801 /201 0UFDEET1 22

Einit lnked Enhancer Funddl

Ll UFH 708/0F/201 OUFENHBHI1 22

Uit Knkerd [neou FuneHl

L LIFRI008/01 /261 0L AHEX 41122

Unit binkod Infoatructure Fund

L LiFE $U8/D1 /201 QU FEMERAF122

Panslen Unit imked infrosiuaturs Fund

HFI2525/01 /201 OPNSHINFRAF 122

Wit Bnked PSU Fund

LIFp2208/0F 120 AL FEFSUFND b2

Pantion Unit tinked PSU Fund

Lrit Unked Cynoemle RAE Fung

LIFO3201 /08¢ 201 ILIFOFYHAMIC 122

Dlscontmuad Policy Fund

L
u
UUFI2R5/0T/ 01 OPNSHPSUFHDI 22
L
7]

LIFO&1 27/0 17201 IO DISTPLEY 132

Hohe: Rolurma ara colculatad as per CAGR fomula ed by IROA for b rerturm
_# Unlt Lnked Mideap Fund wan [Gunghed n donuary 2004, 1,2 'un@! 3 yoor rshums ore not appiicabla




Aviva Life Insurance Company india Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Name of the Insurer - Aviva Life Insuiance Company India Limited

Regisiralion No. 122
Date of Reglstration with IRDA - 14ih May 2002

34.3 (b) Investment Management
No investment mahagement activily is outsourced

34.3 (c} Related Parly transactions

§ AVIVA

Life insurance

There isno brokerage f commission paid to related parties during the current Year.No Invesiments are held in premeter group:

Unit Linked Balanced Fund |

[ULIFO0106/04/2000LIFBALANCE 127

(Rs.'000's)

dnit Linked Growth Fund

ULIFO0527/01 /2004LIFEGROWTH1 22

Unit Linked Secure Fund

ULIFO0&27/01/2004LIFESECURET22

Unit Linked Protector Fund

ULIFQ0911/07/2006LIFPROTECT122

Unitised With Profit Fund

ULIFO0225/06/2002LIFWPROFIT] 22

Pension Unit Linked Balanced Fund

ULIFO0311/02/2003PNSBALANCE!22

Pension Unit Linked Growth Fund

ULIFO0703/03/2005PNSNGROWTH122

PensionUnit Linked Secure Fund

ULIFO0803/03/2005PNSNSECURE] 22

Pension Unitised with Profit Fund

ULIEGO411/02/2003PNSWPROFITI 22

Group Gratuity ond Superannuation Balanced Fund

ULGFO0Z210/03/2006GROUPBALAN122

Group Gratuity and Superannuation Growth Fund

ULGFO0410/03/2006 GROUPGROWT122

Group Gratuity and Superannuation Secure Fund

ULGFOO113/07/2005GROUPSECUR 122

Group Gratvity and Superannuation Cash Fund

ULGFO0531/03/2006 GROUPCASHF1 22

Group Gratuity end Superannuaiion Debt Fund

ULGFQ0310/03/2006GROUFDEBTF1 22

Group Gratuity and Superannuaiion iIncome Fund

ULGF0728/03/201 1 GROUPINCOM122

Pension Unit Linked Index Fund

ULIFQ1122/01 /2008PNSNINDEXF122

Pension Unit Linked Protector Fund

ULIFOT408/02/2008PNSPROTECT122

Unit Linked Debt Fund

ULIFO1306/02/2008LIFEDEBTFU122

Unit Linked Enhancer Fund

ULIFO1230/01/2008LIENHANCER122

Unit Linked Index Fund

ULIFO1002/01/2008H FEINDEXF122

Group Superannuation Short Term Debt Fund

ULGFD0413/02/2009GROUPSDERT1 22

Unit Linked Balanced Fund-il

ULIFO1508/01/201CLIBALAN-I1T22

Unit Linked Growth Fund-li

ULIFO1808/01/2010LIGROWT-H122

Unit Linked Profector Fund-Il

ULIFOZ108/01/2010LPROTE-122

Penston Unit Linked Balanced Fund-i

ULIFO2325/01/2010PNBALAN-(17122

Pension Unit Linked Growth Fund-l}

ULIF02425/01/2010PNGROWI-I122

Pension Unit Linked index Fund-li

LLIFO2625/01/2010PNINDEX-1122

Pension Unit Linked Protector Fund-li

ULIFG2825/01/20TOPNPROTE-I1122

Unit Linked Debt Fund-Il

ULIFO14608/01/2010LIFDEBT-11122

Unit Linked Enhancer Fund-l|

ULIFQ1708/01/2010LIFENHN-11122

Unit Linked Index Fund-ll

UUFO2008/C1/20TOLIFINDX-11122

Unit Linked Infrastruciure Fund

UUIF019208/01/2010LIFEINFRAF122

Fension Unit Linked Infrastruciure Fund

ULIFO2525/C1/2010PNSNINFRAF122

Unit Linked PSU Fund

ULIF02208/01/2010LIFEPSUFNDT22

Pension Unit Linked PSU Fund

ULIFO2725/01/2010PNSNPSUFND 122

Unit Linked Dynamic PF/E Fund

ULIF03201/08/2C1 1 LIFDYNAMIC122

Discontinued Policy Fund

Grand Jotal.

ULIFG3127/01/201 1LIDISCPLCY122




Aviva Lifz Insurance Company Indla Limited T ;
- EZ AVIVA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TG THE ACLOUNTS
Life Insuranca

Nama of the ngures - Ariva Lit Iniuanca Comauny tdla Limaed
RetHaration o, 122
Dateof Rechivation with IRDA- Jth Mer 34

2434 Industry wisn dischasarn of it Linkwd Busina s

ALBt31 March 14

Blscentinert Paliey
Fund

Cersicate of Depeth .
E7 A1 CertAloate of Bepout
[18-Acg-13 CartHTcatn of Deneat ©
12 Sep-23 CertHicate of Depoth

Sroug ﬁpnnnmn\om & Gratulky Ealancad Fund
LILGESI2 003 PG RO P AL AN LY
i my

WAt Beondy
ertfhtate of Deposit

crtiizate el Drpat
Certhfeace of Deposht -
oepomte Sonds
MEarate Ban
Coaporata Bonths
whpmtite Bondi
| Cornoraty Bonds
£l

[ Eruley

E

Flnandul And
Imsuruntm Actbeitles

Equity
| Equlty

|1€1C] Bark Limhed

Kotk Mahincka Bink Umbed

Curtiicate of Oepoalt
Cerithoate of Drpett
eitifieate of Oepenlt
eetHleate of Oeposlt

Group Superanmstion & Gratulcy ekt Fand
LG 03 2 0E0RALTNENEFT T2
st L

L e Shealcrtion NCD 13,92 7020
A% PFC19.11T034
JT% AEC Lirnlted 07.12. 2038

A3 Irdlatully HE 33 Fep201Y

8. 7% PFCL 14052020 -
9,05 Dewan Hualng Flnarce 14 06 04 200

Fnandal Ant
|Corparate Bonas

emsranim Acthultiey Ceniflisie of Depiost
e riticats of Degast
Centfiesia of Doy

[Hmnciel And Invurncy Aothilles ol

S ATE

)
1,01.388) 100.00%




Aviva ife Insurance Company Indla Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOLINTS

A2 3t 31 March 2024

wpoyun of 10K

5 ith Fund

Flnandal And
Insurance Acideftiey

FnananlAnd I

T 1% EtliadwilE HF 22 -Febi-2018

300K Endluctuf Hag Fln Lid- 26092016

Certecate gf Dennglt

CortFcane of Qutemlt

Plramal Caphal B Hewslng Finaree.

ieda

aptal Lmited [ 3-Tep-26

Ay Bk Lenhed

Baje] Tnarmial Serieed 1.

HEFC Bark

[Chetacn dnttifam imestmen't atd Findrce Camparsy Limbed

8a)a] Flnanee Lirsted

33| Fanancls! Seeviors

HOFC Bank Limboed

HEFC Life nsurarwe Cefrau fry tlimred

» Grakutiy Fund

Flrmandat And
tesurun e Aty itlas

0% fural Elerifieation MED 11.12.2022

i)

ae AL s Rl E e Ly v L, i) oh
WDFE Bank Umked 28 Jun 7 ot Boceds
EES TR

| 37% UEHF L, 2305 1231205 2023) Fovwpr Faanea Corporion Lmited oepoirate Bordy

3 7% AEC Limited 07,13 30280 MEC Umeted [Ajardf  |Carpomts Boeds

D inRabuty FRgF I 2 7F 03 2046, NEC Dimited [BEtcnadCarponte Bods
oo (S e
ARG 3TN Eorcats onds
(ki Bank Llmied 7 Carthleuce of Depotin
Earara Konk A Certficats of et
DL B Umked 25 e a5 Eoramte Bands
G Barsk Limited [Cerients of Bt
bl Py Forares Tl FraBan  {oerporne Bonds
(Al Caofal & Hpwring France =R Earporaty Bongy
[Rellance Capital Umied FEr e Earporsts Bendy

Balaf Fliance Lmawd s Bark timeted

[Aaa} i tefad Serviees b1d

[Cholamznoka im Irveatmenst: and Finance Company Hmaed Bala) Firanedf Serrioas
[HDFC Bark [(HOFC Bank Umiad

[ Baa) Flrance Limited

[HDFE LHe Ireurance Comut oy Umited

(B3 | insurance company himaed

[Canara Bank

| Cholamiandalemn Investmant and Ainance Company 154

1€ Hownlng Finaren Limtted

(M aindra M M ahirre Flsmd Servors Led

FEC Limited

[Shriram Transpoet Finance £omaany Limited

rdian Bk

UFE INSURANCE CORPOMATICA OF INDIA

Rzl Financiak Servipes Lid,

Hoing feveiopment Flnuves Coep, Limibed
rCI0] Rank Limit e

Heuting Cestierpeierit Fltidree Corpofation Umited

10T B Lim|ted

bl uind B4

luatee] Bank

Katak Mahindra Benk Limted

580 raur e Conpemy Linttad [SAE Life kmurance Company Umlted

State Bank OF Iredly

[Tele M ahinttrn Bark Limdied

State Bark of India

[Fitanciel And Issurane

Acthetied Totad - -

AVIVA

Life Insurance



Avlva iHa insurante Company India Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

i
5

As w31 March T4
Tnadaptry=ved twhth naparem o 10% ned above)
Fepalan Unk Unked Batanced fund
LRG3 3PNSTALAMCETIZ
P 3 e
41K M 1 4 Hi ik il Lt rpotie A%
& 23% Licrefi £1-053024 Perwicr Firdnce © tion Litied 011 - Drpovet g Bord)
B 3T% REC Limtted OF.12. 1028 [AEC Limized LT Carporate Acte
AL Limited 300t 33 ‘drporate Bond
HABAD A6 nrporate Borydy
Cartiarm Bank 18 13 Crrificatn of Drogadt
[HEFE Bank Limed P ala il Carterste B
[MARARD 17-Aprdl orporaie Bordy
IneInbeals Bousing Firanee L 23 Feb-280 LOrporete Bord
PFiramal| fapkat & Hoaolng Fnange 26-5op- 31 CArPod v Bereh
Fedlence Cattal Umted | 3-5en-26 orpoate Bondy

Flmanctat And
Ersurpnes Actheiila

A2 Barik Limted

Baja] Finkncist Setviees Lbd B2 Flrarce Limiged

Chxdarnancalem irvestment and Flrunce Company Lmbed

DU industies Hust
[tham 11"

Pemian Uinkt Linked dalanced - | byt

Flnardal And
Inathings Acththes

LA IFIX)2S ML I PN 0P HERLAN- 132
R T

[FInmneiul Aund i i ol

LAIX |Indizbulls HF I} Feb-20IX

|26-Sepr1

i3

[Axls Bard Lbmited I-Seprdl Cortiftoatn of Deposit

Canura Bark 18y 23 Certifiate of Depoalt

ICTCE Bank Limtted 10-Jut- 11 CeetHleatn of Drpost
[3.05% Chewian Houstg Fininceitd 09,09, 3002 |dals Bark Lkmhted

[9.10% Shrirsm Trard port Fi Coa Lt 13-2ul-2021

[Aals Bank Limited -
Ei Finznclat Servkes Leg,

[Pl atrtainci v Brevestmient ard Flnance Carrmary Limieed

4

Asibeithrs Total

Ok Induatrlen Pum

Fansdon Unk Ak Growth fund

UL IFDO701/ 03/ 2005P:

1o it Acbrties

NSNGADWTHLE
T T

7.68% PFC Lmited 15.07.2030

5 R = [ i i bt LS
7 43% PFE 16112034 Incfatnrile Heatthog Fiuance L1

. 13% LCHFPL 11-05-2034

L3N TneCibuls HF J3-Fb-208

|.OO% {refitu il Hag Fin ket 26-10-2026

- {8,104 Thrimm Tansport Fis Co [y 12-iu-3020

Centificate of Dapoall

Carparate B

irg: Cararate Bonds
TFinma] Cagkal & fipuing rame Comparate Bands
Corporate Bandt
Bapa) Fir e Laited Eirdty TR
83 _|E LBL%
i LN
[HOFC Bawik Etry. 2%
[HOFE Lfte Insurance Company Eimited E T
E D%
Eaulty, o
ity Gome
B =
E¢ Nra)
1
3%
264
Frn

AVIVA

Life insurance’




Aviva Life Insura nce Company Indla Eimitad
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOLINTS

A3 3t 11 March 2084

" - " f v

Parsion Unhy Uaked Qrowth «+ § fund
ULIF02425/01/TOLRNGROWT 2T

AVIVA

Life Insurance

Flnenzlal And

Financtat Services 1id

R MTHERHd T [FrC v it FTnane Comgtatey LMo

HOFC Bank

HOFC Lif irguranes Compary Hmited

EA%

- ooon
T

A 0Ee%
_omwx
paX.
BT
1.885] 1.93%
BIG] aBaN
361] adTe
AT Ad0%
137 102%
=

2
]

Paendien Usit Undced Enfradtructure fend
LILIFES IS il A MHLOPHE N FRAF 132
T T

Eammiay progrmming craraRamcy and raltiad sl Tots]

Tech $¢a hindey Limtbed

[Axlt Bunk Limlted

ey Bamk Lmlted

Gas Autarity Df todla Limited
{Eiecticiy, pas, staam ncagr it Gaa Umltes st Qoo%
ond st canditisalnr  [FRFESonn [NTPE tienhedt 1545) 661N
e Petrunet LHG Eed n60%
131 Bank Limited o G orpor7ion of nsly Lem T T
Haafirdra & Wsingra Fra i sentces Lrted |1m Pavier Company Limited BI3[455%
[t pE, Ftanm ared alr conaitkening upply Fotal” S - EIE5) 162N
. Lk
(Mamdarture of othar  [Ambuja Cement bimeed Aenbeca Coment bimted bog
non-metatfe mizmt | Aslociabed Cement Companes bmites [Aatccit e Dementt Companles Limitesd TS| Lisw
prodlucts. Caibaruchim Unfvera] Linited Grindwest Norton | oo
) Grinchwell beortan Limited e Eamen Lmled o )
% CEMENT LMITER Uitretech Cement Lanfted 1706 7A1%
[FAAnlacre of ciher nen-twehis mineral Dmdutts Tet R . LD [TV
el 147%
oleoht ambula Cemert bumcterd ha 3l Perokum Corporation Limike oty 57|
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Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited e
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES 7O THE ACCOUNTS o A‘v i yt&
Life Insurance

Name of the insurer - Avbva Life Insurance Company India Umited
Registration No. 122

Date of Repistration with IRDA - 14th May 2002

34.3 {f) Expenses chirgad to funds [%) Totat Expanses

GROUR SUP & GRATUITY BALANCE FUND Y]
GROUP SUR & GRATUITY CASH FUND LIL GEDOS31 03/ 2006GAOUPCASHF122 954 0.95%-
GAGUF 5UF & GRATLITY DERT.FUND . LILGF 00310/ 2 00EG ROUPDERTFL 22 .95% D.agt%
GROUP SU# & GRATUITY GROWTH FUND LA GFOM4A0/03,/2006GROUPGROWT122 L34% .94%
GROLIF SUP & GRATUNTY SECURE FUND VLGFO0113/07 /2005 GROVPSECLH D.95% L95%
GROLIP SUF & GRATLITY SHORT TERM OERT FUND ULGFOOE13/02/2009GAGUPSDERT12Z - LI5% .95%
GHOUP SUP & GRATUNTY INCOME FUND LILGFDO728/03/2011GROUPINCOM).22 ue)] B.00%
PENSION UNIT LINKED BALANCE FUND LLIF00331/07/2003PNSBALANCEL 22 L 485 A%
PENSION UNIT LINKED BALANCE FLIND-l ULIFO2325/01/2010PNBALAN- 1122 LE0% 5%
PENSION UNIT LINKED GROWTH FUND ULIFDO703,/03/2005PNSNGROWTHI 22 775 Fi%
PENSION LNIT LINKED GROWTH FUND-IE LILIFO24 2501201 0PHGROWT 1122 50% 50%
PENSION LINIT LIHKED |NDEX FUND LLIFO1122/01 f30QBPNSNINDEXF12Z 7% D.ETH
PENSION UNIT LINKED INDEX FUND-IL ULIFD2625/01/2000PNINDEX-1222 1I7% 119%
PENSION UNET LIMKED INFRASTRUCTURE FUND ULIFO2525/01/2010PNSNINFRAF122 1355% 1.59%
PENSION UNIT LINKED PROTECTOR FUND ULIFO1408/02 f20ABPNSPROFECT122 19% 119%
PENSION UNIT LINKED PROTECTOR FUMB- LILIPOZH35 /01 /2010PNPROTE-11 142 LEO% LE0%
UNIT LINKED PSU FUND ULIFG2725/01/2000PNSNASUFND 22 SEH 1.56%
UNIT IMKED SECURE FUND ULIFG0803/03/200SPNSNSECUREL 32 119% 1.19%
PENSION LINITISED WITH PROFIT FLIND LULIF{HI411 /02 f2 00 IPNSWPROFITLI22 L00% Q.00%
LiNET LINED DEST FUND-jI LILIFO1608/01 /20100 FDERT-11122 GO 160%
LIMIT LINKED BALANCE FUND LI FO0106/06/2002U FEALANCEL2 2 AR 485
LIMFT RIMKED BALAMCED FLIND-I! LLIF1508/01 /201 0MEBALAN-I1122 1.60% B0%
LINIT LINKED CHAT FUND: ULIFQ1306/02/2 00BUFEDERTRLUL2S 5% 1%
LINFT £|NKED ENHANCER FUND LILIF1230/01/200SUENHANCERIZZ 5% 2.05%
LMIT LINKED ENHANCER FLINR-I LILIFO108 /01 /20108 FENHN-IT122 5% .58% .
UMIT EINKED GROWTH FUND ULIF00527/01/2004UFEGAOWTHI 22 176% 76%
UNET LINKED GROWTH FUND-I| ULIFD1808/01 /201 OLGROWT-iI122 S5% .53%
LINIT LINKED JMOEX FUND LILIFOA082/01 /20081 FEINDEXF122 LB7% 0.81%
LINKT LINKED INDEX FUND-I| L .IFDZUUE!'_UIRDICIHFINDX-[[122 SE% 1.58%
[UNIT LINKED INFRASTRUCTURE FUND VLIFD3308/01/2010UFEINFRAF122 S9% .59%
UNIT LINKED PROTECTOR FUND ULIFG0911/07/2006UFPROTECT122 1,15% -18%.
LINIT LINKEG PROTECEOR FUND-|| ULIFG2108 /03 /20100 PROTE- 1122 .G0% L 60H
LINTT LINKED PSUFUND LILIFG2708,03 /20101 FEPSLIFNE122. 56% 156%
UNIT LINKED SECURE FLIND \LIFO0627/0%/ 70081 FESECUREL22 A59% 1.39%
Unlt Linked Mideap fund# ULIFG3333/01/202SUFEMIDCAPLI 22 9.24% 0.00%
LINIT LINKED DYNAMIC PE FUND ULIFD3201 /087201 THFYNAMICI 22 5% 55%
HSCONTINUED POLICY FLIND ULIFD3127/01/201 10 DISCPLEY122 L59% 0.59%
UINITISED WITH FROFIT FUND LILIF00225 f06/2D0L FWPROATIZL O 0.00%

Nate: £xpenses charged to funds ineludes Managemant fess; COIL tharges & GST an Both,
# Unit [nked Midcap Fund was faunehed (0 January '2024




Aviva Life insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

AYVIVA

Life Insurance

Name of the Insurer - Aviva Life Insurance Company indla Umited

Regixtr_n:lnn Na, 1212
Date of Registration with IRDA - 14th May 2042

34.3 {g) Ratle of gross Income (i

d gains] 1o ge datly net assets,

il h {l
ULEFD0210/03/1006GROUPHALAN 22 45,894

 SUf akance fun
Group Superannuation & Gratutty Cash fund ULGROD532/03/2005GROUPCASHE132 2,074 29,588 6.99% 2,070] 41,638 4.85%
Group Superannuation & Debt fund ULGFDO310/03,/2005GA0MPDEBTFLI2 1,832,034 22,43 849 8,12%| 1.01.883| 22,45, 164 £.54%)
Group Superannuation & Gratuily Growth fund ULGFDO410/03/3005GROUPGROWT122 48,349 25,872 18.20%!| B, D82 2,23,521) 3.61%)|
Group Superannuation & Gratuity Incoma fund ULGFDO72B/03/2011GRAOLFINCQMI2Z - - (1.00% - [i] £.00%
Group Superannuation & Gratuity Securs fund ULGFO0113/07/2005GRAOUPSECUR 122 66,780 5,585,397 12.02%| 21,202 4,9 ?.Zlil 4.26%
Group Superannuation & Short Term Dobt fund ULGFO0613/02/2000GROUPSOERT 22 150 2,748 5.@' 140 2.724| 5.12%|
Pensivn Unit Unked Bal fund ULIFG0311/02/2003PNSBALANCEL22 GE.657 4,31,064 15.93% _13 91E] 462,233 3.01%
Pansier Unit Linked Balance fund- 1l ULIFO2325/01/2010PNBALAN-{1122 10,486 55,737 15.92%] 2333 66,632 3.50%
Pension Unit Linked wth fund ULIFR0703/03/2005PNSNGROWTH122 80,646) 414770 15.44%)| 13,867 4,98 963 2.38%
Fansion Uit Linked Growth fund- 1} ULIF02425/01/2010PNGROWT-1|122 20,680 1,07.926} 19<16‘J_§l 3,233 85,251 3.36%
Pansion Unit Linked {ndex fund ULIFO2122/01/2008PNENINDEXFI22 3,080,500 11,73.211 26.38% 43,138 11.89.878 3.63%
Pension Unit Linked (ndex fund- ) ULIFD2625/02/2010PNINDEX-I1122 68,529 2,613,336 26.22% 8572 2,37.339] 3.61%
Penslon Unit Linked Infrastructure fund ULIFO2525/01 f2010PNSNINFRAFL22 15,856 31,736 49.96% 531 27,130 1.96%
[Penston Unt Linked Protector fund ULIFD1408/02/2008PNSPROTECT132 i5,006! 43,3031 “11.58%) 5762 1,651,751 3.8_0_‘35'
Penslon Unit Linked Protector fund- It ULIFOZ825/01/2010FNPROTE-I122 2,534 11,592 11.74% 755 27,081 2.759%|
Pension Unlt Linkad PSU fund ULIFD2735/01/2010PNSNPSUFNDLSZ 67,229 95,745 B7.40% 10,890 77,085 14.13%
Pensicn Linit Linked Secura fund ULIFO00803/03/ H0SPNSNSECURET22 12,238 106,245 11.52% 4,304 1.20.253| 3.58%
Pensien Unitised with Prefit fund ULIFOD411/02/2003PNSWRROFIT122 13,535 142,789 9.48% 5,111 1,41,858 3.60%)
Untt Linked Bal; fund ULIFO010G6/05/ 2002 LIFBALANCEL2Z 3,86,244 24,156,616 15.958% 79,194 25.5?.6‘}‘8| 3.08%
Unit Linked Bafance fund- i1 ULIFOL508/01/2010L1BALAN-F122 2,48,292 14,62,631 16.98%] . 56,887 14,84.148 3.8@
Unlt Linkod Debt fund- Il ULIFG1608/01/2010LIFDERT-1122 66,009; 7.67.758 5.20%) 35,910 8,828,772 4.04%
Unit Linked Debt fund ULIF01306/02/ 2008 FERERTFLL22 3,654, 46,607 7.80% 2,861 55,988 4.77%)
Unkt Linked Dynamic PE fund ULIFD3204/08/201 1EIFDYNAMIC122 1,84,871i B,28,801 23.51% 27,701 7,885,437 3.51%
Unit Linked Enhancer fund ULIFD1230/01/2008LIENHANCERLZ2 175,273 530,128 27.80% 13,003 5,897,182 Z.18%)|
Unit Linked Ent fund- ULIFD1 708/01/ 201 0LFENHN-11122 12,11,216l 79,42,504, 27.84% 1,215,568 E6,73.915 1.73%
Unit Linked Grewth fund ULIFD0527/01/ 2004LIFEGROWTH122 - 16,9?.940' ?2.57,@1 2340%) 2,17,872 78,142,422 2.79%
Unit tinked Growth fund- )} |UUIFG1B08/01 fAIOLIGROWT-Hi2 Z 3,83.575) 16,54,415 23.05% 44,245 15,07,143 2.94%)
Unit Unked Index fund ULIF01G02/01/2008LIFEINDEXF122 1.4?,591| 5,56,055] 26.56% 21,257 5,892,172 3.59%
Wnit Uinked Index fund- tI ULIFO2008/01/2030LIFINDX-1132 2,005,285/ ?.81,9@' 26.25% 26,313 7.27.544 3,62%)
Unit Linked Infrastructure fund ULIFD1908/01/2010UFEINFRAFL22 2.92,45—§| 568,878 51.41% 1,973 312,063 0.52%|
Linit Linked Protector fund ULIFC0911/07/2006UFFROTECT122 16,726 - 2,30.3!@ 11.60% 10,837 2,72,278 3.98%,
Uxit Linked Pretector fund- 1) ULIFO2 108/03 /20100 PROTE-N1122 61,014] 5,26,245 11.55% 32,275 5,02,384 5.36%
Unit Linked PSU fund ULIFD2208/01/2010LIFEPSUFND 122 11,735,320 16,779,647 67.03%| 55,2858 5.!?.0?!3 13.87%,
Unkt Linked Secure fund ULIFOD&E27/01/ 20041 FESECUREL2Z 1,415,803 5.596,574 11.62% 40,665 10,596,674 A, 71%)
Unit Limked Midcap fund¥ LLIF3323/01/2024UFEMIDCAPL2Z {2,457 105431 -2.33% - -] -
Unttised with Profit fund ULIFG0225/06/2002LIPWPROFITI2Z 119,072 12,48,674 59.54% 43.369' 12,30,605 3,538
Diseontt i Policy Fund ULIFO3127/01/2011LIDYSCPLEY 122 112,964 16,15 675 5.99% 81,362 17,313,760 5.27%(

# Linit Linked Mideap Fund was laundhind in January '2024




Aviva Life Insurance Company india Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

 AVIVA

Life Insurance

Name of the Insurer - Aviva Life Insurance Cempany India Umited

Registration No, 122
Date of Registration with (RDA - 14th May 2002

34.3 (h] Provislan for doubtful dabts on assets of the respective funds

roup Superannuation & Gratuity Balance fun 5,162
Group Superannuation B Gratuity Cash fund ULGF00531/03/2006GROUPCASHF122 - -
Group Superannuation & Gratuity Debt fund LILGFO0310/03/2006GROUPDERTF122 40,484 84,912
Group Superannuation & Gratuity Growth fund ULGFO0410/03/2006GROUPGROWT122 1,557 2,192
Group Superannuation & Gratujty Income fund ULGFD0728/03/2011GROUPINCOM122 - -
Group Superannuation & Gratuity Secure fund UILGFO0113/07/2005GROUPSECUAL22 0,342 22,037
Group Superannuation & Short Term Dabt fund ULGFOG613/02/2609GROUPSDERT122 - -
Pension Unit Linked 8alance fund ULIFGD31.L/02/2003PN5BALANCELZ2 10,899 12,168
Pensian Unit Linkad Balance fund- It ULIF02325/01/2010PNBALAN-1122 - 635
Pensfon Unit Linked Growth fund ULIFO0703/03/ 2005PNSNGROWTH122 6,228 7,498
Pansion Unit Linked Growth.fund- [l ULIFO2425/01/2010PNGROWT-11122 2.336 2,970
Pensicn Unit Linked Index fund ULIF01122/01/2008PNSNINDEXF122 - -
Penston Unit Linked Index fund- I ULIFO2625/01 /200 0P NINDEX-)1122 . B
Pension Unit Linked Infrastructure fund ULIFO2525/01/2010PNSNINFRAF122 - -
Pensionr Unit Linked Protectar fund ULIFO1408/02/2008PNSPROTECT122 4,671 7,210
Pensfon Unit Unked Pratector fund- Il ULIF02825/01/2010PNPROTE- 1122 2,336 3,605
Pension Unit Linked PSU fund ULIFO2725/01/2000PNSNPSUFND122 - -!
Pension Unit Linked Secure fund ULIFO0803,/03/ 20058 NSNSECLURE122 11,6?E| 14,852
Pension Unitised with Profit fund ULIFD0411/02/2003PNSWRROFIT1I22 - -
Unit Linked Balance fund ULIFODI06/06/2002IFBALANCEL22 }'?.853| 86,739
Unit Linked Balange fund- )| ULIFO1508/01/20100TAALAN-11122 24,913[ 28,087
Unit Linked Debt fund- 1l ULFO1608/01/2010LFDEBT-11122 31,141| 52,877
Unit Linked Debt fund ULFDL306/02/ 2008LIFEDERTFUL22 2,336 2,970
Unit Linked Dynamic PE fund ULIFQ3201/08/201 ILIFDYNAMIC122 - .
Unit Linked Enhancer fund ULIF01230/01/2008L ENHANCER1L22 - -
Unlt Linkad Enhancer fund- 1l ULIFOZ08/01/ 200 OLIFENHN-1|122 - -
Unit Linked Growth fund ULIFO0527/01/2004LIFEGROWTH122 54,497, 64,018
Unit Linked Growth fund- 1l ULIFO1808/01/2010LIGROWT-1}122 9,342 10,612
Unit Linked tndex fund ULIFO1002/01/2008LTFEINDEXF 122 - -
Unit Linked Index fund- Il ULIFOZ008/01/2010LIFINDX-11122 - -
Unit Linked Infrastructure fund ULUFO1908/01/2010LIFEINFRAFLZ2. - -
Unit Linked Protector fund ULIF00911/07/ 2006LIFPROTECT 122 6,228 11,306
Uit Linked Protector fund- il ULIF02108/01/2010LIPROTE-11122 11,678 23,102
Unit Linked PSU fund ULIF02208/01/2010LIFEPSUFND122 - -
Unlt Linked Secure fund ULIFO0527/01/ 2004LIFESECUREL22 - 17,138
Unitised with Profit fund ULIFQG225/06/ 200211 FWPROFITE22 - -
Discontinued Policy Fund ULIFD3127/01/2011LIDISCPLEY 122 - -
Unlt Linked Midcap fundil ULIF03323/01/2024LIFEMIDCAP122 - N
Grand total 3,131,432 4,790,082
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Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

34.3{j) Disclosure of transai'ons on Repo and rever

e

se repo

L

Securities Sold under repo
i. Government Securities - - - -
ii. Corporate Debt Sacurities - - - -
Securities purchased under reverse repo

i. Government Securities 332,443 1,639,688 1,582,683
ii. Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
*Daily average is sum of daily outstanding multiplied by the term and divided by 365
{Rs. "000)

T

e R
Securities Sold under repo

i. Government Securities - - - -
ii. Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
Securities purchased underreverse repo
i. Gavernment Securities 299,899 4,560,058 2,100,242 3,714,939
ii. Corporate Debt Securities - - - .
*Daily average is sum of daily outstanding multiplied by the term and divided by 385

34.3(k} The company had 2 ULIP funds, Unit Linked Wealth Builder Fund (ULWBF; SFIN- ULIFO302C/07/2010LIFEWEALTH122) & Unit
Linked liquid fund (ULLF; 5FIN- ULIFO2903/05/2010LIFELIQUID122), that were faunched in 2010. ULWEF fund was cpened for
a limited period of 10 years. All the policies in the fund matured by 15th luly 2020, ULLF was 2 feader fund of ULWBF fund.
There was no AUM left in these funds and these have been closed as per the extant regulations and under intimation to IRDAI,
during FY 23-24. The custody linked bank accounts have also been closed.

35.  Performing and Non-performing investments: {Rs. '000)

Schedule 8 6,275,389 . 6,275,389 5,156,629 - 5,156,629
Schedule 8A 91,755,217 42,079 | 91,797,206 | 83,335,783 42,079 83,377,363
Schadule 88 40,352,653 88,588 | 40,441,241 | 34,662,097 BE,588 34,750,686
Total 138,383,259 130,667 | 138,513,926 | 123,154,508 130,667 | 123,285,178

During the year, unrecovered dues of Rs.241,417 (‘000} from Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limitad {DHFL)
outstanding after the resclution through the corporate insolvency resalution process, was written off after due approvals
from the Board of directors. The dues were fully provided for and accardingly, the provision was reversed.

36. The company assessed its solvency position as at the Balance sheet date and is at 183%, which is above the prescribed
regulatory limit of 150%.
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Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Code on Soccial Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee bensfits, during the employment and post-
employment, has received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of
India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has réleased draft rules for the Code an November 13, 2020.
However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the
financial impact are also not vet issued.

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will thereafter consider the impact-on financial statements in the
period in which, the Cede becomes effective and the rules to determine the financial impact are published.

The Management has reviewed alt the expense lines and basis of allocation and apportionment of all expenses across
segments as per the requirement of the IRDAI {(Expenses of Management of Insurers transacting life Insurance business)
Regulatlcns, 2023. The Paolicy was reviewed and approved by the Board. Below changes were made in the current policy:

The basis of apportlonment of expenses relat:ng to Claims cost centre has been changed frnm
1 “settled claims” to “Disposed claims” since the efforts are spent on every disposed claim and
not anly on settled claims.

The costs of support functions fike I¥, HR and Admin are now apportioned on the basis of head
2 count of the other functions and the ratios [Acquisition, Maintenance) of other functions that
are closely associated with cost objects.

The Company has assessed the below increasef(decrease) in the operating expenses charged to various segments as

Linked Individual - Life Participating 169
Linked Individual — Pension Participating i3
Linked Individual - Life Non Participating 94,536
Linked Individual — Pension Nan Participating {1,066)
Linked Group Non Participating 19
Non Linked Individual — Life Participating 211
Non Linked Individual — Pension Participating -
Non Linked {ndividual — Life Non Participating {118,083}
Non Linked Individual — Pension Non Participating 327
Non Linked Group Life-Non Participating 1,475
Non Linked Group Pension Non Participating ]
Non Linked Annuity Non Participating 360
Non Linked - Variabie - Group 5
Non Linked Haatth Non Participating {2,209
SHF 24,238
Total -
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3%, Previous year figures have been re-classified and regrouped wherever considered necessary to conform to current year

presentation,

As per our report of even date

For 1. C. Bhaila & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn No. 001111N

s,

Rajesh Sethi
Partner
Membership No. 085659

Date: o™ Mo“f 2.02Y
Place; NngQ,

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accauntants Aviva Life Insurance Company India Limited
Firm's Regn No. 000038N CIN UB&010DL2000PLC107880

J- U ' ’bru’}:zj‘_:, ﬁf){%'l«me«dt&é‘h

Sumithasri Eranti

K. N. Gupta Venkataramagupta . Asit Rath
Partner  Chairperson o Managing Director and
Membership No. 009169 §DIN 07087197 J,»f 4 Chief Executive Officer
\ oA DIN 09561510
Date: |0t !Lfa.l&j Wl R W s
Place: pppfat IDmerClei \9 , A
fiit Burman : Randy Lfanggara
e ; th‘Fector e Director
5 e ‘DIN 0000021963 -~ DIN 0009193302
AN S s &
Sonali Athalye Komal lolly
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. A22020

Date; |D’O-r'}1!-'“1

Place:
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